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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Year Ended 31st March 2 =A=+—HIFE

Results
E3
2021
—E-—F %
HK$ million Change
BERERT BoEH
Revenue A 7,520 -14
Gross Profit EF 3,954 -22
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest REFEWA - BERA - B
Income, Finance Costs, Income Tax, B ITE - BEEARN 1281 73
Depreciation, Amortisation and HEEQRTAEBRIER ’
Share of Losses of Joint Venture) (TEBITDAY)
(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Equity AN B RIERFE AEMNL 548 N/A
Shareholders of the Company (B518) &7 EA
Basic (Loss)/Earnings per Share BREX (BE) BA 51.5 N/A
(HK cents) (&4 ’ TEA
Total Dividends per SRLERERE GBL) 32.8 -100

Ordinary Share (HK cents)

Year Ended 31st March 2 =A=+—HIFE
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é? Financial Highlights
B E

As at 31st March R=A=+—H
Financial Position

B EE RSN
2022 2021
—Eg== B %
HK$ million HK$ million Change
BERET BEBET BOLEEE
Total Assets BEE 6,807 7,276 -6
- - N/A
Net (Debt)/Cash Balance (B1fE) Be T8 (232) 453 TR
Total Equity Attributable to AT
RV g Eg’f*ﬂﬁwﬁm% 3,258 3,616 -10
Company TN =2
Year Ended 31st March 2022 BE—ZE-_—F=A=+—HLFE
Sales Analysis by Location
HEHEIT (HHE)
2%
9% Singapore
Australia and %ﬁmi&
New Zealand 59%
BNRHEE Mainland China
| 5 o P
30% R '
Hong Kong Operation
(the Hong Kong SAR,
the Macau SAR and Exports)
ERXY (EBEITHE -
BB RTHRERED)
Notes: “the Hong Kong SAR” represented the Hong Kong Special Mz . [EBENTHE] EREARANESBISRIT
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China. HE o
“the Macau SAR” represented the Macao Special DRPIFBIITHE | 5P EARLMBIRPSHIT
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China. HE o
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT
ERWE

~&$

Since 1940, the year of Vitasoy’s founding, we have been
providing consumers with delicious and nutritional plant-
based food and beverages. Although FY2021/2022 was
particularly challenging for us, we are confident in our core
strengths and ability to gradually bring our business back to
a path of sustainable and profitable growth.

HMPE - NNEBFANUR - —EREABHEERUUEYK
2RE BERXEBEENRRRRANRE - BE-FT=——
B _HBEERRLE  BERERMNEZOERURER
9 B BMRERMANEBSIZSERTHERANEER

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
(SBS, BSc, MSc)

ERIESE (SBS, BSc, MSc)

Executive Chairman

HITERE
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é? Chairman’s Statement
EFERSE

In FY2021/2022, Vitasoy Group faced a challenging operating
environment because of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
underperformance of our Mainland China business. The
Group’s revenues dropped by 14% to HK$6,501 million. The
loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$159 million, compared to last year’s profit of HK$548
million.

As a result of this performance, the Board will prioritise
business recovery and has therefore not recommended a final
dividend for FY2021/2022.

Recovery in Mainland China, growth in our other
operating units

In Mainland China, after underperformance in the first half,
we experienced the severe impact of the new COVID-19
Omicron variant as it spread through our strongholds of
East and South China. Amidst the impact of the pandemic in
Guangdong Province and Shanghai, we were able to achieve
improved year-on-year performance during the second half
of FY2021/2022 versus year-on-year performance in the first
half.

Our performance in locations outside Mainland China was
generally strong.

In the Hong Kong SAR, our business experienced a gradual
return to normal levels following the pandemic, with strong
consumer acceptance of new product launches such as
VITAOAT and VITA Fresh Tea, which offset the impact of
ongoing border and school closures.

RIZB=Z— /ZT-_BHEE  F2019TE#k
FEREBRERE  MEhRRBNERRR
RuEBAE - FEMNEERNEEREMEBE o K
BB AR A 14% 2 B8 6,501,000,000 7T ©
AN B R FEREE AL EE B B% 159,000,000
70 > T A FRIERBREF)E 548,000,000 7T ©

ERAEBEBRRE  EERGELETERE
EMARZBRE S -— “T__HHEERXR
AR E

ﬁ\

EHPEAM  BRE¥FRRIEN  RMWER
INE FE 2019 AR S R B9 37 2 T Omicron & 15
ERZRMERDBERANERRETHES
ABENFE BREERERLEZH TR
e BEAFEHAEL  BAR=ZE=— =
T _HREETE¥FNESER ¥ FNE

=
B o

=

BPMEPERME UM ENEBERRIRSE

EEBEBITHE  RPANERTRBEREE
BEOEZEEKE  FEEBREMELNHT
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é? Chairman’s Statement
EERSE

Australia and New Zealand enjoyed a rewarding year,
thanks to the broad-based growth of VITASOY Oat Milk that
accelerated our leadership in this category.

In Singapore, the local beverage and tofu export businesses
recovered growth albeitincurring asmallloss. Inthe Philippines,
our 1 Litre business for the home occasion continued to grow
behind VITASOY Soy Milky, notwithstanding the prolonged
COVID-19 restrictions that affected our single-serve platform.

For the year ahead, we must anticipate and mitigate the
effects of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic on the macro-
economic environment. As conditions improve, we remain
confident in the future prospects for our business. Our
fundamentals are strong, our Mainland China business is
regaining momentum and, together with our other units,
will benefit from the mainstreaming of the plant-based food
and beverage movement. Our Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) performance continues to advance as
proven by our ever-improving external ratings, both local and
international.

As the founder of our company, Dr. Lo Kwee-seong, once said:
“Great success comes only after weathering great storms”. In
this unprecedented period, we have been able to continue
learning and building additional management capabilities.
This puts us in an even stronger position for growing our
business and fulfilling our mission to bring sustainable plant-
based taste and nutrition to even more communities.

° Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {73 EIFR B E R A 7]
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é? Chairman’s Statement
EERSE

A note of appreciation

| would like to thank our Board of Directors, management
team and staff for the work they do in support of our business
and long-term growth, especially in the context of unique
circumstances such as those we have been experiencing
during this most recent period. My sincere thanks also go to
our shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners
for their confidence in us and our ability to bring the Company
back on track.

Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman
29 June 2022
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GROUP CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REPORT/BUSINESS REVIEW
SETHERRE RBEOS

B\ )

FY2021/2022 was achallenging year, owing to the continued
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic that was further
aggravated by the underperformance of our Mainland
China business. We are confident that by focusing on the
execution of core portfolio and strategic innovation we will
be able to gradually restore our growth trajectory.

Z2090BRAEREREHEELE  NEAKETERBEREEX
RARMER —2-— "2 _BRFEEALE - RMAX
5 BEASEHESINEKOVERESRRBAR  RAKE

9 SEEERHE -
*e—

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
PEISIS L

Executive Director and
Group Chief Executive Officer

HITESBRETRAR
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é? Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review

EETHRARRE XBEHE

The resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic caused multiple
disruptions in both supply chains and consumption patterns.
Its impact was aggravated by weak first half sales in Mainland
China, our biggest market, but followed by improvement in
the second half. As a result, Group revenues declined 14%
for the full Financial Year despite solid growth in our other
market operating units such as the Hong Kong SAR, Australia
and New Zealand, and Singapore.

The loss from operations was HK$213 million for the year, a
decline from last year’s profit of HK$843 million. In addition to
weaker sales in Mainland China, profits were also affected by
the reduction in COVID-19 subsidies that had been received
last year in the first phases of the pandemic. These subsidies
fell from HK$225 million in FY2020/2021 (the first year of
COVID-19) to HK$20 million in FY2021/2022. Excluding the
COVID-19 related government subsidies, the Group’s adjusted
loss from operations would have been HK$233 million,
compared to last year’s adjusted profit of HK$618 million.

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$159 million, compared to a profit of HK$548 million last
year, which was in line with our previously announced profit
warning on 12th May 2022.

In the context of the above disruptions, we continued our
work to strengthen management team capabilities and
systems. We also made a number of interventions to improve
both the sales execution of our core business and innovation,
and our go-to-market strategy. Although Mainland China
experienced COVID-19 in the quarter from April to June 2022,
we will be ready to accelerate our programmes’ impact when
the pandemic situation subsides and economy improves.

To counter the impact of rising material costs, we have
continued to anticipatively take selective pricing actions
and lock in raw material prices in our procurement contracts,
whilst exercising strict controls on operating expenses and
capital expenditure.

As innovation is a major strength of the Group, we renewed
our efforts to bring new products to market that appeal to
different consumer segments, as described in the following
operation units’ specific segments.

2019 BMRESHRE HIRES MRS - EHHE
EIOEBRZNEHE - I HPIRAHSE - &
BAitHE - L FHERS  ETFFHER
MERE - Bt - BERFARETBBRITHE -
BN AR RS H T EEEEMITR
RERR  EXRKERAMBRFEZFRATE
14% °

FERELEER BB 213,000,000 ' REE
B 843,000,000 T T #k - B E A
HERFEEN » RIAEFNITIEBBE 2019 AR
FERENBEHEEREAEE-—REROTE - &
EWPHR-T-FT T -G HEE (2019
BRFESHFHNEEFEE) 8% 225000,000
TTREZZ=-— /S -__UHRFENS
#20,000,000 7T ° #fl Br2019 78 AR & = 7% 18
BHFEY AEENECARELEREARBYE
233,000,000 7t © M & FLAB R A BB
618,000,000 Tt ©

AP A RERFE AEGEIRA#E® 159,000,000
7t mAF R AEF B 548,000,000t » It
HEMEFR-E-_FERA+THAGHER

BE—H .

EE U EBETE  RAEERCEEERRE
NREG - HPMEH TETEE - UERLE
BRAIMEMOBEENTUREATISRKE - &
ETEANMN -E_FRNAEAAEEALE
209 BRABHENE @ FRBBERENREER
BRER  RSEERANRSEENEE -

EEHRRA L3R - RFIEBENRBEATEL
BREVF R E B3 N SHE EAMRHER - RSEE
BEHEEBRAREATH -

A EAKENEEERS BB HELAHE
mAUAREITEEFE  MTXEEEMNEZED
ERARERL -
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é? Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review

EETHRARRE XBEHE

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)

We continued to focus on our operations, whilst enhancing
our Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) performance
and building on our Sustainability Framework. This framework
consists of two pillars: “Making the Right Products” and
“Making Products the Right Way”.

Under the “Making the Right Products” pillar, we continued
to improve our portfolio towards the goal of advancing plant-
based products and their nutrition value, whilst reducing
sugar and saturated fat at same time. By FY2025/2026, we
plan to have 90% of our products in compliance with our new
Vitasoy Nutrition Criteria, with nutrition information included
on the majority of our packs so that shoppers can make more
informed choices for healthy eating.

Under the “Making Products the Right Way” pillar, we
continued to focus on programmes that reduce our water and
energy consumption. Although our progress has been affected
by the disruptions described above, we are confident in our
ability to keep making progress on this important front.

Within this pillar, we have also introduced a new target on
manufacturing waste reduction, quantified our carbon
emissions and contributed to the communities we serve via
initiatives such as Nourish your Bodly, Nourish your Mind, under
which we provide multi-year school nutrition and education
programmes in Mainland China.

Our ESG performance is increasingly being awarded higher
scores by external rating agencies, such as the Hang Seng
Corporate Sustainability Index Series, the Dow Jones
Sustainability Indices (DJSI) and MSCI.

As more and more communities acknowledge the benefits
of plant-based foods and beverages and become more
motivated by purpose-driven sustainable companies, we
believe our corporate positioning and contribution provide a
very strong competitive advantage in our sector.

a Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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é? Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review
EETHARRSE (%O HE

Health and Safety during COVID-19 #2019 Bk mEfm R TR AV 62 =
Hz®

The health and safety of our staff and partners has been a AREENEEHE—BESEEREIRSEBH
top priority of the Group during the pandemic. We continued HREEZZ RASEXAETEGTEMER
to comply fully with all government regulations and stepped FER URNEERRENTFERIER - 258
up our existing precautionary measures. These included REERAZENREBREHAITHEEGEBE 8
strict visitor controls in our offices and plant premises, Rapid- T EAIZAETIRERERE > REHERAER
Antigen Tests for staff before reporting for duty, and work- EEAERIE BRATREREEERE AEES
from-home arrangements for office-based employees. We BHEER IR ENEEREEHKER 2T
also provided vaccination leave, paid time-off for compulsory P TIMEENERE L - URERRRERBEE -

quarantine or testing requirements, and additional shuttle
buses for staff commuting to work, as well as regular health

talks.
Financial Highlights BISHE
The following table presents the Group’s financial highlights TREVWAEFSEE-_E-_—_F=A=+—HL
for the year ended 31st March 2022, as compared with the FEEBE-_Z--F=ZA=+—H1 E@EBK
previous financial year ended 31st March 2021. FELBNFENKEE -
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—HLFE
2022 2021
g2 —E-—F
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) Change
(B¥AER) (B¥EEBTRT) o))
Revenue
6,501 7,520 -14%
L'ON

Gross Profit

_990
£ 3,071 3,954 22%

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest Income, Finance
Costs, Income Tax, Depreciation, Amortisation and

Share of Losses of Joint Venture) 1,281 -73%
EBITDA (RETFIBWA ~ BERA - FIEH - 178 - #HH
BARFLEE AREEAER)
(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of N/A
the Company 548 3z
RATRERSE AEL (BEB), &R
Basic (Loss)/Earnings per Share (HK cents) 51.5 N/A
BRER (B18) /BF (B) ' TiE A

Gearing ratio
BELLR

+12% points

14%
° EEL

ROCE (Return on Capital Employed)
EAREIRHE

-25% points

34%
° B
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é? Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review

EETHRARRE XBEHE

Revenue

For the year ended 31st March 2022, the Group’s revenue
decreased 14% to HK$6,501 million (FY2020/2021: HK$7,520
million).

Mainland China:-23% (-28% in local currency)

Strong recovery in the second half of FY2021/2022 and a
significantly narrowed year-on-year decline in sales compared
to the first half of the year.

Hong Kong Operation (the Hong Kong SAR, the
Macau SAR and Exports): +4%

Innovation fuelled growth despite schools being opened
only intermittently and local on-the-go channels gradually
resuming traffic amidst prolonged border closures.

Australia and New Zealand: +15% (+12% in local currency)

Continued strong broad-based growth, augmented by
the acceleration of our Oat Milk portfolio as both countries
reopened and eased mobility restrictions.

Singapore: +3% (+2% in local currency)

Export and local beverage business grew steadily but the
tofu business was challenged due to a temporary stock out
situation caused by COVID-19 induced restrictions. Border
closures also affected our factory operation.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit was HK$3,071 million (FY2020/2021:
HK$3,954 million), representing a decrease of 22%, mainly
driven by lower sales performance.

Gross profit margin dropped to 47% (FY2020/2021: 53%),
mainly attributable to lower sales volume, sales mix, higher
raw material costs, and higher trade promotional expenses.

0 Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]

ON
BE-Z-__F=ZA=+—HILEE  xEEHN
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TT) B 22%  TEHNEERBE TR -

ERETHEA7% (B —E-—HE
E 53%) TEHRRHEETE  #HEHAE R
MERALR  UREEBRIERSHH



é? Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review

EETHRARRE XBEHE

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased 5% to HK$3,409 million
(FY2020/2021: HK$3,233 million). This was due mainly to the
reduction of pandemic-related government subsidies, non-
recurring expenses and impairment costs associated with
the relocation of the Shenzhen operation to the new modern
facility in Dongguan, China, as part of our manufacturing
innovation programme, as well as write-downs of inventories
and impairment of goodwill in the Singapore business, partly
offset by a deferral of advertising and promotion spending.

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses were maintained
at the same level as last year, being HK$2,215 million
(FY2020/2021: HK$2,223 million), due to significantly lower
government subsidies, offset by reduced advertising spend.

Administrative expenses increased 11% to HK$702 million
(FY2020/2021: HK$630 million), mainly due to non-recurring
costs associated with the relocation of the Shenzhen operation
and reduction of pandemic-related subsidies.

Other operating expenses mainly included staff costs for other
supporting functions, management fees charged by a related
party, sundry tax charges in Mainland China and impairment
of property, plant and equipment. These expenses increased
29% to HK$492 million (FY2020/2021: HK$380 million), due
to lower government subsidies, impairment of goodwill in
the Singapore business, impairment of property, plant and
equipment, and write-downs of inventories.

KEER

e B A2 5% E B #3,409,000,000
T(ZBEZE /-G HBFE: ¥
3,233,000,0007t) » EEHNZFEHEBE BT
%ﬁ¢‘%ﬁWH%ﬁ%EiEERMWE«¢
ABREERIFNTEN D) IEENELE
MR REERE Mﬁﬁ 5 R HT N E A
BEE  HpIH o HESEES HIELEIK
g o

ﬁ%ﬁF\%Eﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ£¢%$’%%ﬁ
2,215,000,000 ¢ (ZE=F “E - —§HF
E : jB%2,223000,0007t) ¢ REZBAFREL
Kigd » WHESZHBAFTKEE o

1THE AN 1% E78# 702,000,000 T (=&
-2 /T -BHREE : B%630,000,000
7T EEHRFRYRERBEENELENS
F XU R R B R R AR AT e

HtKEERTEaREMTERBENE T K
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é? Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review

EETHRARRE XBEHE

COVID-19 related Government Grants in
FY2021/2022

For the year ended 31st March 2022, the Group received
government grants of HK$20 million (FY2020/2021: HK$225
million) related to COVID-19 financial assistance supporting
Hong Kong Vitaland school business and staff employment.

Segment

S

—EC- - B _BBRFEERN 2019 Bk
B REEBT SR

BE-Z--F=-A=1+—HILEE AEHE
BHEH209BMFESHY K ENEBN BT EL
A#B120,000,000T (ZB=8 /=T =—§
BEE 8% 225000,0007T) @ XIFE B4
R WEBREBREFEHETREA -

Amount recognised

Hong Kong Operation
ENCE

Mainland China
R ER Ay it

Singapore

N

Others
Hith

E2eH
2022 2021
—F_— B —F
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B¥HET) (B¥BEET)
17 145
69
5
6
225

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest Income, Finance
Costs, Income Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
and Share of Losses of Joint Venture)

EBITDA for the year was HK$340 million, a decrease of 73%
year-on-year, mainly driven by lower sales performance
and significantly lower government subsidies. The EBITDA to
revenue margin for the year decreased from 17% to 5%.

(Loss)/Profit from Operations
Loss from operations was HK$213 million for the year, a decline
from a profit of HK$843 million last year.

Impairment Loss on Interest in Joint Venture

An impairment charge of HK$43 million was recognised last
year due to the impact of the pandemic on last year sales
and future sales projections. No further impairment charge
was recognised in the current year.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]
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EETHRARRE XBEHE

(Loss)/Profit before Taxation

Loss before taxation was HK$236 million for the vyear,
compared to last year profit before taxation of HK$767 million.

Taxation

Income tax credited for the year was HK$75 million
(FY2020/2021: income tax charged HK$177 million) with an
effective tax rate of 32%, versus 23% last year, mainly due to
higher net tax credits arising from losses in Mainland China.

(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of
the Company

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$159 million, a decline from last year’s profit of HK$548
million.

Financial Position

The Group finances its operations and capital expenditure
primarily through internally generated cash as well as banking
facilities provided by our principal bankers.

As at 31st March 2022, cash and bank deposits amounted to
HK$622 million (31st March 2021: HK$971 million), with 40%,
50% and 3% of our cash and bank deposits denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars (HKD), Renminbi (RMB) and United States
Dollars (USD), respectively (31st March 2021: 40%, 52% and
2%). As of 31st March 2022, the Group had a net debt balance
(cash and bank deposits less bank borrowings, bills payable
and lease liabilities) of HK$232 million (31st March 2021: net
cash balance of HK$453 million). Available banking facilities
amounted to HK$968 million (31st March 2021: HK$905
million) to facilitate future cash flow needs.

The Group’s debt amounted to HK$854 million (31st March
2021: HK$518 million), of which bank borrowings amounted to
HK$490 million (31st March 2021: HK$130 million), bills payable
amounted to HK$176 million (31st March 2021: HK$183 million)
and lease liabilities amounted to HK$188 million (31st March
2021: HK$205 million).

The gearing ratio (total debt/total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company) increased to 26% (31st
March 2021: 14%).

BRBLAT (B518) R

FRBRBATE B BB 236,000,0007T ° &
F R AR BFNRRBEE 767,000,000 Tt ©
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FRAIKEHNATER BB 75000,0007T (=
T/ CE_-BREE  IEHIEAEBYE
177,000,000 7t) » EMHELR32% @ 2FH A
23%  FERRFEARMESHFENELERSTF
BigE R -

EREREFEAES (BB) 55

AN B RIERSE AELERBSBE 159,000,000
TT » MEFREABHES48 000,000t BT T Bk o

B REAR S

FEEIREBHAABRER EZREIRITHA
RENRITEEE REBREAHEMHRE

AZE__F=A=+—H RERBITEXS
B# 622,000,000t (ZE=Z—F=/A=+—
H : 8 ¥ 971,000,0007T) ° & H40% * 50%
R3%WHEERBITERIBAET  ARER
ERFGBE(ZE=_—F=A=1+—H:40%"
52%K2%) c BE-E-_—_HF=R=+—H"
AEBNEEEFHR (BeRBTERRRTE
B ENEERHEESE) £E%¥ 232,000,000
T(ZE-—F=A=+—H: BaFEABY
453,000,0007t) ° AJEE ARIRITIEEREAB
#968,000,000 T (ZE=—F=A=+—8":
7B#£ 905,000,000 7T) * LURMBRRMIREARE

EZo

REBWEK A B 854,000,000t (=
—_—H#=HA=+—H : ##%518,000,0007t)
ERFRTEEABE 490,000,000 (=&
——H%=ZHA=+—H : %B%130,000,0007T) *
A EEAB%176,000,000 T (ZE=—F=
B=+—8 : B%183,000,0007%t) REE&AE
A#B1188,000,000 T (ZE=—F=A=1+—
B : &% 205,000,000 ) °

g

BELR (REKBHEERQTRESE AEWSN
ERBBERGTE) LAE26% (ZBE=Z—F=
B=1+—H :114%) °

Annual Report 2021/2022 FE &



é? Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/Business Review

EETHRARRE XBEHE

The Group’s return on capital employed (ROCE) (EBITDA/
average non-current debt and equity) for the year was 9%
(FY2020/2021: 34%).

Capital expenditure incurred during the year decreased
to HK$243 million (FY2020/2021: HK$623 million), mainly
due to normalised investment to maintain and upgrade our
production lines and equipment.

There were no assets pledged or secured under loan and/or
lease arrangements.

Non-financial Key Performance Indicators

The Group publishes various non-financial KPls in its
Sustainability Report 2021/2022, which will be released in
July 2022 together with this Annual Report.

Tax Strategy

When considering tax, the Group gives due consideration to
the importance of corporate and social responsibilities. More
specifically, the Group commits to continue paying taxes
in the countries where value is created and ensure it is fully
complying with tax laws across all relevant jurisdictions. The
Group also commits to comply with the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) transfer
pricing guidelines and to ensure that the arm’s length
principle is always observed in transactions between Group
companies. In addition, the Group commits to being open and
transparent with tax authorities about the Group’s tax affairs
and to disclose relevant information to enable tax authorities
to carry out their reviews.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s overall financial management policy focuses on
anticipating, controlling and managing risks, and covering
transactions directly related to the underlying businesses
of the Group. For synergy, efficiency and control, the Group
operates a central cash and treasury management system
for all subsidiaries. Borrowings are normally taken out in
local currencies by the operating subsidiaries to fund their
investments and partially mitigate foreign currency risks.

° Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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Potential Risk and Uncertainties BERBRTHBRE

Vitasoy has implemented a comprehensive risk management EMPEASEEANERZEMNERERER &
framework across the Group to consistently anticipate, assess AN REUTER - SR SEEERE
and mitigate key business risks, as well as a risk governance o DURRARBERRES  BRERETER
structure to ensure risk ownership and proper oversight. BEEZENEEEE - ENEHREREEE
In view of the rapidly changing business environment, the AEBRAERE R E G E IR0 E M IniaiE FH IR
Group Internal Audit and Risk Management Department has FERIERE - BB IN R EE R - R EREER
stepped up its efforts to improve key risk indicators, identify REMEZ - ZERBEERENEBENKE
external emerging risks, and facilitate risk reviews for key HRALEERRENEMEE—H -

purchasing decisions. Details of these risk management
processes are covered in the Risk Management section of the
Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report.
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Review of Operations
Mainland China

Overall weak sales in the first half, with strong
recovery in the second half

(Rounded to the nearest million)

(MEBEAZREIAE)

Revenue from external customers (HK$ million)

RESMEEET WA B EET)

(Loss)/profit from operations (HK$ million)

g (B51.) af (B¥EET)

Revenue from external customers (RMB million)

RENMEEE WA (AREEET)

(Loss)/profit from operations (RMB million)
g (B58) s (ARBEET)

Revenue from Mainland China declined by 28% in local
currency, due to weak sales in the first half of FY2021/2022
and the impact of COVID-19 in early 2022. Due to RMB
appreciation, our revenue dropped 23% in HKD termes.

The resulting loss from operation was RMB280 million for the
year, a decline from a profit of RMB457 million last year.

In the above context, we maintained strong execution efforts
on the core portfolio whilst building a solid basis for growth
in the coming year with breakthrough innovation. Vitasoy
confirmed its soy category leadership and entered the oat
milk category with the launch of VITAOAT. This represents
a whole new product platform that is now rapidly gaining
a loyal following, thus opening an incremental yet sizable
revenue stream for the coming year. In the tea category,
VITA tea remains the leader in the premium lemon tea
segment, accelerating its leadership with the launch of VITA
Sparkling Lemon Teaq, a new carbonated platform designed
to turbocharge the VITA product experience. The brand
also launched a promising VITA Peach Tea product, whilst
gradually continuing to pilot VITA No Sugar Tea in selected
markets.

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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Hong Kong Operation (the Hong Kong SAR, the
Macau SAR and Exports)

Solid performance attributable to successful

product launches and strong execution as COVID-19
restrictions gradually eased and consumer sentiment
improved

(Rounded to the nearest million)
(ORBEAZRELAE)

Revenue from external customers

RESEREE ZWA

Profit from operations

R T

Net sales revenue reached HK$1,934 million in FY2021/2022,
representing a growth of 4% over the previous year, despite
an inability to fully recover the Vitaland tuckshop school
business, which was still partially affected by COVID-19
restrictions. Growth would have been even stronger had it not
been for the disruption caused by the 5th wave of COVID-19
in February and March 2022. This latest wave created
additional complexities as we balanced safety with continuity
of operations of factory, warehousing and logistics.

As COVID-19 government subsidies were significantly reduced
from the previous year, profit from operations dropped 44%
to HK$199 million. Excluding government subsidies, profit from
operations dropped by 13%, mainly because of the upward
surge in raw material costs and escalating oil prices in the
second half of the year.

We integrated our marketing programmes in Mainland China
and the Hong Kong SAR, where we successfully launched
VITAOAT and VITA Sparkling Tea as well as in the Macau SAR.

In addition, we incrementally launched VITA Fresh Teaq, a
whole new platform that introduces the VITA brand into the
chilled drink segment in convenience stores and supermarket
outlets. The shopper response has been very encouraging,
and we are determined to drive this platform further in the
coming year as a profitable top line accelerator.

ERELE (FEETHE « BFIEZBITH
EREO)

BIRRBRE  BRERKIELTEm [
2019 B EHRIGRFVIEIEHER - 5
BRI - I EIFIE N ES T

2022 2021
g —E-—F
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Australia and New Zealand N DSE L] |
Continued strong and broad-based growth, HE/FEZSEZIER  2IHRZYIZR S
accelerated by new Oat Milk platform ZEE
(Rounded to the nearest million) 2021 % Change
(HEEAZREIEER) —E-—& ELE L
Revenue from external customers (HK$ million) 528 +15
RENEEEZBA (B¥EET)
Profit from operations (HK$ million)
e . oy 68 +14
gend OB EER)
Revenue from external customers (AUD million) 94 +12
REIEEEZWA (RTEET)
Profit from operations (AUD million)
TS S e e 12 +12
Renf (RTAEsT)
Vitasoy Australia and New Zealand continued its growth HEMIDBENRFAEAERFERYER » WANEH
progression, with revenues increasing by 12% in local currency. ERFEERR%  RERAZHERREER
The majority of platforms and channels performed strongly, BEIYRRBY > KETWERENR AT REE
more than offsetting weaker sales in the coffee shop channel F 2019 B ESHEBEZEM T RWIHERE -
that continued to be affected by COVID-19 limitations for
part of the Financial Year.
Profit from operations reversed its decline from the previous REGHHBEAFRS UEHMERTEER
year, rising by 12% in local currency terms, as a result of 2% BRERBRARENZEMER  BHIK
growing revenue and gross margins, partially balanced by BN E T A LRATIKES
higher transportation and staff costs.
The overall growth was accelerated by the launch of our new BMFEL NN RENERRS > BETE
VITASOY Oat Milk portfolio, providing tailored offerings across RENERERNER  MERRHEER - &
multiple channels and segments. This has propelled Vitasoy EBHEMDERERARE DNWRE PN HIGLEE
to a clear leadership position in this most promising Oat Milk Bihfy - WHLERERRFEMS —WARIR -

segment, which is likely to deliver an incremental source of
further revenue in the coming years.
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Singapore

Revenue growth driven by tofu exports, beverage
businesses and a new plant milk launch

(Rounded to the nearest thousand)

(MIBEAZREET)

Revenue from external customers (HK$ thousand)

REIEEETZWA (BB T T)

(Loss)/profit from operation (HK$ thousand)
e (B18) wF GB¥ T )

Revenue from external customers (SGD thousand)

RESERER WA CREEFT)

(Loss)/profit from operation (SGD thousand)
e (BR) RF GRET )

Revenue from our Singapore business grew in both Hong
Kong dollar and local currency terms, driven largely by growth
in tofu exports, the imported beverage business and launch
of a new VITASOY PLANT + plant milk produced in Malaysia.
The local tofu business underperformed due to COVID-19
restrictions affecting the workforce and consumption.
However, the whole tofu portfolio has been repositioned with
enhanced nutrition formulae and new packaging to restore
growth in the coming year.

Loss from operation was SGD2,198,000 for the year, falling
from last year’s profit of SGD529,000, primarily as a result of
higher soybean and utility costs, higher operation costs due to
COVID-19, induced labour shortage and logistic costs, as well
as the reduction in pandemic-related government subsidies.

Fhn3g

ZIEH O ~ Elan 575 R HE 4 FT Y0 E dm 75
BRAER

2021 % Change
—E-—F BAOLLER
122,091 118,343 +3
N/A

12,692 3,014 .
(12,692) T
21,143 20,784 +2
N/A

2,198 529 "
G FEA

IR EBBA LGB R Bt Bt BB PE
R ITEHATREHO - EORBEBURHEL
= B SR R MM PLANT + Y I7E R A
& - 2019 BB ERRBHRFB RS EEEH D
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ek RRFMERR -
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Business Outlook

Although travel restrictions are being lifted or eased across
many international geographies, we expect further COVID-19
waves to continue across all markets, which may or may not
severely affect us in the first half of the upcoming financial
year. This will continue to cause operational, logistical and
supply chain bottlenecks, aggravated in turn by rising energy
and commodity prices that will further exacerbate inflation.

In this context, we have been actively strengthening our
readiness and agility by improving our organisational
capabilities and vigilance in order to flexibly adjust our plans
and synchronise them with external conditions.

For FY2022/2023, we will work to restore year-on-year
profitable growth through our vectors of Execution, Expansion
and Innovation, adequate investments in brand equity
building and increased availability across all our markets. We
have already implemented price increases in some markets
and will continue to price up selectively, whilst exercising tight
internal cost control measures to protect profit margins.

Global per capita consumption analysis shows that our core
portfolio still has ample potential for further growth. We
will nevertheless complement it with strategic innovation,
not only by building on the successful platforms launched in
FY2021/2022 but also introducing new ones across all our
markets.

Mainland China

We will launch exciting new brand equity building campaigns
for both VITASOY and VITA. On top of supporting our core
portfolio, we will continue to drive innovations from last
year such as VITAOAT, VITA Sparkling and Peach Tea, whilst
also adding new product platforms to strategically tap into
promising new segments and occasions. The whole portfolio
will be renovated with a “picture of success” to further
improve in-store execution and thus revenues per store. We
will also continue the selective and gradual expansion of our
availability to more high potential areas of Mainland China.

a Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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Hong Kong Operation (the Hong Kong SAR, the
Macau SAR and Exports)

Beyond the marketing and innovation programmes now
integrated with Mainland China, our business in the Hong
Kong SAR will launch additional revenue streams for both
VITASOY and VITA in segments where we have built a strong
route-to-market and presence over the years, such as the
successful introduction of VITA Fresh Tea in FY2021/2022.
This is particularly important for this market, given the very
high per capita consumption of our products.

Australia and New Zealand

In the year ahead, we expect to sustain our profitable revenue
growth in both markets, with continued execution of our
winning portfolio, strategic entry into complementary plant-
based segments and recovery to pre-COVID-19 levels in the
on-premise and coffee shop channels.

Singapore

We will focus on accelerating domestic tofu performance
by leveraging our full relaunch now being executed in the
market, whilst also scaling up our newly introduced VITASOY
PLANT + line of plant milk products.

The Philippines

Our joint venture with Universal Robina Corporation continues
to invest in building both VITASOY brand and soy category
awareness and adoption. In the past year, we primarily
leveraged the 1 Litre business due to the extended closures
of convenience stores and on-the-go occasion outlets. Once
COVID-19 restrictions are lifted, however, we will also activate
our single-serve platform for additional growth behind a
new brand equity building campaign. We will also selectively
introduce local innovations tailored to local preferences in
both single and multi-serve packs.

EBEL (EBEINTHE  BFIEBI1THK
EREO)
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Conclusion

Although FY2021/2022 was challenging, the Vitasoy Group
has shown great resilience and agility and deliberately
used the difficult circumstances to better equip itself for the
restoration of our strategic growth trajectory.

In the year ahead, COVID-19 conditions and the macro-
economic environment will continue to require vigilance,
anticipation and flexibility. However, the plant-based
movement and the expectation of sustainable purpose-led
businesses going mainstream create a unique opportunity
for the Vitasoy Group to accelerate its mission of profitably
providing tasty, nutritious plant-based food and beverages
to more and more communities, whilst accelerating its
performance in Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
deliverables.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our Executive
Chairman and Board of Directors for their invaluable
guidance, support and feedback during the past year. And,
finally, thanks to all our associates and business partners who
together confirmed their competence, dedication, flexibility
and resilience in this last year. It is their example that forms
our solid confidence in our continued success.

Roberto GUIDETTI
Group Chief Executive Officer
29 June 2022
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Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
firmly committed to a high level of corporate governance
and adherence to the governance principles and practices
emphasising transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. These principles and practices are
regularly reviewed, enhanced and updated by the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) or its delegated Board Committees
to reflect the ever changing regulatory requirements and
corporate governance development. The Board would conduct
regular review on the implementation and effectiveness
of those policies embracing those principles and practices.
The Board believes that the high standards of corporate
governance is the essential core for sustaining Vitasoy Group’s
long term performance and value creation for our shareholders,
the investing public and the other stakeholders.

HMPMEREEARAR ([RARF]) BFEK
FHEEER  YRAWETIEAEAE  BY

RAESE ([E58]) AHRECZESSZES
TR - RELEHZERBRER - IR
THESNEEREREXERRE EEaY
BEZERARERNER 2B R EBETE
Higs - EBERE - SRENTEERE M
PEBFEARERE  YATKRE - 2RRE
ERHMISEOEREEES DA SRERE
R o

@ five out of the eleven directors are independent non-executive

directors

T-RESETTARBIFITES

two of the eleven directors are female

T-—REEETMARLMN

the Board has diverse mix of knowledge, skills, experience and expertise

ESEREZTTLNAE - KEE - KRRER
chairpersons of major board committees are independent non-
TEEEZEECEFEYRBLIIHITES

roles of Executive Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer are

BITEREREETHARZACYHEED

five Board meetings and seven Sub-board Committee meetings in

Ro-B-— R _HREERTTARESEERRLRESEET
average 99% attendance rate of meetings

annual performance evaluation of the Board and Executive Chairman
for FY2021/2022 was conducted by external professional consultant

Board
Composition

EEFHEK
executive directors
separate
FY2021/2022
FEEER
BRI EEREINY%

Board and

Governance Practices
EETRERER

2021/2022 B FE 2 EEERHUTEFE 2 FERRTERINIEXRER
ET
proactive sustainability strategy

TETR A AT B R R

active participation in-house training and continuing professional
development

BESRARAMEINARSEEEER

@ carlier compliance of amended Corporate Governance Code

RATBTEETNREERTA

a Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March
2022, complied with the code provisions and, where
appropriate, adopted the recommended best practices
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

In December 2021, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) published the consultation conclusion
on Review of Corporate Governance Code of Appendix 14
(the “amended CG Code”) and the relating Listing Rules. The
amended CG Code and most of the Listing Rules took effect
for financial year commencing on or after 1st January 2022.
The Company has already taken several key compliance
enhancement initiatives in response to the amended CG Code
which are disclosed in this report.

TEERER
ARABREBEZE_—_F=A=+—HILEE
—HETEBHEXEMARLAES TR
Al (T EMmHRA]) M+ mFrEmztEERTA
(T{ExEERFAIL) Rz<FRIRIC > 30 (ANER)
R EERTRIEZEBRREER

REBZ-F+-A BEEBSXZHERR
8 (MBRfr]) DMy R EEFRIM S+ M
(MEEFTREERTA]) KA LR R
AR - RIETTREER TR KD EE LT
RAR-ZE-—F-A-HRZRMBKRNETF
EEX o AD B RELET CEE AT IE RN
ZHTESREBIER - LHIINLRER

® Adopt a Board Corporate Culture Statement
RMWESSEELER

® Review the implementation and effectiveness of Whistleblowing
Policy and Group Business Ethics Policy

BN BHRER R EEERERBR 2 BRMR K

Compliance

enhancement initiatives ® Ensure diversity at Board and management level
for amended BRESSREEEREZ UL
_ cG C?de\ ® Review the mechanism to ensure Independent views are
HRETEEERTA

EHNERE

available to the Board

BAEEILERESE NGB LB

® Review the implementation and effectiveness of Shareholders
Communication Policy

WA R RIBARBCR 2 B e MR K
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Corporate Culture

Vitasoy’s vision and mission statements were formally
introduced in 1998 with commitment to provide high quality,
tasty and nutritious products to promote a superior quality
of life to the communities we serve. Vitasoy is an innovative
company, a reliable employer and a responsible corporate
citizen dedicated to creating value for our shareholders.
Building on these Vitasoy vision and mission, the Board has
formally adopted a “corporate culture statement” in March
of 2022.

Vitasoy Culture Statement
Our Purpose and Values

Since 1940, Vitasoy has believed in the power of high quality,
tasty and nutritious products to promote a superior quality of
life to the communities we serve. We innovate continuously
to guide people towards a healthier and sustainable living for
ourselves as well as the planet.

We are guided by our values of integrity, hard work, reliability
to employees and responsibility to stakeholders, using
sustainability as our philosophy. We strive to create values for
our shareholders and make a positive impact on society’s key
stakeholders. We promote a diverse and inclusive environment
where everyone can thrive, belong and make a meaningful
impact at work.

Vitasoy’s Executive and Leadership team set the tone and
develop the strategies for our Culture which is reviewed,
aligned and endorsed by the Board of Directors or its Board
Committee/s on a regular basis. The leadership team role
model and cascade the company’s culture to all levels via
various internal communication platforms and systems.

Integrity and Code of Conduct

Through the Group Business Ethics Policy, the Code of Business
Conduct for Suppliers and Customers, and role modeling
by personal example, we strive to maintain high standards
of business ethics and corporate governance across all our
activities and operations.

The Code of Conduct is clearly laid out in our Staff Handbook
and communicated to all new joiners. We provide refresher
training to all employees on Business Ethics and Code of
Conduct on a regular basis to ensure strict compliance of all
rules and regulations when we do our business.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]

EEXIE
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Vitasoy Success Drivers

We set out six Vitasoy Success Drivers (“VSD”), value-aligned
behavior standards for employees:

1. Customer Focus - Thinking, talking and acting with
external customers’ & consumers’ needs in mind to
deliver superior services & products.

2.  Innovation - Generating business-building innovative
solutions to capture market opportunities and drive
business excellence.

3. Quality Orientation - Delivering standards of excellence
for services & products ensuring safety, accuracy,
consistency, reliability & durability.

4. Strategic Agility - Leading with a vision of success and
opportunities to create competitive breakthroughs for
the long term.

5. Collaboration - Working in partnership with people
internally and externally to accomplish common goals
and better results.

6. Accountability - Acting like an owner for the quality &
timeliness of work commitments contributing to team &
company objectives.

The company'’s talent acquisition, onboarding, performance
management and talent development processes for our
employees are all aligned with the VSDs. VSD training has
been mandated to all new joiners during their onboarding.
VSD standards are reinforced during day-to-day work and
employees are recognized by demonstrating positive VSD
behaviours.

Vo312 o R TP

BMAEBIFET REBEIHMLBRHE D]
(TvsDl) » G EEETHRBEESR

1. BFEH - UIMBEFREEENTER
NMEHEZER - BERTE  REHEZNR
BREM °

2. RIFEBE - FIERIFNERBRRIER £
ETIEKE  HESFHEE -

3. BEAX - RESERENBRBERER
BRZE - EE - -3 JERMA -

4. RPUBERES - FEERKY  SREBHES
S5IET » AIBERE - ABRFMHRRE -

5. HEEWME - BRIIAESE  ERAFE
T EHEERE -

6. BHEZH - EBEE BRIFEERE
RERCE  BOEHEBERQAFER -

REABIA T 1B~ URBESIERIIABZE -
KEEERA T RIFERITEVSD —2 - FTEH
ABES 1R ZEZ VSDIZH - fEEEB HETIF
Z[5] VSD R » LU R F 8 /R B IE [] VSD 1773 1 &
T
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Board of Directors

The general management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board. The Board has established various committees to
carry out specified functions assigned by the Board of Directors
which require specialised areas of expertise. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day management power of the
Company to the Executive Directors and Senior Management
of the Company. However, full delegation is not allowed for
some specific matters under the Companies Ordinance, the
Listing Rules, the CG Code or other regulatory requirements,
and the final decisions on those specific matters are required
to be taken by the whole Board. A defined schedule of matters
reserved for Board decisions has been adopted by the Board
as follows:

EEE
EEEREFNTARBIBBERTE YO K
YRRz EZEERETHESEZREFTARS

EEXABERE 2 ERE ESFZAEAQE
ZHTEERSEEEAEBREEEALNTAE
S5 o A RIE(RATRGI) - EHRA - B2
ERTHRAMREERRE - BOBESET
AHFEREXTMARE Y AHZRBESENE
HEMFHGEKRRTE - ESECHEMNNTHEZE
HR  JISAFESSFHREZSE

® Strategy and Direction

- R TT ]
I3() O @ Financial Controls, Compliance, Corporate Reporting and Risk Management
0, BSEE &8 EERREREE

@ Corporate Structure

l@%ﬁ@

3ERE

® Appointment of Directors, Chief Executive, Company Secretary and External

Auditors

ZEES - THAR - ARIRERIMNEZHAE

@ Corporate Governance Matters

THEERER

The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate
governance practices as well as the Company’s mission to
creating value for our shareholders. The Board is responsible
for developing the strategic directions for the Company and
continuous monitoring of the performance of the general
management of the Company. Strategic planning is one of
the Board’s important functions for aligning mission and vision
and sustaining long term business growth and lot of focus and
attention have been devoted to formulation and execution of
the strategic planning.

Strategic planning horizons are currently set for five years.
The Board has approved a Five Year Strategic Plan for the
fiscal years up to 2026/2027 in November 2021 and has
always been taking a proactive role in reviewing and revising
the Strategic Plan periodically in response to changes in the
macro economic, competitive business environment and
regulatory requirements. The Board is also actively to define
the Company’s sustainability strategies and practices, and
to prioritize and allocate resources to achieve the long-term
success of the business and its sustainability.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]
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Board Composition

EETHEM

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
ERERE

Executive Chairman

BITER

Dr. the Hon. Sir
David Kwok-po LI
ZEHES

Independent Non-executive Director

BUIFHTES

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
BERRLZL

Non-executive Director

SEMITER

Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND
K&

Independent Non-executive Director

BAFRITES

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
PEMES L

Executive Director and
Group Chief Executive Officer
WITEFEREITRAR

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
BEAKE

Non-executive Director

JEITER

Mr. Anthony John Liddell
NIGHTINGALE
RERKE

Independent Non-executive Director

BYIFRITESR

Mr. Eugene LYE
BRLEE

Executive Director

HiTE=S

Ms. May LO
BHXZ+

Non-executive Director

JEMITER

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH
&

Independent Non-executive Director

B IFRITES

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG
EET L

Independent Non-executive Director

BMIFMTESR
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The designation, position and brief biographical information BESCHE  BURBEARBLEERESE
of each Director, together with the relationship amongst EEAE TERFHIERRE ZBEESHIINAK
each other, Senior Management or Substantial or Controlling FHRIESERSEEEAS] — o It &5
Shareholder are set out in the “Directors and Senior EEUERBEZACRREE 25 RE T B A
Management” section in this Annual Report. In addition, a AL R AR A B85 www.vitasoy.com o

list containing the names of the Directors and their roles and
functions has been published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at www.vitasoy.com.

Designation B 7

N S ——
Independent Non-executive Non-executive Directors Executive Directors
Directors FHITES HITES
BMFHITES

Gender 17l

Female Male
|==]

Age Group F##E 5l

41-50 51-60 61-70 Over 70
7080k

Tenure of Office (Years) 8 ()

.
7

1-8 Over9
9Ll E

e Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]
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Directors’ Core skills, expertise and experience

EECIERE SEAARER
Accounting,
Audit,
Finance, Risk
management Manufacturing
General  Et - Bit» Food and Project
Management BER Legal technology Marketing ~ Management
Name i3 RAER RRER i BB mEkR tERERERE
Executive Chairman TR
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BREtE
Independent Non- BUFHTES
executive Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-  ZEIEE+ *

po L
Mr.Jan P. S, ERLUND

Mr. Anthony John Liddell
NIGHTINGALE

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG
Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
Ms. May LO

Executive Directors

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI

Mr. Eugene LYE

JanP. S, ERLUNDEA
L

Paul Jeremy BROUGHZ 4
BEYEL
FHTER

BERLE
BehltE
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Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is pivotal VNN
in good corporate governance and board effectiveness. The
Board believes that the Company has effective mechanismsin
place to ensure independent views and input from any director
of the Company are conveyed to the Board for enhancing an
objective and effective decision making. The governance
framework and mechanisms are under regular review by the

EETHUM
RAEZSRUMERFEEEARES
ENEHERER - ESSMHE - ARFERYE
MEFTREADAENESNEVERRER
REAEETESS  BURIRENEBMEN R
& cEFEEBAFMIERREEENELSE
JAIERR MR DIRAKNY - HFMRIEEEE
ﬁF—?__Enﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂE TUAT R -

Board, through its Remuneration and Nomination Committee
(the “R & N Committee”), to ensure their effectiveness. The R &
N Committee had performed the review of such mechanisms

in June 2022 as follows:

Key Features or Mechanisms

FERSRETLF

Implementation and Review of Effectiveness

BT RABET R

Number of Independent Non-executive Directors
(INEDs)
BIYFHTESAH

The R & N Committee to assess and confirm independence of
INEDs
FHRREES ST A RER B FHTESNE LM

e Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]

Five out of the eleven directors are INEDs which is near
to half of the total Board members and also exceeds
the Listing Rules requirement for INEDs to make up at
least one third of the Board.
T—E2EETEREABIUFPITES  BEEEIHE
BYN—¥ TEBLMRAREB LI TESLES
BAEBL=DZ—MER -

Nearly half of the Board members are INEDs which
ensure that independent views could be heard and be
thoroughly considered during the Board meetings and
decision making by the Board.
MYBESERERBUFYTES  BREESSSE
RESSRAKBRTEARNRAIZEHLZER -

Chairpersons of major Board Committees are INEDs.

TEEERSEITFEYRBIUFYTES -

The R & N Committee assesses the independence of
a candidate for a new INED appointment and also
the continued independence of existing INEDs on
an annual basis. All INEDs are required to confirm in
writing annually their compliance of independence
requirements as set out under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

TR IR EEE SN EB LN TESREANEY
M URSFEREBUFNTESNTEB LML -
BENFHTESASTFEARAHET LHRAEE3I3
1RFTBRAB I ERE o

Through the review by the R & N Committee and the
self-declaration of each INED, the Board could ensure
the independence of each INED.
BRFHWRREZEEENEARBTBIIHNTESNAR
B EXETRRSBUFHNTESNE LK -
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Key Features or Mechanisms

F RS RETLF

Implementation and Review of Effectiveness

BT RABET AR

Long Serving INEDs (with tenure for more than nine
years)

BESFNELFITES (EHBBIF)

Director Nomination Policy

EERABK

Directors Conflict of Interest Policy

EENEFHRECR

In respect of the re-election of an INED who has served
on the Board for more than nine years, the Board and
the R & N Committee would take account of additional
factors and reasons to justify why they consider the
long serving directors are still independent so as to
ensure independent views and comments are sought
from long serving INEDs.
REEZIHESTONFNBEILFATESTS EFT
HFHWEREZEENERTAEEREHBEEIRZF
MESDABY - EMBRRITBERETSFNE LT
EENBLBHEER -

The Policy sets out the selection and nomination criteria
and procedures for appointment/re-appointment
of Directors. Independence is one of the factors to
be considered for appointment/re-appointment of
Directors, in particular for INED appointment.
ZHREEERE EFERESNTIERREZEURE
FeoBUMREZREMR ENEFEES (REARBLEH
TES) WEZZ— -

The R & N Committee would take account of the
independence factor in accordance with the Policy
before making recommendations to the Board for
approval of the appointment/re-appointment of
INED.

FHRREZEENESSRIMARE EFEEEY
FHITESNREZRR  REZBREEBIMREE -

The Company has policy and procedures in place to
avoid any potential conflict of interests and not to
weaken the objectivity and integrity of the Board for
decisions making. Under the Policy, any Director has
to declare his/her directorships outside the Company,
interests in controlling company, public office
appointment and any other interests that might be
considered prejudicial to his/her independence and
has to declare his/her interests in any transaction in
which he/she may have interests and abstain from
voting on such transaction.
ARBEHERREREFUARREEENZEGR - BF
SHRESTARNTEMERAGNT - REBEZBEKE - 7
—UESHARBRANARBUININESHE - RERD
AR ARG RAEMTEMAERZARERAE L
PRV - WARREAATEEETNENEMRES PHE
@ WHZRFIHERE -
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Key Features or Mechanisms

F RS RETLF

Implementation and Review of Effectiveness

BT RABET AR

Open Board Culture
FREANEEE L

No equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements to INEDs

BUFATESARERTERAENEENRAEZN S

Access to independent professional advice

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]

INEDs in family businesses will generally play a more
active role in corporate governance area. Our Board
culture under the leadership of Executive Chairman,
encourages questions and challenges from Directors
in particular from INEDs who may hold different views
from the Executive Directors and Senior Management
and their comments and concerns will be closely
followed up and addressed by the Executive Directors
and Senior Management.
FHREETNBYFHTEE-—RENAAE LN EEE
BERBENER - EHTEIFEET  BMNESEX
tHBES (CERBYFHTES) REBERERE
REMEHEPTESERSEEEASHEIFDEE  MH
TEEREEEBASKBIRERBARENERRE
J8e C

Directors fees payable to Directors, including INEDs,
are fixed fees without any discretionary element nor
they are remunerated with equity-based awards.
Directors Fees are also determined by the R & N
Committee and the Board with reference to the roles
and responsibilities taken up by the Director and
benchmarking against peers.

BNEE (BEBUFATES) NESHESREEHR
BoUWEEANERERE  mMASTEEEUREASERN
®E ESHRSTHFINRREEESHESS2RES
FAENACRBEURTREEMEE -

External independent professional advice is available
to all Directors, including INEDs, whenever deemed
necessary.

NERE  RES (BEBMFHTES) JUEEN
HEUEXER -

With prior consultation with the Chairman of the Board,
Directors would be reimbursed for any professional
fees in relation to their fulfilment of the roles and
responsibilities.

EEAHEERIEAAER  ESURHEEABITRER
BEREENENTEXER -
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Key Features or Mechanisms

F RS RETLF

Evaluation of Director’s independence mechanisms

ATEESNE S

The Board, through its Remuneration and Nomination

Implementation and Review of Effectiveness
AT R R

All Directors are encouraged to express freely their
independent views and constructive challenges during
the Board/Board Committees meetings.
EMBBFAESTESE EXZE2TF LAMRE
HBUSRAREERMZER -

External board evaluation process or internal
process conducted by the Company Secretary on a
confidential basis will help assess the effectiveness
of the independence mechanism by identifying
any potential vulnerable weaknesses for further
improvement.
IBESSTERFRAL A AUNTETHRERNDTER
9B BT L B BB IR AR - BRIEEER R ZENR
EE—TBGE

EFSCEBHFMRRESZEERTRAR -

Committee, had reviewed and considered that the abovesaid
key features or mechanisms are effective in ensuring that
independent views are available to the Board.

Board Composition and Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out the
objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving the
diversity of the Board in June 2013. The Board diversity will
be achieved through a number of factors, including but not
limited to experience, professional qualification, knowledge,
gender, ethnicity and age. The Board Diversity Policy has
been updated on 22nd March 2022 to expressly include
the disclosure of targets and timelines for achieving gender
diversity at Board level and a few enhancement initiatives
as introduced by the amended CG Code. The Board Diversity
Policy has been published on the Company’s website. The
Remuneration and Nomination Committee will review this
policy annually and monitor the implementation to ensure
continued effectiveness and compliance with regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practices.

FRFERRHIET AN RRESETRES
MER e

ESEREANRS L

EEZEN-Z-ZF - ARMESEHESZ T
X ETHIESERESZTCHENURE
HERENEBREZ -EEEZTEEB—F
JIREER  BREEFRNER  EXEK A
W MR BIRKFR c EEEMEZ TILEE
ERZFIZFZRSTZHEH - UHARAA
BREBRESEREMIZ ULz BEERER
® R-EEBITEEERTAAMERZEL
Bt - EEEHEZ TEBREHERA RN
U HFMRIEEREE S BB FRIZBRRESR
HYT  BREAFEZRBIUARFSEEERR
REFEEERER
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Board appointment and renewal have been, and will continue
to be, made based on merit as well as complementing and
expanding the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board
as a whole. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee
reviews the progress on achieving measurable objectives for
gender and age diversity annually and review such objectives,
whenever applicable to ensure it leverages diversity to
contribute to the achievement of the Company’s strategic
objectives. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee
has established the measurable objectives for achieving
gender and age diversity up to the year of 2024/2025. As at
the year ended 31st March 2022, progress in achieving the
objectives are:

18%" set up for the years up to 2024/2025.

a4
U
Gender S E@.

=33

Age age 67-70” set up for the years up to 2024/2025.

£705] 2BE -

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee has reviewed
and targeted to maintain the current level for female
representation of “not less than 18%” of the Board up to
2024/2025. However, the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee will continue reviewing the targeted female
representation % over time as and whenever is appropriate.

In considering the Board’s succession, the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee has already adopted a roadmap
for the succession plan. The Remuneration and Nomination
Committee would identify and select the potential candidates
for Directors in accordance with the Company’s Directors
Nomination Policy and may engage independent professional
search firm to identify potential candidates for Independent
Non-executive Directors.

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]

RZB-— ZT-FE > aHRKREE18.2% I

ARRARFDESTERES Tz » WRBT
BRESEoRVEE - BB RERERBHE
WA EBEBRBIZIREN ZNAURESHE R
RESTER K HBRERAEL -
FREZESENEEFRIEZERMIRFRS T
LA EERZEEWERFBRFNZERZ

LR BURRER A 2 T BBV E A A B 2 R
B -FHRREEES2CHEBE—_2-0N/
—ECAFEEFMBIRFRSZ TN ER
B -REBEE-ZT-_F=A=1t—-HLFER:

EYZEEBRZEENT

Female representation during the year of 2021/2022 was 18.2% which has achieved the target of “not less than

ERE-FT- "B _RFEMET [FDR18%]

Average age of the board members during the year of 2021/2022 was 67 which has achieved the target of “average

Fir REZBZ— /ZZB-_FE BEENENTHFRA6THR  UBENE_2_ “Z-_HFEMEF [67

FHRREEREECRNYRNESENESS
LB [ RDR18%] 2BBKF  EEZZE
I/ ZERRFE RN FMREREES
(ES) FEBNZERRERZBEDL -

HEBESSCHEAR  FHRRESZESECERK
MEETTRZRAEOE - FHRREBSEESSHRE
ARBESREFRYERREEEAZR X7
EERBVEREENRNYCEEBFNTE
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance EERTBRAESERE

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability AAR AR AR ESRITHRAERE-S - —
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company for F+A—HEZZ-__FhA=1THLEHENE
the period from 1st October 2021 to 30th September 2022. ERITHABEERE -

Changes in Major Appointments and Other FEZIRHEMESHEIE 2EE)

Directorships

Changes in Directors’ Information during the year ended 31st REBE-ZE-__F=A=+—HLEFEREBER
March 2022 and up to the date of this Annual Report are set FHRAMIL CEEERSEBHIINT :
out below:

Changes in Major Appointments and Other Directorships

FERERHMERRER

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE

- ceased to be the chairman of The Friends of Uppingham School on 9th September 2021.
= ceased to be director of Mandarin Oriental Hotel Group on 1st December 2021.

= ceased to be non-executive director of Prudential plc on 27th May 2022.

EEE?&E

- AZZEZ—F 1A N BEE The Friends of Uppingham School ZEfE ©

= \ZE - -F+-A-HBMENERSBEEBZES -

- REBICEIASTEABERBERRBRARZFNITES -

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH

= appointed as an independent non-executive director of Guoco Group Limited on 8th November 2021.
= ceased to be director of The Hong Kong Club Foundation Limited.

Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4

- REBZ-F1+-ANBRZEARBEEEEERABDZBIFHITES -

- BHEThe Hong Kong Club Foundation Limited Z #5 o

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG

= ceased to be independent non-executive director of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited on 23rd June
2021.

E?—E#Tﬁi

- REEC-FXRACHCSHRMIEZETSEBEZERERARNZBIUFHTES -
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Executive Chairman and Group Chief MITEREREETERAR

Executive Officer

The roles and responsibilities of Executive Chairman and Group HITEFEREETRASCACGRBEDERER
Chief Executive Officer are clearly defined and separate with ERED  REERETVFERE  BRIFNE
a very few overlapping of roles and responsibilities in the areas BE URRELECERFFLIERHES
of promoting sustainable development, ensuring stakeholder HZAGRBELHHES -

communication, and promoting corporate culture and uphold
of integrity and honesty.

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO,
Executive Chairman

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI,
Group Chief Executive Officer

S R VT
ey EWTREH
« provides leadership to the Board e . formulates the Group’s strategic
+ ensures compliance with good Z!C'nst_underftt:e Sérotei!c
corporate governance practices « promotes social |re<.: lons of the Executive
and procedures responsibility goals and Chairman

long term sustainability implements the strategies and
development policies approved by the Board

sets strategic directions for the
Group

ensures effective leads day to day management
stakeholder communication of the Group

monitors Board effectiveness

promotes a culture of openness
and active contribution amongst
directors

promotes corporate culture promotes and develops the
of accountability, integrity business and interests of the
and honesty Group

provides continuous guidance
and mentoring to the Group CEO

provides monthly management

sEtEs 3 mRAjE
EFHARTARRRETS updates to the Board

R
- FHEER . BRI B AN AR IR S R E S )
BRETRFLREARARESE oo Dol Pk R B

. BAEEHEERE S el  EEEEEIE D FH R

. ERESEAN . EEAEE AR EE
 REEERM BN G S ; . RERBRAEEEG RS
Ty e . BAREERIERRI 2 EEEE
i P

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]



Corporate Governance Report
TEREBRS

Board Proceedings

The Board met five times in FY2021/2022 to discuss and
approve the Group’s long term strategic plan; to review and
monitor the financial and business performance of the Group
and each of its operating units; to consider and approve
annual budget, the financial reports; to review and approve
sustainability report and various corporate governance and
sustainability related policies and practices; and to monitor
and review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
performance.

The Board and its Committees are supplied with full and
timely information in relation to the Company, which enables
them to discharge their responsibilities. There are established
procedures for Directors to seek independent professional
advice for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities,
where appropriate, at the Company’s expenses.

Directors have made active participation in the Board
meetings, Board Committees meetings and the Annual
General Meeting during the year.

ESERRF

EEEgN -2 R _URFERNBREA
REE AmREAEE RBRKRE . &

BEREEFAEERE ELEHZHM%EZ%%?;E
B ZRNRENFERERMBRE S FHEM
BEUFERRRERECXERRUFERREM
BB ERERER  YERRERAEERR
EERBTZMA -

EFERHZESERESARAMBEHERE
# LETHE AL ACERERFHREES
HEENERT  RETHRBEREEMEHAE
NEXER  BHBHARENA -

R EFYRG2HESEER  ESFEEE
SERBRBEAE -

2021 2022
Apr \YEW, Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
A FHA /\)EJ + A )\}EJ LA +A +—A +=A —)EJ —A
ESG ESG BM
RN AGM AC RN AC
AC
BM Board Meeting EEEEH ESG Environmental, Social and Governance Committee Meeting
RiE - HEREAZESSR
RN Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meeting HEiRIEGZEEEHE
AGM  Annual General Meeting REBEFAE
AC Audit Committee Meeting BZZER8E
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RIBZ— “E_HREE > SEENES
SEE FHWRRESZEESE  BRZEER
EORE UHERERZEEEEENBREREFEKX

Attendance records of the Directors at the Board Meetings,
Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meetings, Audit
Committee Meetings, Environmental, Social and Governance

(ESG) Committee Meetings and Annual General Meeting BHETHERIAOT ¢
during FY2021/2022 are as follows:
Meetings Attended/Held
RS/ EERY
Remuneration
and Nomination
Committee ESG Committee Annual General Overall
Board EMR  AuditCommittee R HER Meeting  Attendance Rate
Name #4 gz Rizag EiZeg e H hREEAE BRtREE
Independent Non-executive BikHGEE
Directors
Dr.the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po Loy 5/5 220 33 N/A " 100%
TR
Mr.Jan . S.ERLUND JanP. S, ERLUND: & 5/5 22 33 N/A 1 100%
TR
Mr. Anthony John Liddel el 5/5 22 33 220 17 100%
NIGHTINGALE
Mr.Paul Jeremy BROUGH Paul Jeremy BROUGHEE 5/5 22 3/30 N/A n 100%
TR
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG BEYEL 5/5 22 N/A N/A n 100%
TR TR
Non-executive Directors FuEs
Ms. Yvonne Mo-fing LO BRI 5/5 22 N/A N/A n 100%
TER TR
Mr,Peter Tak-shing LO BEAtE 5/5 22 N/A N/A i 100%
TER TR
Ms. May LO Bligt 5/5 22 N/A 22 i 100%
TER
Executive Directors Hres
M. Winston You-fi LO ERiit 5/5 2> 330 2 1/1¢ 100%
(Bvecutive Chaiman) (#72F)
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI EEELE 5/5 220 3/30 22 11 100%
Mr. Eugene LYE ke 5/5 N/A N/A 1N n 88%
TER TR
Average Attendance of EEEfETAtEE 99%
the Board Members
Group Chief Financial Officer SEERmRLE
Ms. lan-hong NG RRILE 5/50 N/A 3/30 N/A 110 N/A
TR TR TR
Group Senior Director,Internal SERDE RARER
Audit and Risk Management Bt
Mr. Terence Chiu-kit CHOW gL N/A N/A 330 N/A N/A N/A
TR TER TR TR TR
Group Director, Sustainability SETREERLE
Mr. Simeon Sing-hymn CHENG PERiE N/A N/A N/A 220 N/A N/A
TR TER TR TR TR
External Auditors it
KPHG EEpaERT N/A N/A 3/30 N/A HU N/A
TR TER TR TR

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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Notes:

(a)  Chairman of the Board

(b)  Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
(c)  Chairman of the Audit Committee

(d) Chairman of the ESG Committee

(e)  Chairman of the Annual General Meeting

) Attendance by invitation

The Company acknowledges any General Meeting is one of
the important forums to engage our shareholders. In the 2021
Annual General Meeting, all Directors, including Executive
Chairman, the Chairman of the Board Committees and the
External Auditors attended the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions. Overseas Directors attended the
Annual General Meeting through video conferencing due to
travel restrictions during the period.

During the year under review, the Executive Chairman
communicated with the Independent Non-executive Directors
on various occasions without the presence of other Directors
and Senior Management.

Board Committees

The Board has established a Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, an Audit Committee, an Executive Committee
and an ESG Committee with specific terms of reference.

a) EIEEIF
b) HHWRREEZESEIERE
o EBREEEIR

d BRE HEREARAZSEIRE
e) RRBFREERE
f)  FERHE

RRBERAEARRASERAREBNEER
Be— RIZB--—FRRBFRE 2RE=S
BREITER  SESRESTFERINEZEM
HEHEASARERRIER - FEBINES
HARERERNRESEBREERHERRE
FERE -

REEFE  STEFEEHMESRSEEE
ABTEZZBRT  RAERER T B I
TTESETEE -

EEZEE
EEEBRTCRUFHRIESEEE  BRES
® HWTZEERRES HAREAESR
ARBE B ARRE -

Exg

Board of Directors

Remuneration and
Nomination Committee

M NIEEEES

Executive Committee
BITEES

Audit Committee

ESG Committee
RIE HEBRERZES

ERERES
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Remuneration and Nomination Committee

FHRREEES

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI

(Chairman)
ZEEHT
(X&)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(B HHITESE)

Mr. Peter Mr. Anthony
Tak-shing LO John Liddell
BEARE NIGHTINGALE
(Non-executive REEEE
Director) (Independent
(FHITEE) Non-executive
Director)
(BUHHITEE)

Mr.JanP.S. Mr. Paul Jeremy Dr. Roy Chi-ping Ms. Yvonne Ms. May LO
ERLUND 54 BROUGH 5%t 4 CHUNG Mo-ling LO BHEZL
(Independent (Independent BEBEFET BRRLZTL (Non-executive

Non-executive Non-executive (Independent (Non-executive Director)
Director) Director) Non-executive Director) (FEHITEE)
(BUHBITESE) (BUHHITESE) Director) (FHITEE)
(B HHTEE)

Major responsibilities

FERE

to consider and approve the remuneration packages of Executive
Directors and Senior Management of the Group, including salaries,
benefits in kind and bonuses; bonus schemes and other long-term
incentive schemes, including share option, share award and other plans;
ERAEEINTESRSEBEEASZHFMERGRGE  BEFE BEPFER
AL ; TEALST IR At RED BT &) - BIEERE - RORBREMEE

to review the design of all employee share schemes and to administer
all aspects of the share schemes in accordance with the applicable rules
and requirements;

B FARERM T BNRALRBEARREREEFBRMDEE

to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including the
skills, knowledge, experience, gender and age) of the Board;

BNEEEF 2B RE @Bl RKEZ T - EPEERRE - H& - &5 -
MHRIRFREFENZ T

to review the effectiveness of Board Diversity Policy and Director
Nomination Policy;

BNESERESTBRRESRABR 2B

to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors and
to review the annual confirmation on their independence;

EREFHNTES RN RERNEB M FERR

e Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]
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TEERBRSE

to review Director’s time commitment;

ERESMANHNERE

to identify and determine the measurable objectives for achieving board
diversity and monitor any progress made in achieving such measurable
objectives;

NeRBEEERESEREZ LA BEERERESZEIERERZ
EE

to recommend to the Board on appointment or re-appointment of and
succession planning for Director and Group Chief Executive Officer;

HRESEREETRAR . ZANERRETTENESSREES |

to review and assess the adequacy and appropriateness of corporate
culture statement; and

B RAHME R BAREEHNRE

to review the effectiveness and alignment of corporate culture with the
corporate governance compliance functions.

MANEE L 2R EE L EPEERSRBRERT —2

Work done during and for
FY2021/2022

RERARBE-FT=_— “F_—

B R {E 2 THE

reviewed, discussed and approved the remuneration package of Senior
Management including the Executive Directors and Senior Management
of the Group by reference to the individuals’ job responsibilities and
performances, industry benchmarks and prevailing market conditions;
WA MR AESEEEAS (BREAEEHTESRSEEEAS) M
ERANGEMS - BPES2EEBA T ZBERRE  AEKFRBITHERE

reviewed and approved the discretionary bonuses and the grant of share
options and share awards, having given due consideration to both the
Group’s financial performance and the individuals’ performances during
the year in accordance with the performance-based compensation
policy recommended by an independent consultant;

RIEBVEBRER  URRABEZHFWNEEK  EX0ZRAKE ZMHBRR
REBALFRAZBARRE @ RAERBRBIIBEAARREBRERR
72

reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the letters of
appointment of the Executive Chairman, Group Chief Executive Officer
and three Independent Non-executive Directors;
EHREZESEMENTERE  fETBERR=EBUFIITESZER
PH
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of the Board;

executive Directors;

and

Terms of reference of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee have been amended in March 2022 to expressly
include its authority and responsibility specified under the
amended CG Code and to elaborate the Committee’s roles
in reviewing and approving any performance related pay
scheme including any employee share schemes. The Terms
of reference have been published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent professional firms, if
necessary, to fulfill its roles and responsibilities.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee held two
meetings during FY2021/2022. Each member’s attendance
record during the year is shown on page 44 of this Annual
Report.

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]

- pESERE-E-— =

= reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity, including the
skills, knowledge, professional qualification, experience, gender and age

- BREST2HRE AR ARRZRL BRESHEEZTEREE - AE
HERER L MRIRFRS

= reviewed the Board Succession Plan and its Road Map;

-  ENESSREEHARERREDE

= reviewed the measurable objectives for achieving Board diversity;

-  FHERESEZSTHTAERR

= reviewed Director’s time commitment to perform his/her duties;

-  ERESETHEBEMRANKRE

= assessed and confirmed the independence of all Independent Non-
- AMALEREREVFPITESZELM

= made recommendation to the Board for Directors’ Fees for FY2021/2022;
S_MHEEZESHE R

= reviewed various Corporate Governance related policies and mechanisms
in response to the amended CG Code and Listing Rules.

- HEEKBITEEEERTAR EWRRRNZREEEREBBR RS -

FRREREECHEEECR S -2F=
RARER] - LR EESRBEETLXERT
BIFFRT A 2 O ME R AABEEE - W5+
MHPEESERT RUREMERRERE 2 #H
M=t &8 (RREEAEERGE)FZAE - BiE
HECDTIBRBRARADE 28k - FH# KR
FZEERRUARER  BERHBYEXEL
AzER (WFE)  UBTHABKEE -

FHRREZEEENR -2 TR UHRF
ERBTHMRAEE SRERFALFESHE 2R
BIIBNAFRFE44H ©
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Audit Committee EREES
Mr. Paul Jeremy
BROUGH %4
(Chairman)
(X&)
(Independent Non-executive
Director)
(BUHBITESE)
Dr. the Hon. Sir Mr. Jan P. S. Mr. Anthony
David Kwok-po LI ERLUND %4 John Liddell
ZEHERT (Independent Non-executive NIGHTINGALE
(Independent Non-executive Director) RERLE
Director) (BUHHTEE) (Independent Non-executive
(BUHHITESE) Director)
(BUHBITESE)

Major responsibilities

FERE

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the External Auditors and their audit
fees;

PN B 2 BIE - ENEERER - URKEZREMMESETERNES

SREEE

to meet with the External Auditors to discuss the nature and scope of the
audit;
BEMNERBMAS N RER T2 MEREE ;

to review the interim financial report and annual financial statements
before they are submitted to the Board;
ERXTFESSR - FHPHUBREREFHBRRE

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim review
and final audit, and any other matters the External Auditors may wish
to discuss, and review the External Auditors’ management letter and
management’s response;

RN T HERRFEEXBETRRCBERSHZRESR - REMH
fNERBE AR W 2 EE - UK BRI ZEAN 2 FX IR H AR R EE
EzEfE

to review the internal audit programs and to ensure co-ordination
between the Internal and External Auditors, assess the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems which
cover all material financial, operational and compliance controls, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Group;

ERNEE LT B LR ABTDEF A RIS BETRE 2 78 - LA R ERE
FREEARMT - $ERGREZETENEAREER NIMEZERF RN UK
BARANBEAHEREHER 2 XEREAEBARIFEE 21T ;
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= to conduct an annual review of the adequacy of staffing of the financial
reporting functions;

- HYBEBRBESIECETERRRRAETEER

= to review the whistleblowing policy and system for employees and those
who deal with the Company to raise concerns, in confidence about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters; and to ensure proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of those matters and for appropriate follow
up action;

- BRNAERLREENEREBRTHYHRE AMEERHEMBHEZTEE
TEETARUBIMRNZEBFHRREZS  BREEERFHZESER
HAFEY 2 AERRBEE ZIRETE |

= to review the effectiveness of the policy and system that promote and
support anti-corruption laws and regulations;

- BEMEEREERETERER ZBERR AR

= to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the External Auditors;

- FRERARNFEIELBMBRIEEAR

= to oversee and review the adequacy and effectiveness of relevant
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
procedures that have been in place;

-  EERRIRENEBEVY EERSHREEREREERFRERZAEN

= to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations to the Board;

- HERRSAAQAFRZEXEABRRRES  UEAESSREESR

= to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and Senior Management;
- BAREREERSEEEBABZIZIIRGESERR

= to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- BHRERAATEETERRESRESEIRERER

= to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to Directors and employees; and

- HE RERERERARESREEZTATAREGRTFMR R

= to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

- BEALTHEREATHZARBRLNLREARE NFEZHE -

e Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #ttBEIRREEER A A
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Work done during and for = reviewed the 2021/2022 preliminary interim results announcement;
FY2021/2022 interim financial report; preliminary annual results announcement and

REARB-T-_— "B annual financial statements with management and External Auditors,
BB EFR{E 2 T4E and recommended their adoption by the Board;

- CREEERMNEZEMEN T T _EENSPHEENE
FREIBI RS IS EEEEQAEURZENKRR  UEZRESETFUR
o

= reviewed with the Internal Auditor the Company’s internal control
systems and the periodic audit reports prepared by the Internal Auditor
and approved the 2021/2022 audit plan;

- BERANEFSMREAQBZABERRGRFHAEEHRER 2 FR
HoOWMETE - TR CFECERAR

= reviewed the Group Risk Report prepared by the Internal Auditor;
- ERdRRETMEREBERRE

= met with the External Auditors to discuss the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations prior to the commencement of the audit

work;
- REZIERBA  EIMNEREMEENRER I E2MERSBEURERS
£

= reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the External
Auditors;
- ERREZEEINELBET 2 BEER

= reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and non-audit services
provided by the External Auditors, together with their respective fees;

- EEMHUE FALHENERBEARMACEURFELREREEEANRE |

= reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
the staff of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting, risk management
and internal audit functions, and their training programs and budget;
effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function and compliance with
the CG Code;

- ERAKERSE - BBER - RREERADETHESMATEZER 8
TERRKRERRHA URBIREREBEAER | NEBAIFARAE 2K
AR EFERTFHERZER
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2012 which has been revised in March 2022 to incorporate
a few enhancement initiatives introduced by the amended

TERERBSE

reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and Senior Management;
ENESREEEEASEIIRFESXRE
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements;
FERARAELEREERESRCBRRESR
reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
Directors and employees;
EHNEARESRESZTATAIRSRFM
reviewed the status of compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report;
EREEEATRZERBRALNEEECRENFIEZKE
held private session with External Auditors in the absence of Executive
Directors and Senior Management; and
EHTESRSEBEEASTESZBER TEBEMNERBMEH
reviewed various Corporate Governance related policies and systems in
response to the amended CG Code and Listing Rules.
LB EEEATAR LW RAEMAZAEXEHBERRR AR

The Board has approved a Whistleblowing Policy in March A—E——FZP EESCHAERMEREK

% BB THZ AEHETUAAEES
G EEATRINFTIRE S BB - BE

CG Code. The main objective of the Policy is to provide
employees and external parties an open and unified reporting
channel and procedures to report any serious misconduct
or malpractice involving the Company and its employees
even on an anonymous basis. The Audit Committee has
been delegated with the overall responsibility for monitoring
and reviewing the implementation and effectiveness of the
Whistleblowing Policy.

e Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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The Company has adopted a Group Business Ethics Policy in
March 2020 to establish the general principles of business
ethical standards that all employees of the Company are
expected to follow in daily operation. Every employee is
required to undertake to adhere to this policy which includes
provisions dealing with conflict of interests, protection
and proper use of company assets, bribery and corruption,
dishonesty and fraudulent act as well as reporting procedures
for potential illegality and misconduct. The Company applies
zero tolerance to any violation of this policy and shall not
tolerate any illegal or unethical acts. The Audit Committee
has the overall responsibility for reviewing the internal control
system of anti-corruption.

During the year, no incident involving serious fraud or
misconduct have been received from employees nor external
parties which had or would have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position and overall operations. No
significant area of concern is noted on the implementation
and effectiveness of the Whistleblowing Policy and Group
Business Ethics Policy.

The Board has adopted a Corporate Governance Policy in
August 2012 to provide a basic framework for developing
the Company’s policies and practices to ensure alignment
of interests and expectations from our shareholders, the
investing public and other stakeholders. The Corporate
Governance Policy has been revised in March 2022 to
incorporate a few enhancement initiatives introduced by the
amended CG Code. The revised Policy has been published on
the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee reviews regularly the corporate
governance structure and practices within the Company and
monitors compliance fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been
amended in March 2022 to extend its authority and
responsibility to review the effectiveness of the policy and
system which promote and support anti-corruption laws and
regulations. Terms of reference have been published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
independent professional advice, if necessary, to discharge its
duties.

The Audit Committee met three times in FY2021/2022. Each
member’s attendance record during the year is shown on
page 44 of this Annual Report.

RZZZZ2HF=ZF ARACHEASEBHRER
HE  UHERRBFERENAELEEREE
TZEFERBEEN-—RFRR - BREELAK

HESZER  BREENGEER REREE
ERARBTYE  BEREES - THERRTFET
RER  URBHRELEERTETRZE
FF o RRABHNERZBRENERIEE - 8
TRBEMELERTERTS - BEREEEEAE
ABERIRETZAMEZRSL -

£ BERESRIMBALEESRBRERFF
FAETHAZEHMEIEHERT 2FHERR
REREEEREATE - NERBKRKEEB
FERBRZERRRA LW EHIRNEARE -

N—ZE-—FN\A EFECHRMNEXERR
R RAARAEHERREERSHELEAE
R EREGEERR - ARREERAEMEND
ENRREHRE - CEEBRBRN-ZB-_F=
RAEHER - IR A BRI REEATRIFMRS
ZEHEER - EBFTRREHERAQTH
Uk o

BEREEEEPIRFARDAZEEERRERE
BE

EEEH
B UFHEEFAEISREBR

EREZEEECHESENR "S- _F= AFHE
Al EAHBAORBE  BNERRFIEERER
REBZERER ZBERRZR SN - BifE
HECDTBERBXARADE 28 - EREES
éﬁhTﬁEﬁﬁ BEBIEXRER (WEFH
=) ITHRE -

BUEEER-2=— "R HREERT
B=ARE - SHBRFAHEEEY SE5IR
RAERE44E o
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) RIE -HEREREZER
Committee
Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE
(Chairman)
REESLE
(X&)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(BYFHITESE)
Mr. Roberto Mr. Winston Yau- Ms. May LO Mr. Eugene LYE
GUIDETTI lai LO BHELZT el k4
FEfEELLE BREXE (Non-executive Director) (Executive Director)
(Executive Director and (Executive Chairman) (HHITEE) (BITEE)
Group Chief Executive (BITERE)
Officer)
(BITEEEEH
T E)
Major responsibilities - to provide vision, long term guidance and report to the Board on Group-
TERES level sustainability goals, strategies and priorities;
- FHEEEEZURERRER XRRELREFEATESRMUES  RE
EERER ;

= to advise the Board on environmental and social risks of strategic
significance and provide anticipatory and mitigation plans;

- BEXEREECRRRUERBOESS/FELHEZLRMATER BB RBRE
2

= to review the Company’s sustainability performance against declared
KPIs (Key Performance Indices) and goals;

- RECEMZBERRBEEERESERIRQARDZAFERRRR |

= to examine the relevance of sustainability indices and the desirability of
inclusion;

- BETHERRESEHEBMEUARAAZSEREZSEL

- to review and approve Group-level sustainability related policies; and

-  FHRIUEREEEMNTHEBERABEER R

= to review and approve the Company’s sustainability reports.

- ERRIERDFIERRRS o

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]
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Work done during and for = reviewed and approved the Group’s 2021/2022 Sustainability Report;
FY2021/2022 - BERMERER-E-— T _FAHFERERE
mg;zigigj:é_g__ = reviewed and discussed the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
= Change (“IPCC”) Sixth Assessment Report (AR6) Climate Change 2021:
The Physical Science Basis, and its implications to the Company;
- BERIHBAERERZCEFNIZEES(IPCC) FRRMERE (REZ£2021
CERIZEER) o URHEAQFZHE

= reviewed the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
(“TCFD”) based climate scenario analysis for the Company, including the
methodology and results, provided strategic directions on the mitigation
and adaptation of climate change;

- BEARQXFERKEEETBERKETFAE(TCFD) AMEH ZRIZER D
o BEGTERER  REBEREERESC2BEELTM ;

= reviewed the Company’s progress and achievements in various external
ESG ratings and provided strategic direction on focus areas;

- BEARQXFRETIMBERER HERERTD L2ERRAMKREEREE
2RI @

= approved the proposed strategy and initiatives for community projects
in Mainland China market which are in line with the Rural Vitalization
Strategy to promote the Common Prosperity of farmers and rural areas;

- HERESENREEKPEALTISHEEE CERRKRES - #imEE
ERENHBEE®

= reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
the staff of the Group’s ESG functions, and their training programs and
budget; and

- ERAKERE  HEREARVENMZER BTEERERET RN - U
MBFIRERBEESE &

= approved the set of external sustainability targets under the Company’s
Sustainability Framework, to be achieved by 2025/2026.

- HUEARQFIIHERRER -RINMRASHERREER  ZEEEER
EoRH/ZRZREZAER

The Board-level ESG Committee continued to oversee our ESERRIZRE  HEREAZESHEER
sustainability issues, and to advise the Board on a range of BMPNUHERRSEE IR —RIEKRATM
strategy ESG topics which present risks and opportunities for EEEREMERMRE HEREREED
the Company. The ESG Committee also provided strategic EERELHEZR -RE HERERZEESRTA
long-term guidance on sustainability performance, goals and AFEERRE BEERELAEESHEEHRR
priorities. Please refer to our Sustainability Report for more MREEES - BEBRMRERRE - HERER
details of our efforts on material ESG topics. BREZITEFE  F2HURHERRRE -

Terms of reference of the ESG Committee has been published RIE HERELAZESCRESHECTIBRAE
on the Company’s website. DA ©
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Executive Committee

(Chairman)
BRIEXE
(€3:9)]

(BTEE)

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO

(Executive Chairman)

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
FERR L
(Executive Director and
Group Chief Executive Officer)
(BITEELEETHAAH)

Ms. lan Hong NG
REMZ+
(Group Chief Financial Officer)
(FEEEHEE)

Major responsibilities =

FERE

ZRENRERRE ©

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee of the Company or by shareholders in a general
meeting. Shareholders may propose a candidate for election
as Director in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company and the Director Nomination Policy. The
nomination procedures by shareholders have been published
on the website of the Company. Any Director who is appointed
by the Board shall retire at the next General Meeting.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and Code
Provision B.2.2 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, all Directors,
including Non-executive Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least every three years and one-third (or the
number nearest to but not exceeding one-third) of Directors
shall retire from office every year at the Company’s Annual
General Meeting.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]

to operate as a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board; and
- NE-REBZESEF HEREEZEE K

= to consider and approve any contract, transaction and arrangement and
exercise of powers and functions as conferred by the Board in relation to
day to day management of the Company.
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Director Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a Director Nomination Policy in March
2012 to set out the procedures and criteria for identifying and
selecting potential candidates for the appointment of new
Director/s as well as for considering the renewal of director
appointment. The Board has delegated to the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee the authority to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of, individuals nominated for directorship; assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and
make recommendations to the Board to the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

The Director Nomination Policy is intended to guide
the Remuneration and Nomination Committee when
recommending new director(s) and when deciding whether
to recommend that current Director(s) be re-elected. The
Committee will carefully consider the qualifications, skills,
experience, independence, gender and age diversity, time
commitments and contributions of any currently sitting
director before making a re-election recommendation to the
Company’s shareholders. Any shareholder of the Company
who is qualified to be present and vote at the general meeting,
may nominate one or more persons for election as a director
of the Company at any general meeting if the shareholder
complies with the director nomination provisions, including
without limitation the notice, information and consent
provisions under the Company’s Articles of Association or the
Listing Rules.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviews
the Director Nomination Policy, whenever appropriate, and
recommend to the Board for approval any amendments or
updates to the Policy from time to time.

The Director Nomination Policy has been published on the
Company’s website.

ESRBHEER

EFSECR-ZB--F-ARMNESREREE
ETHEIMERREERBEARTHEIESUR
ZRERVRIEZZAECEFRER - HMKE
ERESCEEZERBEUYECARBSEERR
REFEHENAL  UREROESSHERESR
BWREATHEES  BEBIEHTESH
Byt RAESRANEHZENESTSRY

EERAEREEREBNIEERRERSHE
BEERRAEERHFMRRERZESRMES -
ZESHEFHZRERAMES2ERE  Hg &
B B MHRIRFRZ UL HENHIE
Bk ERME  AAQAFRRELERRZE - EW
HEERHERRASYNE LREZARAR
R JEBREFREEHRI (BEETRRARQ
AERAAN EHRAUET Z2BE - BAKT
%) 2BERTREMRRASLRE-EBHN
EATBAERRAES -

FRRERESHEEENRERNESRAR
F o WTERRESSEBIEEMER] REHZ
BUR o

ESRAFKCHERAR DR
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Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Induction programs are arranged for any newly appointed
Directors for provision of information which would assist him
or her in understanding his or her role as a director as well
as building an understanding of the nature of the Company,
its business, products and markets. On appointment, new
Directors will also be given an induction program kit outlining
the responsibilities and duties as Directors under various
regulatory requirements. The induction kit also contains the
Board procedures, including the Terms of Reference of the
Board Committees. Directors are provided with “A Guide
on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and
“Guidelines for Directors” issued by The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors as guidelines on the general principles of duties
of directors and a “Code of Conduct for Directors” to prevent
any conflict of interest.

The Company also arranges continuous professional
development program to Directors at the expense of the
Company. The Company Secretary provides regularly to
Directors information about the enrolilment of external
training courses and seminars as well as legal alerts and
articles which are relevant for Directors to keep them up-to-
date on any legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
requirements and also professional practices in a dynamic
business world. The program would help refresh Directors’
knowledge and skills in performing their roles, functions and
duties of directors of a listed company.

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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In November 2021, the Company organised an annual in-
house training program for our Directors covering the topical
issue of how technology and social media marketing promotes
e-commerce business.

The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous
training and development to Senior Management, which
enables them to boost their skills and knowledge to re-
evaluate their roles with a newly informed perspective
and in this highly competitive consumer product market.
Senior Management is encouraged to participate in various
continuous professional development programs and other
training courses at the expense of the Company.

All Directors and Senior Management have provided to the
Company Secretary their training records for FY2021/2022
which have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The average training hours of the Directors and Senior
Management during the year were 50 hours and 47 hours
respectively.

Directors’ Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2021/22 - by topic

EEN-Z2-— /ZZE__UBEESMZ
B — REEDM

10/0 e 360/0
Accounting / Finance / Tax i

a5t U, B

Global Business / Forum

R, wiE

Legal / Regulatory /
Governance

B CERER

10% e .

Innovation and
Technology
AR

17% - E

Director’s
Duties and
Governance

EEHAENRESR

Company Business

ENGIES S

R-B-—F+—F  AAARESRHFEN
MIBRR - BRAE R XSRS HNTRE
BT HHEHITHE -

%%‘%/ﬂ‘ﬂﬂ BESFHINZEEBERTS L &

BRI ERESEEEASHEERE RS
?%ELEHEE%‘EEZ%DEEQ C WA RHARAEERN
EREEECHE A RASRSEEEAES
HEERARREXBRRRERAMEIIRE - &
RBAREZA °

REENSEEEAECHATNRESEERRFS
R-B-— /—ZE-_BREE2EEE i

EHENZESEE BEENaBEEAENK
FRFIEZIFED B A S50/ NEFR 47 /1NEF o

BEE 2R

Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2021/22 - by type

EEN -/ “ZE__BBREESMZ
B — BRSO

- 64%
Readings
R

16% e

External Courses /
Seminars /
Workshops
SNERRE
Mg TS

20 O/o .................... s

In-house Training

AEREE
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Senior Management’s Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Senior Management in
FY2021/2022 - by topic

EEEEAEBR-ZE-- /ZE__URFEZMZ
B — BB

Company Business

ESNGES S

Cyber
Technology
BRI

15% ...

Regulatory /
Governance /
Sustainability
EHBRS
ARFERRE

16%

Audit / Accounting / Finance / Tax Market / Business/
it 'R U B Product Development
wiE K ERERE

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]

BEEEAR BT

Analysis of training attended by Senior Management
in FY2021/2022 - by type

BEEEABR-E-— /ZE_BRFESMZE
I — BER DM

Readings In-house Training

B P pEmE

3 50/0 ....................

External Courses /
Seminars /
Workshops
SRR g
Ty




Corporate Governance Report
TEREBRS

Responsibilities of Directors

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Annual Financial Statements
for FY2021/2022 are prepared on a going-concern basis. All
the new accounting standards and policies adopted by the
Company have been thoroughly discussed and approved at
the Audit Committee before adoption by the Board.

The Group has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting than the
required standards set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries were made
of all Directors and they have confirmed compliance with the
required standard set out in the Code for the year ended 31st
March, 2022. A similar code has also been adopted by the
Group for the specified group of employees who may possess
or have access to price sensitive/inside information.

Confirmations have been received from all Directors that
they have provided sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company during FY2021/2022. Directors have
also disclosed to the Company their interests as director and
other office in other public companies and organisation in a
timely manner, and have regularly reported to the Company
Secretary on any subsequent changes.

Evaluation of the Board and the Executive
Chairman

The Board believes that the evaluation of the effectiveness
of the Board and its Executive Chairman is an essential
requirement of good corporate governance and has since
FY2011/2012 adopted the Recommended Best Practice
under the CG Code of conducting regular Board evaluation
exercises.

The objective of the Board evaluation is to assist the Board
in identifying and addressing its strengths and weaknesses,
and highlighting the Board’s expectations for itself and areas
for further improvement. As part of this evaluation process,
the Executive Chairman is also evaluated on whether he has
adequately and effectively performed his roles and fulfilled
his responsibilities as the Chairman of the Board. Board
evaluation is usually conducted on an annual basis.

EERME
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A formal evaluation of the Board and the Executive Chairman
was conducted for FY2021/2022. The self-evaluation
exercise was concluded in June 2022 with the assistance of
Nestor Advisors = A Morrow Sodali Company, a global leader
on corporate governance advisory services. The engagement
of an external consultant to support the process for this
year enabled the application of dedicated expertise on
evaluating board effectiveness, increased the objectivity and
independence of the process, and permitted the utilisation of
fit-for-purpose board evaluation platforms and tools.

During the evaluation process, questionnaire with scoring
was used for collecting scores as well as opinions from all
the Directors. The questionnaire included 45 statements for
Board evaluation and 8 statements for Executive Chairman
evaluation. Completed evaluation questionnaires were
submitted on a confidential basis to the external consultant
via its web-based survey platform. The external consultant
then prepared a summary report of the aggregate evaluation
results for review and discussion with the Board. On the basis of
this, action points and plans for enhancing Board effectiveness
were developed. The diagram below summarises the whole

evaluation process:

RARCHAESERBTEEET T~/
T _HREEZENTE BEEERELM
KIS AR RIS 2D 8 Nestor Advisors — A
Morrow Sodali Company##BIT » BRFHC
REZBZZFRARK c RARRAKTFEEZRES
IR B R AT RE  EREBARNER
SEMBEANTIZSESTE2NA  LiRABRE
ZEBMRBIME  BEEEURAREBE A RS
JEENNESETEFAURIA -

RIFEBES  RAORFRAFIBELAEEE
ESWEFIRER  ETEFE4SBETEES
BB K 8 IRV EHITER 2B TR 25T
EREEURBEABBHNERESFTE2ZXTFH
HEER - MNP EE ARG ST ERERBRAE
HE UE2RTFESSHERERFTH - FILER
b WHERAEESERN TR RS -
AT Bl AR AP EBIE

N =}

Approach to the . 5
PP Questionnaire

E\C/)glr:‘ai?;fr; agreed and Evaluation and
agreed completed report
- . BEAREARE e R
SEEe > :
ot b ok RS S )
APER TR

Review of Action points
findings with the and plan
Board developed
HE e EH HEITBEE
BEBR Keatal
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All Directors actively participated in the whole evaluation
process. Themes evaluated include the following:

Evaluation of the Board

PREFVRESNARENERRE - TE2TE
BEWT

Evaluation of Executive Chairman
HITEE ZTE

ExasdE

. Strategic direction, planning and oversight .
KugHE - REREES

. Risk management and internal controls .
EREE R AEBEE

. Strategic human resources issues .
KA D EREE

. Sustainability focus and drive .
EEREFUFERRE

. Board profile and composition .
EESRERAR

. Board dynamics .
EEEBRE

. Board meeting processes, procedures and .
support
EEEER6E  BFRRXE .

. Relationship with the management
HEEEASNER

. Quality of information flows .
ERRBHNER

. Board view on Board Committees
EESHESZEENER .

The self-evaluation concluded that, overall, the Board is
effective in leading the Group. The Board is perceived to be
engaged and committed, work together well, and provide an
appropriate oversight role. The exercise provided a number
of recommendations to further enhance Board effectiveness.
These pertained the Board oversight of strategic planning, the
succession planning process for the Board, Board oversight of
company culture, enhancing Board dynamics, and information
flows between Board meetings. The Executive Chairman
adequately and effectively performed his roles and fulfilled
his responsibilities as the Chairman of the Board. No major
areas of concerns were found in the self-evaluation results.

Personal attributes

BARE

Leadership

RETEE

Encouraging active participation
SREERS R

Decision making

REREEN

Relationship with the Board
HEZEMNER

Relationship with Group Chief Executive Officer
BEEETHARNER

Relationship with stakeholders
EEEER = D] 2

Adherence to good corporate governance
practices

BRRFNEXERER

Promotion of good corporate governance
practices

EBRIFNEEERESR

Promotion of ESG

EBRR - tERER

Succession planning

AR

BRABCAWRESSER LANAEABERE
B EFSRRABERA - 85 - B4 X8
EEMREAEEZA® ZERMSENE
—SRAZESTGHANZER - MREEBRE
ETENERAINEE  ESSUITIZB
B EFERRANHNEE  RAZEEENE
STBERESEERHANENRE - AITERER
PREMMHITESRESETFE 2 BERET
HBE BRIEERUERRINEERER
SEZHTT ©
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The Company is taking a proactive role in enhancing its
board effectiveness by taking steps to implement relevant
recommendations. The Executive Chairman, as the leader
of the evaluation process, has reviewed summaries of the
aggregate evaluation results of the Board and Executive
Chairman. He has discussed with Senior Management
comments from Directors and overseen the development
of action points to address the areas identified from the
evaluation results.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has been appointed by the Board. The Company
Secretary is responsible for facilitating the procedures/
activities of the Board and the Board Committees as well
as good communication flow amongst the Board members,
shareholders and Senior Management.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to
both the Executive Chairman and the Group Chief Executive
Officer. The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board
for matters relating to Directors’ duties, such as giving advice
on corporate governance developments and compliance
and facilitating the professional development programme
and induction programme of Directors. All members of the
Board have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary.

During the year, the Company Secretary undertook 17 hours
of external CPD training courses to keep abreast of latest
regulatory changes and corporate governance practices and
to refresh her skills and knowledge.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. The systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. To achieve
this, the Board ensures that there is an effective framework
of risk governance and ongoing risk management process to
promote the long-term success of the Company.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility on an
ongoing basis for ensuring that appropriate and effective
risk management and internal controls are maintained to
provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement
of information. Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below:
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Internal Control

The Company has had in place an internal control system,
which is developed based on the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations

as below:

of the Treadway Commission
components for internal controls, to manage and mitigate
rather than to eliminate business risks. The key underlying
components of effective internal control system are illustrated

Set the tone at the top
regarding the importance
of internal control & risk
management
RERRIEE K A EEN
=55

Control
Environment

Bt

Risk
Assessment

B B ET Al

Identify, assess and manage

of risks

#A - FHENEERR

//7 fO’-

(COSO)

Mag; 5
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RERE
AATBRECommittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission
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Develop control activities

to mitigate risks to the
achievement of the objectives
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Monitoring
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Independent reviews of the
effectiveness of internal
control & risk management
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Assessing risks and reviewing the effectiveness of internal
controls is a continuing process in the Company. Our internal
control system is designed to give reasonable assurance that:

. Assets are prudently safeguarded;

. Business activities are conducted in an effective and
efficient manner;

. Financial reporting is accurate, timely and complete;
and

. Laws and regulations relevant to the business are
complied.

Under the Company’s internal control system, management is
charged with the responsibility to design and implement the
internal controls while the Board and the Audit Committee
oversee the effectiveness of the internal control system that
have been put in place.

Internal Audit

Group Internal Audit (a team under Group Internal Audit
and Risk Management Department) plays a critical role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company.

The scope of services of the department is set out in the
approved Internal Audit Charter and includes:

. Unrestricted access to all the Company’s activities,
personnel, records, properties, and other information
sources required to carry out internal audits;

. Review the effectiveness of internal control over
operational, compliance and financial reporting as well
as risk management function; and

. Special reviews of areas of concern identified by
management or the Audit Committee.

Group Internal Audit, reporting to the Audit Committee,
provides independent assurance as to the existence and
effectiveness of risk management functions and controls in
business operations.
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Risk Based Audit

Using risk assessment methodology and taking into account
the Company structure, management’s concern, nature
and complexity of operation, and operating environment,
Group Internal Audit prepares its annual audit plan which
is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. The risk
assessment methodology assists in identifying business risks
and determining audit frequencies. Based on the approved
audit plan, Group Internal Audit schedules its internal audit
programs to conduct an independent review of different
financial, business and functional operations and activities
with resources focusing on areas with higher risk.

During the fiscalyear of 2021/2022, Group Internal Auditissued
reports to Senior Management covering various operational
and financial units of the Company and its subsidiaries. Group
Internal Audit also conducted reviews of major projects and
areas of concern identified by management.

Ethics Policy and Whistleblowing System

The Company is committed to maintain high standards
of business ethics and corporate governance across all
company’s activities and operations. It is the responsibility of
all directors and employees to comply with these minimum
requirement.

The Company has established Group Business Ethics Policy and
Code of Conduct, which outlines our commitment to integrity,
and set out business ethical standards that the directors and
employees are expected to follow. On top of that, the Code
of Business Conduct for Suppliers and Customers also set
clear expectations on the ethical conduct of our suppliers and
customers, providing guidelines on various aspects such as
conflicts of interest, confidentiality, anti-corruption and fraud.
During the fiscal year of 2021/2022, Group Internal Audit and
Risk Management Department has launched Vitasoy Global
Integrity Portal across our operations in Mainland China in
June 2021, as the first phase of a global roll-out. The portal
embedded with e-learning platform, policy and publication
library and online complaint channel, aims to enhance mutual
communication of the Company’s standards and expectation
on ethics and integrity with employees, suppliers and
distributors.

The Company has established a Whistleblowing Policy
and system for employees and other stakeholders to raise
suspected misconduct, malpractice, irregularities or concerns
through a confidential reporting channel. Procedures are
in place for Group Internal Audit to conduct independent
investigation and follow up. Group Internal Audit will report
all the reporting received under the Whistleblowing Policy
and action taken in response to such reporting to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.
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Risk Management EREER

Risk management framework with effective governance BMACHERBERER  BEEXNRKRER
structure and management process are in place. Such HEREERRF - BEELRMELR DN FEAHKEE
framework enables the Company to adopt a proactive and BRERGE2HE ERFEEERESR  #5
structured approach to identify and manage risks across the R EBAN T P iR 2 EbE o

Company with ongoing monitoring and oversight.

Risk Management Framework
[ B B R AE 2R

e Audit Committee

Oversight &7 (On behalf of the Board)

ERZEE (RREFS®)
ot e Group Intel;nal Audit
Enterprise Risk Management Q;\s\’*\d\ SERES
Executive Committee
TERBEEYTEES
Entity CEOs
75 A RITEEAR
Group Risk Management
KERREE Anticipate
FER

e Department Heads &
Individual Employee
HWAEERERNET

Regulate
B

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]



Corporate Governance Report
TEREBRS

Risk Governance Structure RBRERLEE

The risk governance structure consists of three layers of roles FEEERRBERETIZAREACREBE :
and responsibilities as explained below:

Layer Roles and Responsibilities
B HIEREE

Oversight Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board
EE . Oversees the Company’s risk management and internal control
on an ongoing basis.

. Oversees those risks that warrant the Committee’s attention and
supervise risk management process as part of good corporate
governance.

RRESECERERT

. FEEBANRZEBEERAERE

. EEZEEEEIR SRRV EERREERF  URERIFE
¥ER-

Group Internal Audit

. Conducts independent review on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems and provide reasonable
assurance to Audit Committee.

EEREET

. HEREERANEZASGCANETBELERN  YREXEEESR
HEERE -

Risk Monitoring & Review Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee & Entity CEOs
EMRERKERN . Design,implement and monitor the risk management and internal
control system.
. Provide assurance to the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of

risk management and internal control systems.
CERBEEHTEST RS R ATHRAH
. Rt - BieRERRREERAMEZRSR -
. MEZZESRHEARBEERABEZRAGHRBAZRE °

Group Risk Management, an independent team under Group Internal

Audit and Risk Management

. Supports the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Enterprise
Risk Management Executive Committee.

. Develops and implement risk management frameworks, policies,
tools and methodologies with all subsidiaries.
. Monitors status of risk and communicate with the Executive

Committee and Audit Committee on an ongoing basis.
SEEREESSEEADES REREERBMET 2B B
. XEEEE  BERZEERGXEAREEHITEES -
- EfEWBLARRYRATEREEER - BEX - TARTE-
- BEEFEARRR  LEHTESERERZESHERE -

Risk & Control Ownership Department Heads & Individual Employee
B REHNEE . Ownership of managing risks, executing control activities and
identifying new risks in daily operation.
BREXERERSET

- REFEEPEERAR  ITEREBRERHER -
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Risk Management Process

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily
operations,
development & business planning, investment decision and
external factors. The processes are as follows:

financial activities, compliance, strategy

Anticipate: Potential risks and threats that are related
to different business processes and relevant to the
Company’s objectives will be anticipated and identified
by all individual staff. Risks are grouped into six clusters
(including reputation, strategy, market, liquidity,
credit and operation) to facilitate the assessment
appropriately.

Rate: Each identified risk is evaluated on the basis of
impact and likelihood consistent with the risk appetite
set by the Board. The risk impact and likelihood will
be rated according to the historical records, statistical
analyses and relevant experiences, specialist and expert
judgments by management. Group Risk Management
facilitates the evaluation process including the summary
discussion in the Enterprise Risk Management Executive
Committee and Audit Committee.

Respond: A delegated management is assigned to
each risk as risk owner to fully respond on each risk.
Risk management strategies and corresponding control
owners are identified by risk owner to deploy appropriate
control activities.

Regulate: We take a close monitoring on the current
status of risk, which is being monitored through key risk
indicators with defined thresholds, occurrence of related
incidents, control effectiveness and audit results. Any
change in current status of risk to a worsened level will
trigger a react process through creation of a mitigation
plan.

React: When there is a change on the current status of
risk, the corresponding owner will coordinate mitigation
plan with action details, responsible person and timeline
to address the status.
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Rk EEREF
ERzARERRFCRAARREESRE - ¥
B B RRBREXERL  RERER
SNRER - BFAOT

.

R REETIHZEMHTEEKRE
REARFEBHBZEETRRREE
REMETEENMG  RMASARD /A
B (BEEFE XK - mE RBE
- FEREE) -

g ERESEREZEBAZRES -
AHMEEEEEE AR ER TN - &
B BRI RS RIBBERE  fis
D HEARRREERE cEEFEET
R KERREERRENGERE B85
B EXEBRERNITEEEREREES

LEET R

#Z#: SEEBERHEEEEAR - &
REBREEA UAREERR - ARE
BEAfERBEERKUREREZEE
A BeBEERES -

EZ: ZMBYEZERRRR - SRAKBR
MANERFORNERRAREENEREE
MBIEE - PREBEZHBESEH - AR
BFZEMAREER - BB M H
REMTRES  HYERBRERT R
PR AR -

A ERRRREMNE  HEEEA
AR B2 TR BEA
REFEXR - DEERBRER



Corporate Governance Report
TEREBRS

Report: To support the oversight of the Board on the
effectiveness of Vitasoy’s risk management, risk reporting
requirement was approved by the Board of Directors
under risk management framework. Periodic risk report is
provided to the Enterprise Risk Management Executive
Committee summarizing the results of risk monitoring,
mitigation plans and the current risk management
implementation progress. Besides, since the launch of
the Governance, Risk and Compliance System (“GRC
System”), Enterprise Risk Management Executive
Committee and risk owners are able to obtain real-time
risk status through the relevant system dashboards.

Risk Management Activities

Emerging risk monitoring

Vitasoy has stepped up the efforts in proactively scanning
the risk environment to identify any emerging risks of
potential concerns, including pandemic, regulatory,
sustainability, supply chain and other business risks.
Additionally, Vitasoy is further exploring the use of
data analytics solutions to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of risk monitoring.

Risk reviews for key purchases

In addition to the regular risk management process,
Vitasoy has incorporated a risk review process in making
key purchasing decisions. The objective of the review is
to ensure that critical purchasing risks are adequately
assessed and considered and hence improve the quality
of purchasing decisions.

Managing ESG risks with risk management
framework

The effective management of ESG risks is a key focus
of Vitasoy risk management activities. In addition to
facilitating a climate risk assessment, the scope and
process of the GRC System is under enhancement to
provide timely and transparent information on the
status of ESG risks.

Risk management trainings

With the ever-changing business environment, Vitasoy
conducts risk management training for key associates
to raise risk awareness and improve preparedness to
incidents and crisis. These trainings are a core component
in nurturing risk management culture and encouraging
risk-informed decisions and operations.

B CRRBENEREREEER - 198
EEgitE B ESSEFEEMDAR
EEHEN - RERAREREEHELER
BREEANTEESRMRBRE - BEER
ERkTAREKAREEER 2EE -
o BEHER  BREERSRRALS
(TGRCHE &) LK » hEEBREEHNT
ZEEREBEEATEBERRARER
ESE R AR -

[ B B 1 e

ESFr A m R
EMDMANDEEBERNEEREHNE
B LEBBEMEEERTREFTRZEA
P WG BB AN HEER
HtsBE M o bbb EMPRIEE D
MEEABE MRS RUES E R E
B2 MR °

BRI TR R EF
REFNEREEREN  EMDBTE—
ERREAREMABRRB ZRRBRE
heBRENERRIEZRBEAMERT D
AERER  BUREARBRRZEE -

BRI E R EEIRE  HERE
BRI

EMEBRRE HERERRAMIHEMID
BREEETEHCEY RHBDRERRE
BN GRCEG 2 BEEHE RRET
FERE WERBREHEEHEREE 18
RERREBARTEBERENER o

B E L5

HHREBER CEBRE  BUNAER
ET#ETRBERZFINRESAREER
RAMHEURCENEEES - 255
HI =I5 A Bk E e S B E b & 15 R
RMEBHZOEREH

Annual Report 2021/2022 FE & e



Corporate Governance Report
TEREBRS

Review of Risk Management and Internal
Controls Effectiveness

Group Internal Audit has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system, including those of its operating companies.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the findings and impartial
opinion of Group Internal Audit on the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems.

The Board, with confirmation from management, considered
the risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate for the year ended 31st March 2022.
No significant areas of concern that might affect the financial,
operational and compliance aspects and risk management
functions of the Company were identified. The scope of this
review also covered the adequacy of resources, qualification
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, financial
reporting and internal audit functions, as well as training and
relevant budget to them.

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company is aware of the requirements under the applicable
Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the overriding principle that inside information should be
announced as soon as reasonably practicable after such
information comes to our attention unless it falls within any
of the safe harbours provisions under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. The Company has had a system in place
with established policies and procedures for complying
with the Inside Information disclosure requirements under
the regulatory regime. The Board has adopted a Disclosure
Compliance Policy on 27th November 2012 which has been
further revised with a few housekeeping amendments on 25th
November 2021. The Policy has been formulated by reference
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued
by the Securities and Futures Commission. The purpose of the
Policy is to provide Directors and employees with guidelines
on assessing, reporting and disseminating inside information,
maintaining confidentiality and abiding shares dealing
restrictions. The Company has included in its code of conduct
and staff handbook a strict prohibition on the unauthorised
disclosure or use of confidential and inside information.
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External Auditors

KPMG has been appointed as the External Auditors of
the Company by shareholders at the last Annual General
Meeting. An amount of HK$6.2 million (FY2020/2021: HK$5.7
million) was charged for FY2021/2022 for statutory audits
for the Company and subsidiaries. The amount for the other
audit-related services and other non-audit services provided
by KPMG for the Company and subsidiaries were HK$0.3
million (FY2020/2021: HK$0.2 million) and HK$0.3 million
(FY2020/2021: HK$0.4 million) respectively. The non-audit
services mainly comprised tax advisory services.

The responsibilities of the External Auditors with respect to the
FY2021/2022 financial statements are set out in the section
of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 105 and 111.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a Dividend Policy to provide guidance
to the Board and the management of the Company for
distribution of surplus funds to its shareholders.

In determining the level of dividend payment, the following
criteria and consideration must be taken:

- Sharing of success with shareholders

- Liquidity and capital requirement

- Historical trend of dividend payout

- Benchmarking with competitors within the industry
- Fulfilment of financial covenants

- Taxation impact

- Restrictions

- Other factors that may deem relevant

The Company intends to declare dividends to shareholders to
align with the fluctuation in profit attributable to shareholders
net of one-off eventimpact and may declare special dividends
from time to time in addition to interim or final dividends. The
determination to pay dividends and level of dividend to be
distributed will be subject to the discretion of the Board from
time to time.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to convene General
Meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”), shareholders representing at least
5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
a right to vote at general meetings are entitled to send a
request to the Company to convene a general meeting. Such
request must state the general nature of the business to
be dealt with at the meeting and may include the text of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at the meeting. A request may be sent to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s registered office in hard copy
form or in electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and must also be
authenticated by the person or persons making it.

Procedures for Shareholders to request circulation of
statement at General Meeting

Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder/s representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or at least 50 shareholders, who
have a relevant right to vote, can request the Company in
writing to circulate to the shareholders a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution to be dealt with at that meeting or
other business to be dealt with at that meeting. A request
may be sent to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office in hard copy form or in electronic form to ir@
vitasoy.com and must identify the statement to be circulated.
It must be authenticated by the person or persons making it
and be received by the Company at least 7 days before such
meeting.

Procedures for proposing a Person for Election as a
Director at General Meeting

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, if a
shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at a general meeting, the
shareholder should deposit a written notice of nomination
which shall be given to the Company within the 7-day period
commencing the day after the despatch of the notice of the
meeting (or such other period as may be determined and
announced by the Directors from time to time) and in no event
ending no later than seven days prior to the date appointed
for such meeting. The procedures for shareholders to propose
a person for election as a Director have also been published
on the Company’s website.
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Constitutional Document

During the year, there has been no change in the Company’s
Articles of Association. A copy of the latest consolidated
version of the Articles of Association of the Company has
been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable
for ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard,
timely communication with our shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to the Company’s information. The
Shareholders Communication Policy has been updated on
22nd March 2022 and been posted on the Company’s website.
We have established multiple channels of communication
to encourage effective participation by the shareholders
and also effective dialogue with shareholders under the
Shareholders Communication Policy. The Board reviewed
the Shareholders Communication Policy in June 2022 and
considered that the policy has been properly implemented
and is effective. The Company keeps on promoting investor
relations and enhancing communication with the existing
shareholders and potential investors.

We maintain a corporate website (www.vitasoy.com) to
keep our shareholders and the investing public posted of our
share price information, latest business developments, final
and interim results announcements, financial reports, public
announcements, corporate governance policies and practices
and other relevant shareholder information.
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The Company views its Annual General Meeting as one of the
important platforms to communicate with its shareholders.
All Directors make an effort to attend the Annual General
Meeting. At the 2021 Annual General Meeting, the Chairman
of the Board briefed shareholders the business review and
the outlook of the Group and answered questions raised
by shareholders. The chairpersons of the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee, the Audit Committee and ESG
Committee were also present to answer questions raised by
shareholders. The Company’s External Auditors attended the
2021 Annual General Meeting to address questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditors’
independence. Overseas Directors attended the Annual
General Meeting through video conferencing due to travel
restrictions during the period.

Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue,
including the appointment and re-election of Directors were
proposed by the Chairman at the Annual General Meeting
and were voted on by poll. The detailed procedures of
conducting a poll were explained by the Chairman at the
commencement of the Annual General Meeting to ensure
that shareholders were familiarised with such procedures.
An independent scrutineer was appointed to count the votes
and the poll results were posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company on the same day following the
Annual General Meeting.

The Company adheres to the listing rules and all regulatory
requirements set for listed companies in Hong Kong.
The Company is also committed to proactively provide
its stakeholders with sufficient, accurate and consistent
information in a timely manner. The commitment is evenly
fulfilled irrespective of whether the information is positive
or negative for the Company. All material information is
disclosed to recipients equally in terms of content and timing.
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The Board and Senior Management recognise their
responsibilities to represent the interests of all shareholders
and to maximise shareholder value. Active engagement
with our shareholders and accountability to our shareholders
are of high priority of the Company. Our methods used to
communicate with shareholders include the following:

. one-on-one-meetings, conference calls, investor
conferences, and Non-deal Roadshows

. the Company’s corporate website. This includes
electronic copies of financial reports and hyperlinking
of sustainability reports, audio webcasts of analyst
presentations given at the time of the interim and
annual results announcements, presentation slides
given at investor conferences, latest news, public
announcements and general information about the
Company’s businesses

. publication and distribution of interim and annual
reports

. any shareholders meeting
. set up of dedicated Investor Relations’ email address/

hotline to receive enquires from the shareholders and
investing public
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DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREERAR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (SBS, BSc, MSc), aged 81,
is the Executive Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lo was
appointed a Director of the Company in 1972. Mr. Lo
graduated from the University of lllinois with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Food Science and gained his
Master of Science degree in Food Science from Cornell
University. Mr. Lo is an Honorary Court Member of the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and
life member of Cornell University Council. Mr. Lo is a
director of Ping Ping Investment Company Limited.
He is also a director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited,
a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He was a member of The National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
Save as disclosed, he has not held any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.
He is the father of Ms. May Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company) and Ms. Joy Lo Cheung (a
substantial shareholder of the Company), the brother
of Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive Director
of the Company) and Ms. Irene Chan (the substantial
shareholder of the Company) and the relative of Mr.
Peter Tak-shing Lo (a Non-executive Director of the
Company), Mr. Eugene Lye (an Executive Director
of the Company), Mr. Christopher Lye, Dr. Keiko Aun
Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial
shareholders of the Company).
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (GBM, GBS, OBE,
JP, MA Cantab. (Economics & Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab),
Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA
(Edinburgh Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon.
LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt
(Macquarie), Hon. DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA
(Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP, Officier de I'Ordre de
la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of
Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays
with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National
de la Légion d’Honneur), aged 83, was appointed
a Director of the Company in 1994. Sir David is the
executive chairman of The Bank of East Asia, Limited,
a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He is a member of the Council of the Treasury Markets
Association. He is also an independent non-executive
director of The Hong Kong and China Gas Company
Limited, The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited
and San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited, all being
companies listed in Hong Kong. Sir David is founding
chairman of The Friends of Cambridge University in
Hong Kong Limited, chairman of the Advisory Board of
The Salvation Army, Hong Kong and Macau Command,
chairman of the Executive Committee of St. James’
Settlement and a fellow of the Hong Kong Academy
of Finance. He was a member of the Executive Council
of Hong Kong from 2005 to 2008 and the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong from 1985 to 2012. He was an
independent non-executive director of Guangdong
Investment Limited. Save as disclosed, he has not held
any directorship in other listed public companies in the
last three years.
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Mr. Jan P. S. ERLUND, aged 83, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 2006. He graduated with
a Master degree in Law from the University of Aarhus
and studied at the Nordic Institute for Maritime
Law, the University of Oslo. Mr. Erlund was admitted
to the Danish Bar in 1968 and was admitted to the
Supreme Court in 1976. Mr. Erlund is now a partner
in Copenhagen Chambers focusing on Danish and
international arbitration. He was a partner of Gorrissen
Federspiel Kierkegaard, a law firm in Copenhagen,
Denmark. He was the president of the Danish Bar and
Law Association, president of the Danish Maritime
Law Association and chairman of the Maritime
and Transport Committee of the International Bar
Association. Mr. Erlund was the chairman of the
board of directors of The East Asiatic Company Ltd.
A/S and Dansk Skovselskab A/S, deputy chairman of
ERRIA A/S and a member of the board of directors
of PSA International Pte. Ltd., all being companies
listed overseas. Save as disclosed, he has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years.

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE (CMG, SBS,
JP), aged 74, was appointed a Director of the Company
in 2015. Mr. Nightingale graduated from Peterhouse
College, University of Cambridge with a degree in
Classics. Mr. Nightingale was Managing Director of
the Jardine Matheson Group (“Jardine Group”) from
2006 to 2012. He joined Jardine Group in 1969 and was
appointed a director in 1994. Mr. Nightingale is currently
a non-executive director of Jardine Matheson Holdings
Limited and of other Jardine Group companies. These
include Dairy Farm, Hongkong Land and Jardine Cycle
& Carriage. Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited has a
standard listing on the London Stock Exchange as its
primary listing, with secondary listings in Bermuda and
Singapore. Mr. Nightingale is also the non-executive
director of Shui On Land Limited, a company listed
in Hong Kong. Mr. Nightingale is a commissioner of
PT Astra International Tbk. He is a member of The
Chief Executive’s Council of Advisors on Innovation
and Strategic Development, a member of the HKUST
Business School Advisory Council and the chairperson
of The Sailors Home and Missions to Seafarers in Hong
Kong. Mr. Nightingale is the former chairman of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and was
appointed as a Hong Kong, China’s representative
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to the Asia Pacific Economic Cooperation (“APEC”)
Business Advisory Council from 2005 to 2017 and a
Hong Kong representative to the APEC Vision Group
from 2018 to 2019. He was a non-executive director of
Schindler Holding Limited, Jardine Strategic Holdings
Limited, Mandarin Oriental and Prudential plc. Save as
disclosed, he has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH, aged 65, was appointed
a Director of the Company in 2016. Mr. Brough
graduated from Nottingham Trent Business School
with a Bachelor's degree (Honours) in Business
Studies. Mr. Brough is an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Brough is an independent
non-executive director of Habib Bank Zurich (Hong
Kong) Limited, a Hong Kong restricted licence bank,
an independent non-executive director of Toshiba
Corporation, a company listed on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange, an independent non-executive director of
Guoco Group Limited, a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and an independent non-
executive director of The Executive Centre Limited.
Mr. Brough joined KPMG Hong Kong in 1983 and held
appointments as its Head of Consulting in 1995 and as
Head of Financial Advisory Services in 1997. In 1999,
he was appointed the Asia Pacific Head of KPMG’s
Financial Advisory Services business and a member of
its global advisory steering group. He held the position
of Regional Senior Partner of KPMG Hong Kong from
April 2009 before retiring in March 2012. Mr. Brough
also occupies the following positions in not-for-profit
entities: chairman of the General Committee of The
Hong Kong Club and a director of Run Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Brough is also a director of Blue Willow
Limited, a private limited company. Mr. Brough was
the executive chairman of Noble Group Limited, a
company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange, and
its successor company, Noble Group Holdings Limited
from 8th May 2017 to 1st October 2019. He was an
independent non-executive director of GL Limited,
a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange,
from 1st July 2012 to 15th April 2021. Save as disclosed,
he has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.
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Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG (GBS, B5S, JP), aged 69, was
appointed a Director of the Company in June 2017. Dr.
Chung holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the
University of Warwick, United Kingdom and Doctor of
Business Administration Degree from City University of
Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor
by the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in
December 2020. He was awarded an Honorary Doctor
of Business Administration by the Lingnan University in
2015, an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007,
an Honorary Doctorate Degree by the University
of Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia in 2006,
an Honorary Doctor of Science by The University of
Warwick, United Kingdom in 2019 and a Doctor of
Business Administration honoris causa by The University
of Macau in 2019. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star (BBS) and Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) by the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government on
1st July 2011 and 1st July 2017 respectively. He was
also appointed as Justice of Peace by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government on 1st July
2005 and won the Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Award in 1997. In November 2014, he was further
awarded the Industrialist of the Year. Dr. Chung was
appointed as the Chairman of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries from July 2011 to July 2013 and
now its Honorary President. He was appointed as the
chairman of Vocational Training Council from January
2018 to December 2019. He is also the founder and
chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation. Dr.
Chung is a co-founder and currently a non-executive
director of Techtronic Industries Company Limited. Dr.
Chung is also an independent non-executive director
of TK Group (Holdings) Limited, a company listed in
Hong Kong. Dr. Chung retired as independent non-
executive director of Kin Yat Holdings Limited, KFM
Kingdom Holdings Limited and Fujikon Industrial
Holdings Limited effective from 25th August 2014,
27th August 2015 and 23rd June 2021 respectively.
Save as disclosed, he has not held any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.
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Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, aged 74, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 1993. Ms. Lo received a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Oberlin College, Ohio
in the United States and undertook graduate studies
in Urban and Regional Planning at the University of
Toronto in Canada. Ms. Lo joined the Group in 1980
and was the President of Vitasoy USA until 2001. Ms. Lo
was the president of the Soyfoods Association of North
America which represents more than 30 soyfoods
companies covering the US and Canada. She does not
hold/has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies currently and in the past three years. She
is the mother of Dr. Keiko Aun Fukuda (a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the sister of Mr. Winston
Yau-lai Lo (the Executive Chairman of the Company)
and Ms. Irene Chan (the substantial shareholder of the
Company) and the relative of Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company), Ms. May Lo (a
Non-executive Directors of the Company), Mr. Eugene
Lye (an Executive Director of the Company), Ms. Joy Lo
Cheung, Mr. Christopher Lye and Ms. Alexandra Chan
(the substantial shareholders of the Company).

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO, aged 60, was appointed a
Director of the Company in June 2017, Mr. Lo holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Electronic Engineering & Physics
from the Loughborough University of Technology, a
Master’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University
of Surrey, a Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics
from the University of London and an Honorary Fellow
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lo is an
executive director and the chief executive officer of
Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo is the chairman and
a trustee of Lo Kwee Seong Foundation (a charitable
trust) being a substantial shareholder of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Save as
disclosed, he has not held any directorship in other
listed public companies in the last three years. Mr. Lo
is the relative of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (the Executive
Chairman of the Company), Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company), Ms. May Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company), Mr. Eugene
Lye (an Executive Director of the Company), Ms. Irene
Chan, Ms. Joy Lo Cheung, Mr. Christopher Lye, Dr. Keiko
Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial
shareholders of the Company).
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Ms. May LO, aged 47, was appointed a Director of
the Company in June 2017. Ms. Lo holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from MIT Sloan
School of Management and a Bachelor of Science
degree from Cornell University. She has worked in
finance in various roles, including, as a fund manager
for a global asset management company and has had
experience investing in publicly listed companies. She
does not hold/has not held any directorship in other
listed public companies currently and in the past three
years. Ms. Lo is the daughter of Mr. Winston Yau-lai
Lo (the Executive Chairman of the Company), the
sister of Ms. Joy Lo Cheung (a substantial shareholder
of the Company), the relative of Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling
Lo (a Non-executive Director of the Company), Mr.
Peter Tak-shing Lo (a Non-executive Director of the
Company), Mr. Eugene Lye (an Executive Director of
the Company), Ms. Irene Chan, Mr. Christopher Lye,
Dr. Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the
substantial shareholders of the Company).

Executive Directors

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, aged 59, was appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company on1st April 2014. Mr.
Guidetti is currently the Group Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Guidetti graduated with a Bachelor's Degree
in Economics at the Bologna University in Bologna,
Italy in 1987 and further obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration at Centro Universitario di
Organizzazione Aziendale in Altavilla Vicentina, Italy in
1988. Mr. Guidetti completed a Harvard Business School
Executive Education programme in July 2017. Mr.
Guidettiis responsible for the overall strategic planning,
business development and general management of all
the Group’s operations. Mr. Guidetti joined the Group
as the Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st April 2013
and has fully assumed the roles and responsibilities
of the former Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st
August 2013. He has 33 years of proven track record
in general management, strategic/business planning,
marketing/commercial leadership, product innovation
and new business development. He has matured his
professional expertise in two of the largest global fast
moving consumer goods organisations and across
local, regional and global roles in Europe and Asia. He
has spent the last 22 years in this field in Mainland
China, and regions including the Hong Kong SAR and
Taiwan. Mr. Guidetti is a director of Ariston Thermo
Group, a listed company in Italy. Saved as disclosed,
he has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies currently and in the last three years.
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Mr. Eugene LYE, aged 52, was appointed a Director of
the Company in October 2017. Mr. Lye is currently the
President and Chief Executive Officer of Vitasoy USA
Inc. and Vitasoy North America Inc., the subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lye holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics from the University of Toronto and a
MBA from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Lye is responsible for the general management and
development of the Group’s import business of the
Group’s products for sales in North America. He joined
the Group in 2002 and has been closely involved in
all aspects of the North American business for over 19
years. During his time at Vitasoy USA Inc., Mr. Lye has
held management positions in sales and marketing
in the Mainstream Channel, and has had oversight
responsibilities for both the research & development
and quality control departments as well as serving
as the Senior Vice President of the Asian Channel. He
does not hold/has not held any directorship in other
listed public companies currently and in the past three
years. Mr. Lye is the brother of Mr. Christopher Lye (a
substantial shareholder of the Company), the relative
of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (the Executive Chairman of
the Company), Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo, Mr. Peter Tak-
shing Lo and Ms. May Lo (the Non-executive Directors
of the Company), Ms. Irene Chan, Ms. Joy Lo Cheung,
Dr. Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the
substantial shareholders of the Company).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. lan Hong NG, aged 51, Group Chief Financial Officer.
Ms. Ng is responsible for the strategic planning, financial
management and control, accounting, corporate finance,
investor relations and corporate services of the Group. Ms. Ng
joined the Group in 2021 and has solid finance management
experience gained with multinational companies. She also
brings a wealth of experience to this role with leading start-up
commercial operation, acquisitions, post-merger integration,
finance and digital transformation with fast moving consumer
goods (FMCG), agriculture, oil & gas, and technology
industries. Ms. Ng is a US Certified Public Accountant, and
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration at the
University of Southern California Marshall School of Business.

Mr. Carl Qiang SU, aged 48, Group Chief Operating Officer
and Chief Executive Officer, Mainland China Operation. Mr. Su
is responsible for the general management and development
of the Group’s operation in Mainland China and the assigned
Group functions. He joined the Group in December 2021.
Mr. Su has over 20 years of comprehensive management
experience covering senior executive roles in different leading
multinational companies in fast moving consumer goods
(FMCG) categories and leading internet company in Mainland
China. He obtained a degree in Economics from Sun Yat-Sen
University in 1995 and a MBA degree from Carlson School of
Business, University of Minnesota in 2005.

Mr. Charles Chung CHYI, aged 67, former Chief Executive
Officer, Hong Kong Operation who looked after the Hong
Kong SAR, the Macau SAR and various export markets since
2008 to 2017. Mr. Chyi re-joined the Group in November
2021 and resumed all his former geographical coverage
and responsibilities. Mr. Chyi was educated in the United
Kingdom and prior to joining the company he had held
senior management positions with a couple of prominent
multinational companies in food and beverage industry
focusing on the Greater China market.
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Mr. David Bruce Charles TYACK, aged 51, Managing Director
of Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd.. Mr. Tyack is responsible
for general management and development of the Group’s
operation in Australia and New Zealand. He joined the Group
in September 2019 and has extensive experience across the
Asia-Pacific fast moving consumer goods (FMCG) industry
over the past 27 years. Based in and a native of Melbourne,
Mr. Tyack relocated back to his home town after leading
Canberra based, Capitol Chilled Foods Pty Ltd. (a Joint
Venture between Lion Dairy & Drinks and Bega Cheese) for
4 years. He has a strong track record in Sales, Marketing and
General Management working for a few local and global
FMCG companies.

Mr. Christopher Lloyd MARCHANT, aged 43, Managing
Director of Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd., the
Group’s tofu manufacturing company in Singapore. Mr.
Marchant is responsible for the general management and
development of the Group’s operation in Singapore. He joined
the Singapore operation in September 2016 after spending
4 years heading up the Vitasoy Australia and New Zealand
Sales team. Mr. Marchant has extensive experience across the
fast moving consumer goods (FMCG) industry in Asia Pacific,
and is very familiar with the Singapore market having spent
14 years in the city state, where he both started his career and
completed his secondary education.
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Report of the Directors

ETEeHSE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31st March 2022.

Principal Place of Business

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in the Hong Kong SAR
and has its registered office and principal place of business at
No. 1 Kin Wong Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories, the Hong
Kong SAR.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture
and sale of food and beverages. The principal activities and
other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Company and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the financial year is set
out in note 3 to the financial statements.

Furtherdiscussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Group Chief Executive
Officer’s Report/Business Review set out on pages 10 to 26 of
this Annual Report. The environmental, employees, customers
and suppliers matters that have a significant impact on the
Group, are provided in the Sustainability Report 2021/2022
to be posted on the Company’s corporate website at
www.vitasoy.com together with this Annual Report. These
discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31st March 2022, the percentage of sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less
than 30%.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases
attributable to major suppliers during the financial year is as
follows:

FEEFRILER
NBE-_E-_—_F=A=+—HLFE ~&£H
BEAREBEFEREB ZEEIEILNI0% °

SATS B LA B B 2 (A (A SRR
s O

Percentage of the Group’s total purchases

EASERBREEE O

The largest supplier 21%
RAMER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate 30%
BREREEREE

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
shares) had any interest in these major suppliers.

Recommended Dividend

No interim dividend was declared (2021: an interim dividend
of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share). The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend (2021: a final
dividend of HK29.0 cents per ordinary share) in respect of the
year ended 31st March 2022.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$6,280,000 (2021: HK$2,992,000).

Bank Loans
Particulars of bank loans of the Group, as at 31st March 2022
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25(c) to the financial
statements. Shares were issued during the year on the
exercise of share options.
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this Annual Report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles
of Association and under Code Provision B.2.2 of Part 2 of
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Mr.
Paul Jeremy BROUGH and Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI retire from
the board by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligations.

Non-executive Directors are appointed under the same terms
for rotational retirement as other Directors, pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Company.

Directors of Subsidiaries

A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s
subsidiaries during the financial year and up to the date of
this Annual Report can be found in the Company’s website
at www.vitasoy.com under “Investor Relations/Corporate
Governance/Board of Directors/Directors of Subsidiaries”.
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
The Directors of the Company who held office at 31st March
2022 had the following interests in the shares of the Company
and subsidiaries (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) at that date as recorded in the
Register of Directors’ Interests and short positions (“Register”)
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO:

(1) Interests in issued shares

EERRG - HERGREREE 2
=RRE

B (BFRBEHRD) E32HRERE2ES
R RO ABRM ([2eM)) SR 0=
TooFZA=+-BERZAAAEENE
BESQARMBAT (EER (RS RMEH
fl)) ZBRBBHMT :

(1) REBRTRMO2ERE

Number of ordinary shares

EiER#E
Trusts and Total  *% of total
Personal Family similar Equity number of issued shares
Name Note interests interests interests  derivatives  sharesheld *{5B{TIRG
H®E [ B AfER kR EEIREEER RATEIR FBERGEYE  SB32E2H
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
ZEr,ﬂ;r;; ;” aurd (,(v) 65439800 28702500 72,678,300 225166 167,045,766 15.61%
Dr. the Hon. Sir David
Kwok-po LI 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 0.93%
e
Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND
i e 180,000 - - - 180,000 0.02%
Mr. Anthony John
Liddell NIGHTINGALE 200,000 - - - 200,000 0.02%
REHELE
Ms. Y Mo-ling LO
ZE%}Z‘;;T o-ing (i), (iv) - - 92,084,750 - 92,084,750 8.61%
RET™R
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
;E;ﬁ 7; ;r; sning (i), () 9,198,000 - 121,657,000 - 130,855,000 12.23%
Ms. May LO .
EHEL+ 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 0.20%
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
BB S (v) 5,130,000 100,000 = 225,206 5,455,206 0.51%
* |5F /AT
Mr. E LYE
A 442,313 - - - 442313 0.04%
2R
* The percentage has been compiled based on the total number * HEALEDREAAANR-_E-__F=A=+—H

of shares of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,070,009,500 ordinary
shares) as at 31st March 2022.

BT ZRMEE (B11,070,009,500 KR &EIR)
FTE -
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Report of the Directors

ExeaHd

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
(Continued)

(1) Interests in issued shares (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO is deemed to be interested in
28,702,500 shares through interests of his wife. The 225,166
equity derivatives represented interests in unvested shares
granted under the Company’s Share Award Scheme.

(ii) Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 2,078,300 shares held
by Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust, 2,560,150 shares
held by Yvonne Lo Separate Property Trust and 14,768,000
shares held by Lo/Higashida Joint Trust. Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling
LO is a beneficiary of such three trusts and is therefore deemed
to be interested in such shares.

(iii)  Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is interested in 48,978,700 shares held
by two discretionary family trusts. Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is a
beneficiary of such two trusts and is therefore deemed to be
interested in such shares.

(iv)  Each of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO and
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares
held by The Bank of East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds
such shares as a nominee for the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation,
a charitable trust. Each of them is a trustee of the Lo Kwee
Seong Foundation and is therefore deemed to be interested in
such shares.

(v)  The family interests of 100,000 shares are jointly held by Mr.
Roberto GUIDETT! and his wife. The 225,206 equity derivatives
represented interests in unvested shares granted under the
Company’s Share Award Scheme.

(2) Interests in underlying shares

Certain Directors of the Company have been granted options
and share awards under the Company’s share option scheme
and share award scheme, details of which are set out in the
sections “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme”
respectively.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the
Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen
years of age holds an interest or a short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded in
the Register or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies.
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Equity-linked Agreements
Share option scheme
(1) Share option scheme approved on 4th
September 2002
On 4th September 2002, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) under
which the Directors may, at their discretion, grant options
to employees and Directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company.
The 2002 Share Option Scheme was valid for 10 years ended
3rd September 2012. The purpose of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme was to provide incentives and rewards to employees
for their contribution to the Group. The principal terms of the
2002 Share Option Scheme were as follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a)
the closing price of the shares on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the
date of grant, which must be a business day; and (b)
the average of the closing prices of the shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

- The options were exercisable for a period to be notified
by the Directors to each option holder, such period not to
exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

- There was no minimum period which an option must
be held before it could be exercised during the vesting
period, but the Directors were empowered to impose at
their discretion any such minimum period at the date of
offer.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of approval
and adoption of the scheme.

- The maximum aggregate number of shares over which
options could be granted to any one participant, when
added to the number of shares issued or issuable to
that participant under the share option scheme must
not exceed 25% of the maximum aggregate number of
shares for the time being issued and issuable under the
share option scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(1

Share option scheme approved on 4th
September 2002 (Continued)

An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible Director or employee for a
period of 28 days from the date of offer or such longer or
shorter period as the Directors might in their discretion
determine. An eligible Director or employee had to pay
HK$10 on acceptance of the option as a consideration.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to any one participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of grant.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated by
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
held on 28th August 2012. Outstanding share options
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid, and subject to the
vesting schedule, exercisable in accordance with the 2002
Share Option Scheme. As at 31st March 2022, there were
706,000 outstanding options to be exercised under the 2002
Share Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)
(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August
2012
On 28th August 2012, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”). The
purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions which the Directors,
executives and employees of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”) have made or will make
to the Group. It will provide the Eligible Participants with an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with a
view to motivating the Eligible Participants to excel in their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and
attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining an ongoing
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.
The Board may at its discretion grant options to any Director,
executive or employee of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The principal terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme were
as follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; and
(b) the average of the closing prices of the shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

- The period within which the options must be exercised
would be specified by the Company at the time of grant.
This period must expire no later than 10 years from the
relevant date of grant.

- There was no minimum period for which an option
must be held nor a performance target which must
be achieved before it could be exercised during the
vesting period, but the Board may determine at its sole
discretion any such terms on the grant of an option.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of approval
and adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August
2012 (Continued)

- The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes for the time
being of the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed
such number of shares as equals 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an Eligible Participant for a period
of 28 days from the date of offer or such longer or
shorter period as the Directors might in their discretion
determine. An Eligible Participant had to pay HK$10 on
acceptance of the option as a consideration.

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to any one Eligible Participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue as at the date of grant.

During the year, 2,704,000 options were granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme. The total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme as at 31st March 2022 was 69,986,950 shares, which
represented 6.54% of the ordinary shares of the Company in
issue at 31st March 2022.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme will end on 27th August 2022.

At 31st March 2022, the Directors and employees of the
Company had the following interests in options to subscribe
for ordinary shares of the Company (market value per ordinary
share at 31st March 2022 was HK$14.86) in consideration of
HK$10 for each grant under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
and 2012 Share Option Scheme of the Company. As at 31st
March 2022, the total grant date fair value of unexercised
vested options and unvested options, measured in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(q)(iv)
to the financial statements, amounted to HK$39,969,000 and
HK$29,948,000 respectively. The options are unlisted. Once
vested, each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company. Assuming that all the
options outstanding as at 31st March 2022 were exercised,
the Company would receive proceeds of HK$315,646,000.
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BB RELTE ()

RAEERERLE  EAATESRAEE>
HtEEERE-_SE_ERRESAR-Z
—CEBRESETREALATLER S ERE

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The Directors of the Company individually and other
employees of the Group in aggregate had the following
personal interests in options under the 2002 Share Option

Scheme and 2012 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for EHEA 2 EAAEROT :
ordinary shares of the Company during the year and at the
end of the year:
Number of
options Number of * Market * Market
Price per outstanding Number of Number of Number of options value value
share on at the options options options outstanding per share at per share on
exercise beginning of granted exercised forfeited atthe end date of grant exercise
Period during of options the year during the during the during the of the year of options of options
Date of which options friERRE EE year year year R g Kij 4
Participants grant ore exercisable K2 AL ERfz Epfrfez Bz WAL BhEZA ki
554 =k BREES ShER BhEgA EREgR ERESe ERESE ERESR ZERTE G
HKS HKS HKS
ik ik ik
Directors
£
Mr. Winton Yau-loi LO~ 31/8/2012 31/8/2013 toZ 30/8/2022 6.400 2,822,000 (2,116,000) : 706,000 6.700 19300
BRERE 9/9/2013  9/9/2014t0% 8/9/2023 9370 1,704,000 - - 1,704,000 9950 -
10/9/2014  10/9/2015t0% 9/9/2024 10.080 1,792,000 = = 1,792,000 9890
14/9/2015 14/9/2016to% 13/9/2025 13,600 1,588,000 : : 1,588,000 11520
6/9/2016  6/9/2017 t0% 5/9/2026 14792 1420000 - - 1420000 15.280
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 24/6/2016 24/6/2017 toZ 23/6/2026 14792 430,000 (430,000 = > 13960 21450
EfiRit 26/6/2017 26/6/2018 to% 25/6/2027 16.296 1,254000 > s 1,254,000 16.200 =
19/6/2018 19/6/2019to% 18/6/2028 25.100 1,288,000 - - 1,268,000 24000
21/6/2019 21/6/2020t% 20/6/2029 44810 866,000 = = 866,000 42550
22/6/2020 22/6/2021 toZ 21/6/2030 30.200 1,032,000 = > s 1,032,000 29550
*24/8/2021 18/6/2022t0% 23/8/2031 19500 814000 - 814000 18920
Eligible employees 26/6/2015 26/6/2016toZ 25/6/2025 13600 18,000 5 : 18,000 13620 =
working under 24/6/2016 24/6/2017 toZ 23/6/2026 14792 214,000 (6,000) - 208,000 13960 29.100
employment 26/6/2017 26/6/2018 t0Z 25/6/2027 16.296 543,000 (248,000) (1,000) 294000 16.200 28726
contracts 19/6/2018 19/6/2019 t0Z 18/6/2028 25.100 654000 (22,000 (272,000 360,000 24,000 29,000
RERRANIE ©28/1/2019 28/1/2020t0% 27/1/2029 30.350 320,000 - - 320000 30,000 -
LRERES 21/6/2019 21/6/2020t% 20/6/2029 44810 600,500 > (244500) 356,000 42550
22/6/2020 22/6/2021 to% 21/6/2030 30.200 902,000 = 5 (250,000 652,000 29550
*24/8/2021 18/6/2022t0% 23/8/2031 19500 1,890,000 - (178,000 1,712,000 18920
17,447,500 2,704,000 (2,822,000) (945,500) 16,384,000
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The options granted to each Director are registered under the
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

* being the closing price or the weighted average closing price
of the Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the
dates on which the options were granted or exercised, as
applicable.

@ for the grant dated 28th January 2019, 50% of options will be
vested after the first anniversary from the date of grant and
50% of options will be vested after the second anniversary
from the date of grant.

# for the grant dated 24th August 2021, options are subject to a
vesting scale in tranches of 25% each per annum starting from
18th June 2022 and are fully vested on 18th June 2025.

All options except for options granted on 28th January 2019
and 24th August 2021, are exercisable progressively and the
maximum percentage of the options which may be exercised
is determined in stages as follows:

IRER TR (|
BEIRESE (@)
EFREE Y BREURAESFAEASESY

BERER °

* AR EERN B RER K RETE B A
—REAZBRHERIMEF IR THE -

@ REB-AF-AZTNRZRHEME » 50% 288
RIS BRE AT —BERERER50% 28
REHS B ARETMBAFRERES -

# BT —FNA-t+HAZEHEmMS B=F
THEXRATNARUEF25% 2k ESMERE
WRZZEZHEASATN\BEREES -

AFTEZEBREHE (BR-ZZ-F—
AZ+N\BRZZ--FNAZTHERHZE
IRIESN) THELIEIM - MEMRATEBREZ
B ERMT :

Percentage of options granted

HERBREZBSL

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant

Kb R —BFE AR

25%

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant

Kb BB mBF AR

another % 25%

On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant

R BB = BFRHEE

another 3 25%

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant

R A BT NBERAR

Information on the accounting policy for share options
granted and the value per option is provided in note 1(q)(iv)
and note 23(a) to the financial statements respectively.

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)

Share award scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme on 22nd March
2021 (the “Share Award Scheme”) under which the Directors
may, at their discretion, select any eligible participant (being
either a director, executive oremployee of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries) to participate in the Share Award Scheme
as an award holder, and such award holder may be granted
an award of restricted shares, performance shares, restricted
share units or performance share units. The purpose of the
Share Award Scheme is to attract and retain management
and key employees, to align eligible participants’ interests
with the long-term success of the Company, to provide fair
and competitive compensation to management and key
employees and to drive the achievement of the Company’s
strategic objectives.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
term of 10 years from 1st July 2021 unless terminated earlier
by the Board and is administered by the Board and the trustee
of the Share Award Scheme. The total number of shares to
be awarded under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed
5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company from
time to time. The maximum number of shares which may be
granted to any one eligible participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 0.2% of the shares
in issue as at the date of grant. During the period, 1,161,224
awards were granted under the Share Award Scheme.

BRERIDE (|

B4 Bt Bl

ARBER B —F=ZA+-HEMH—ER
GEEHE ([RALME]) > Bt BT
FEREBERE  RECASEKSEE (BF
ATREMBATZES  THASHIES) U
BEEEANSHSERGEBTE  TEE
BEEATESTSREARG  ZBRREG - ZR
HROGEMRFZERGERZED - RHEE
HESERIREEEEBNEEES  £o8
HBeRENFIZEAATNEERDRS -3 -
BEREAIERERUATHAESE NG
B EBERAATGERKEE o

BHEETER T —FtA—BRBEN B
MEBTF (EHRESFIRAKLLRS) - LHE
EERRPEREZSTAEE - RERMERD
TERFHRABETESEBADATEHCHT
BOBEN% REZEHBHIEEM+ =
BHEAARFEMN—BEEKSHENRAE
B SHEARKREHABE R 22 BTRHO0.2%
BN - IR AR 1D SR ENET B3R 1,161,224 1 52 & -
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE
Equity-linked Agreements (Continued) fig SE R 170 ()
Share award scheme (Continued) IR0 2R B ST &l (&)
Particulars of share awards outstanding during the year and FARR-E-_—_FE=A=t+—HHE*REB 2
as at 31st March 2022 are as follows: BIRRosEEaT
Number of
awards forfeited
on termination
Number Numberof  of employment Number of
of awards Number of awards of eligible awards
outstanding at awards vested participants  outstanding at
the beginning of  granted during duringthe  during the year the end
the year the year yeor  REARAGER of the year
Participants Date of grant Vestingperiod ~ E{JRsHFEHREZ EREL2 EREE. SHEZBEMRM  EREHREE
g% RERE Y RRHE REEE RE8E ZEBYE ZKRYE
Directors
£
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO 1/2/2022 1/2/2022-18/6/2025 = 225,166 = = 225,166
BRERE
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 24/8/2021  24/8/2021-18/6/2025 = 225,206 = = 225,206
)ik
Eligible employees working 24/8/2021  24/8/2021-18/6/2025 = 523,146 = (49,298) 473,848
under employment ©20/12/2021  20/12/2021-20/12/2023 - 187,706 - - 187,706
contracts
REEREATEZ
REREI
- 1161204 - (49298) 1111926
The awards granted to each Director are registered under the RYIZRESERBIDUNES2HEEE > MES
name of the Director who is also the beneficial owner. REREBA -
@ for the grant dated 20th December 2021, 50% of awards will @ M-E_—F+-A-+HZRHEME > 50% 25
be vested after the first anniversary from the date of grant BEERE BHET - BFRERBR50% 2 RE
and 50% of awards will be vested after the second anniversary BERHBHEAMBFERERE -

from the date of grant.
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

All awards except for awards granted on 20th December
2021, are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of 25% each
per annum starting from 18th June 2022 and are fully vested
on 18th June 2025.

Information on the accounting policy for share awards
granted and the value per award is provided in note 1(q)(iv)
and note 23(b) to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors of the Company or any of their spouses
or children under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

Other than the Company’s Share Option Scheme and Share
Award Scheme as disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year.

BRERIDE (|

BRD SE BEt & ()
BR-B-—F+-A-+EETHEBN - G
BHE-E-—FNA+ N\ BRREE25% 2
ZHHEE YR -E-REAA+N\B2BHE
% °

ERARERORBNETBERERENRENE
BEME R 2D B &5 B 7% 3R M 1(g)(iv) R B EE
23(b) A ©

Br E PR T E S AR B REAEMHE R FH
ERFREMSESEEMNRE  UEARATE
SHEEMEBER T NRATHF L AEBAR
DREREMEMABDWRO K EEEMERS o

BRER S M ERR M EE 23 PR BV A N Rl AR A AT
IR RGO RBEEN > AORRNFRLET L
RERFENRZH R
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interests in
the Company’s issued shares at 31st March 2022 amounting
to 5% or more of the ordinary shares in issue. These interests

FERRREAMA RIS R AEEAR
Bz RRR

NRZEBE-__F=A=+—H XA FCEAET
SO B ITEERZ5%RU EZRAT DT
ROER - ZEEBZ TR ENFTRECESHE

are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of the o
Directors.
Number of ordinary shares
LERYA
*% of total
Trusts and issued
similar Total shares
Personal Family Corporate interests number of HETET
Substantial shareholders Note interests interests interests TR shares held i
TERR (i BARS FiRER Najls FEER Fris RO LB
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial
Group, Inc. (i) - - 192,935,369 - 192,935,369 18.03%
ZEABSRERE
gj,é'%ﬁm (i 23,514,700 - - 72678300 96,193,000 8.99%
gjédﬁoL;iCHEUNG (i 2,766,250 - - 72,678,300 75,444,550 7.05%
AESRIR
Eé;;f Aun FUKUDA (i) 2,400,000 - - 72678300 75078300 7.02%
g%ﬂ‘;?pher E (i) 750,000 - - 72678300 73428300 6.86%
R
gg\ﬂ:}eﬁmm CHAN (i) 610,000 - - 72678300 73288300 6.85%
y;

* This percentage has been compiled based on the total number

of shares of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,070,009,500 ordinary
shares) as at 31st March 2022.

Notes:

(i) These interests are held by Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc.
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

(ii) Each of Ms. Irene CHAN, Ms. Joy Lo CHEUNG, Dr. Keiko Aun
FUKUDA, Mr. Christopher LYE and Ms. Alexandra CHAN is
interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank of East Asia
(Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a nominee
for the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation, a charitable trust. Each
of them is a trustee of the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation and is
therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]

* HEALDRERQAGAR=-E=_—F=A=+—H
28T 2R A% (B11,070,009,500 % & i %)
E e

MiaE -
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AEEA -
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares (Continued)

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO
have been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company as at the date of this Annual Report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Remuneration for Senior Management
The emoluments of the Senior Management, excluding
Directors, by bands are as follows:

FERRREHMA TS X EERR
PzESRERE (@

RARTRDRAEERD P 22 ERITBEI

A
B e

BREXFREESN  AARATEBRASHEMAHE

bR AR BERE (EHRBERKRSL) 5336
rMiEE 2 ERMmA -

REDRIFRE
RERAAFEEZ AMERHURRAAAES
FrED - RAERAL  AOT—ERHLEFRA

REZAREFRE -

BEENXS - BHEHAHzES

RRBHEEMHE R ARERFERRFARE
ARBILARAESHEEARE RS &
BHEREHN -

EEEEASZME
RAGIBS 2 BEERAS (FREES) 25
SMT :

Number of individuals

A
Below HK$2,000,000 5
B 2,000,000 T T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 4
8% 2,000,001 T £ %% 4,000,000 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 1
78 4,000,001 T =% 6,000,000 7T
Employees and Human Resources Policy EERADERBER
Details of the number and remuneration of employees, human AEBzEEHERTHM - AHDERBEURE
resources policy, development and learning of the Group’s EBRREBI2HFBHEN=F=-— —F—=

employees are set out in the Sustainability Report 2021/2022
to be posted on the Company’s corporate website at www.
vitasoy.com together with this Annual Report.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
Directors of the Company is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

FAiFERBEHRE | ZREBERAFRAR
DB Z A B (www.vitasoy.com) ZEf o

EEZRERE
ERADDESHEEFAEGL (ERRES
(D AEHI) F 469 15) MEBERRNRFE—
BEAN
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Report of the Directors
EExg®E

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained
during the year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into by
the Company in the normal course of business during the year
ended 31st March 2022 are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements. In respect of each related party transaction
disclosed in note 28, the Company confirms that it has
reviewed the transactions which are in compliance with the
relevant requirements under the Listing Rules (if applicable).

Employee Retirement Benefits
Particulars of employee retirement benefits of the Group are
set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Five Year Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
251 and 252 of the Annual Report.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year, except that the trustee of the Company’s
Share Award Scheme purchased on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited a total of 500,000 shares of the Company
at a total consideration of about HK$10 million to satisfy the
award of shares to selected participants pursuant to the
terms of the rules and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th June 2022

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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AFERMEHRE
AEBRBELABAYREECXE EEREE
HEEHNARERFE251E252H

BE - HESBEAATZ LhmES
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REEARQRAZEMETES - RAKRQ TR
EEEIZ I ARBRDER S ZRAUFEE
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A"%Fﬁﬁ[‘ﬁ’&jﬁﬁ,\,\SOO 000 RA T
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIZXBENRE

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 112 to 250,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st March 2022, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31st March 2022 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Audlitor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statementssection of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants(“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

By ZBEERE
Bt ERKEEARATME
(REBAMAIZAIBIRL E])

=R

B (T AR EFATIERE N2
E250 ENHEMMBEIREEAR AR (MU T &8
[ERA]) RAWBAR (UTHBIEXE])
MRS MBRE  LUBBRRBER-Z=-Z
ZA=tT-BENREMBRRAREREEZZHLF
ENGEBEER  GeBRERAtG2EKER -
GRERDEBRNGSRENER  URGEH
BHRERMET  BRETESHEEME -

BMRE  ZEFREVERRCREBBSTTE
ABEMN(EBUBREER) EEMP S
KRBT BEER-ZEZ-F=A=+-—HMWE
SRR BEEEZEZALEENGESH
BRERARGARERE  WEEREB (LTE
) B 5E -

BRRHOEHE
EMERBESTBEHMASEAN (FBETE
AI) EATES - RMEZRSEUTAENELES
EARBE [RBE B RSP BERRAENE
FEIBIREE-—SEM - RESBSHMAQ
SEAH (EXSTHMERTR) UTHBF
B BABYR BKE - XCETTRIPH
HithBRBREE - HABEE - RFIMESHE
AAREEZEREEMASRMNETZRRER
B o
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B B RS

Key audit matters

FRESE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional BRESEEISRERFNELYE > 2AYK
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the R e U BRERNETBRAEENSTE - EE=
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These HREERMBSIBRERSUERRREAEZRE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the ETRIEN RPTFrSHELEFHIEHERNE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming Ho

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Revenue recognition from sales to distributors and retailers

RRE S HEHNBEEHENRA

Refer to note 3 and the accounting policies in note 1(u) to the consolidated financial statements.

FHS B PSRRI EE 3 MR (u) OB RTBER ©

The Key Audit Matter
PR ET A

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNFF WA REZEE

The Group’s revenue is principally generated from
sales of food and beverages to a large number of
distributors and retailers.
BEEENRAZTERRORZ D HBNSERHERD
RERm °

Revenue from sales to distributors and retailers is
recognised when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the Group’s food and beverage
products, which generally occurs when the
products are delivered to the location designated
by the customers.

REDHEBNEZEBHENBAEETFEAREZ
SENEMRARERFER  S—REEME
FleEBREAE -

2 B
EER

There are a large number of individual sales
transactions each year which increase the risk of
errors arising in the recognition of revenue.
BEEESFRERSBNERHERS » BEMTBAR
AHIREERAVEES o

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue from sales to distributors and retailers included
the following:

BB HEERRARA D HANSERHEENRANETRE
FEEUTEIE :

. assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal controls
over revenue recognition;

- FHMEEEERRWARRNERAIZHAR - BRRE
TEMME

. inspecting sales contracts with distributors and
retailers, on a sample basis, to understand the trade
terms agreed with individual customers and assessing
the Group’s revenue recognition policies with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

- BEAEEREESHHMNMSERETNHEESE - BtT
REEREFHAENRZ KRN LB ERITETTERNRE
A EREHWARERBER
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Key audit matters (Continued) AR ERT S 1E (80

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HMNFT WA REZEE

The Key Audit Matter
FARESE

We identified the recognition of revenue from . comparing, on a sample basis, sales transactions

sales to distributors and retailers as a key audit
matter because the revenue generated therefrom
accountsforthe majority ofthe Group’srevenue and
involves large number of individual sales contracts
and because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group which increases the risk of
misstatement of the timing and amount of revenue
recognised by management to achieve specific
performance targets or expectations.
BMEEIARE D HANTERHENRAI AERE
FPEIE - ERHEHEANBAL SREWANEKRED
B RAREBHERNHEESR  ANEEARAR BXE
MEF—IHERENER  EENTEERAEREE
45 BRI SRR AR R A R B SRRV R BE -

recorded during the financial reporting period with the
corresponding goods delivery notes, which contained
evidence of acknowledgement of the customers’
receipt of the goods, and assessing if the related
revenue was properly recognised in accordance with
the trade terms set out in the respective sales contracts;
BEAEEL RIS AR R EE R 5 B 3
E¥  #EEFREFBEARZEMMER - SHEHEEI
ARBERIBHEENIHES BT RS RARHER

assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions recorded around the end of the
financial reporting period had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by inspecting the trade
terms agreed with the individual customers and the
delivery status of the relevant products;
BEAEEFBRELEERTFAHE 2 X B IRRAREEE
EmARAIREE - FHETEI SR E A RA R TRV ER
ARZREBCHEEENVBEAER

identifying significant credit notes issued and sales
returns from the sales ledger subsequent to the
financial reporting period and by making enquiries
of management and inspecting relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the related revenue had
been accounted for in the appropriate financial period
in accordance with the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards; and

B BHmERENHEERBFICHACERNECENHE
RE - WEBA R EIEE RBEERD T35 30 ARHEERA UL
ARBEZRBRRITEHENNRENEE NI BHBERER |
&

inspecting significant manual adjustments to revenue
during the reporting period, enquiring of management
about the reasons for such adjustments and comparing
details of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
REVFBREPRBRAFENEAFBHAR  aEEEE
A BERAENIER R R R Xt -
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report

thereon

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the

consolidated financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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é? Independent Auditor’s Report
B B RS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of

the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

B EET
£
EMHNER  EHGSUBBRREBREIEHE
AR R M E SN ERHERRAMEEHE
R LHABEEMASROABERS - BA
REREB (DX ARM) F405RWHRE - EM)
BEMBIRE o BRILLISS - RAIMIRE T AL
Hitt A% - RFIFETRABENAS - $EAH
AT EEHEREREFE -

HRE M HRRARNE

SERBESKTHRE  EFERBER(E
BEE E'J»zEﬁE’J%*’r R —-BERERBRL
TRIERFARREER IR o BHERMRM AJ LA R BRFF R 88 5R 5
iy ZZD%AIE%EHHMH%?S%‘%E AR RERE
ARE I IRAR L R B AR R A AR AR H A
RE - BIEBRIERBUL AT R EE R o

ERE (B BETEL) ETETNBREF K
1F3 ERATEXRAE  RETEXEREE - BN

- EBIMFEHREREERERMEBRGS M
BHRFEEAHERRAVERE - KT R
HTENEFUBRYELRRE - URER
ZRMBENETRE  FRAEMIERMN
Bt o ARKRFARPRER BRE- B
BER ERRL - SERBERABES 2
F FAtREHRBERKFMERNE KRG
REHER SN RERREERMER
MY R SEER IR RO B

- THREBFTHHEBEHOASES  UREE
MESREF  EEMLFYE SRERI
EHNEMEERER -
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é? Independent Auditor’s Report
B B RS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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é? Independent Auditor’s Report
B B RS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lau Tai Cheong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29th June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
RelRax

For the year ended 31st March2022 EZ—_E_—_F=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( SAS# 5 &)

2022 2021
ot St - —EBE-—F
(Restated)
(E31)
Note izt $°000 Tt $000 F T
uR&e)\(enue 3 6,501,215 7,519,817
;?;ét ﬁgi;;ales (3,430,534) (3,565,412)
%r;uss profit 3,070,681 3,954,405
gt{mrz i)rccome 4 126,187 121,800
%%ke;égﬁzﬂlﬁgggcgd distribution expenses (2,215,199) (2,222,396)
%dﬁr;g;trqtive expenses (702,358) (630,251)
%t{%z gépér%ting expenses 5(c) (492,162) (380,087)
%oﬁss()g;g)ﬁ;gg operations (212,851) 843,471
%gg;x“s“ 5(a) (23,071) (11,770)
;;{Ez\gg%sgéﬁoint venture (22,242)
gé?g%%%gs%gé?grest in joint venture 15(a) (42,800)
g;;;%/ I(Dé;‘;‘; ";"g‘%ﬁ taxation 5 (235,922) 766,659
;Er)%;:%nie tax 6(a) 74,541 (177,151)
%2%/8;;5 f;r;éf%ﬁr year (161,381) 589,508

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEEBEHEX

For the year ended 31st March2022 EZ—_E_—_F=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( SAS# 5 &)

Attributable to:
THIALER :

Equity shareholders of the Company
AREREFEA

Non-controlling interests

RS

(Loss)/profit for the year
REE (BR) E5F

(Loss)/earnings per share

B (B18) &%

Basic

B-¥N

Diluted
#E

The notes on pages 121 to 250 form part of these financial
statements.

Details of dividends of the Company are set out in note 25(b).

2021

—EBE-—F

$000 F T

(158,750) 548,346
(2,631) 41,162
(161,381) 589,508

(14.9 Cents 1l|) RN RX TR

((EX-NOIAX]  51.0 Cents 1l

1212 250 B2 MFE T ANB ik 2 — &R0 o

BEAARBRREZF BN 25(0)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FeRaRABEZEHRER

For the year ended 31st March 2022 #Z—Z-_—F=HA=+—HILEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( AB#ETE)

2022
—m——

—_———

Note FfizE $°000 Tt

(Loss)/profit for the year
AEE (B8) 55

Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax)

AEEHMPEKES (BFRBE)

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

HETEREHSBRHRS 2R ¢

Remeasurement of employee retirement benefit liabilities

BERMKENEBEZEHNE

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss:

HETRWEH S WEREZER

Exchange differences on translation of financial
statements of subsidiaries and joint venture outside
Hong Kong

ReERBLUIMENE R RIREE AR 2B EHRK M
BEECERERE

Cash flow hedge: net movement in the hedging reserve

REREHH  HHRHERS

(161,381)

Total comprehensive income for the year

AEETENESRE

Attributable to:
THIALE :

Equity shareholders of the Company
RATRBREFEA

Non-controlling interests

FEER S

(76,049)

2,583

Total comprehensive income for the year

AEEZENSRE

(73,466)

The notes on pages 121 to 250 form part of these financial
statements.
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2021
B —F
$°000 Tt

589,508

22,177

246,978

862

859,525

776,967

82,558

859,525
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FREaMBERAE

At 31st March 2022 R=ZZE=-="F=H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A& # a5 )

NS i3 $°000 Fir $000 Fit

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment

M - BERRE

- Investment properties

- REMHE

- Right-of-use assets

- EREEE

- Other property, plant and equipment
- Hi¥3% - BERRKRE

Deposits for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

BEYHX  BERREZITE

Intangible assets

BEE

Goodwill

BE

Interest in joint venture

BE QR 2R

Deferred tax assets

ELERIRE E

Current assets

REEE

Inventories

7E8

Trade and other receivables
P LS B R T LAt PR AR
Current tax recoverable
FEUR BT 1E

Cash and bank deposits
RERBITEXR

Current liabilities
RENEME

Trade and other payables
FEAS BR 7R K EL A B AR
Bank loans

RITER

Lease liabilities

HERE

Current tax payable

FESIR TR

Net current liabilities
BREBAE
Total assets less current liabilities

BEEMRBEE

11(a)

11(f)

12
13
15

24(b)

16
17
24(a)

18(a)

19
20
21

24(a)

773,384

1,123,027

37,889

621,863
2,556,163

2,432,523

489,829

96,901

12,334
3,031,587

341,130

3,623,838
3,968,218

281,707
4,250,957

(475,424)

3,775,533

2021
—E-—F

$°000 ¥t $000 Tt

3,250 3,376
351,797
3,787,545
4,142,718
264 2,404
3,697
18,352
139,489
4,306,660
725,526
1,194,108
79,594
970,522
2,969,750
2,819,336
130,306
93,582
40,750
3,083,974
(114,224)
4,192,436
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é? Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R

At 31st March 2022 R=ZZE=-="F=H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A& # a5 )

Note HfzE

Non-current liabilities

ERENEE

Lease liabilities

HEEE

Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EERINEFEE

Deferred tax liabilities

EERIEEE

Other payables

HAb B

21

22(b)

24(b)

19

NET ASSETS

BEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

BAR A

Share capital

LEN

Reserves

#E

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

ARTREREARGESEHE

Non-controlling interests

FEiEM RS

TOTAL EQUITY

25(c)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 29th June 2022.

Winston Yau-lai LO
BRE
Director

EE

The notes on pages 121 to 250 form part of these financial
statements.
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2022 2021
—F_— —E-—F

$°000 Tt $°000 Tt JEXelelole b AN Yelolols i

111,853

7,461

116,248
206,434 235,562
3,569,099 3,956,874
1,013,028 984,030
2,244,885 2,632,023
3,257,913 3,616,053
311,186 340,821
3,569,099 3,956,874

R=B-—FAA-TNAEESEHELRE
Bff o

Roberto GUIDETTI
1S
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeEcgDx

For the year ended 31st March 2022 B8Z—E-_—_F=A=+—HILEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( SAS# 5 &)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FOTRERAARL
Share-basedd
compensation Non-
Share Capital Surplus Other ~ General  Hedging  Exchange reseve  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reseve  RAER profits Total interests equity
Bx  ErER  BHRR  RbEE  -BER HMEE  EXRR  BERE  RERY At FEREE  RRER
(note (note (note (note (note (note (note
2500 256 2506 2506 B 25 25
(WaEasl)  (WzEasle) (WEasle) (M 25(e) (WE2sle) (W25 (W2l

Note ) ) (i) (i) (iv)) ) )
i3 $000F% $000F7w $000F;m $000Fr $000F% $000F7T $000F:m  $000Fm  $000FT $000FT $000FTL  $000F%

Bal t 1st April 2020
ng%c:eéwgnaﬁﬁ; 939308 33958 115279  (48242) 2261 (43) (220970) 43791 2263028 3128300 289714 3418104
Changes in equity for the year:

BEEVRREY:

Profit for the year } ) ) ) ) } ; B
KEERA 548346 548346 41162 589,508

Other comprehensive income 9

2 EkE . 1107 205337 - U7 28621 413% 270017

Total comprehensive income i} ; i} ; B :
2AEeE 1107 205,337 570525 776367 82558 859,525

Transfer from retained profits
to surplus reserve - - 147 - - - - - (1784))
BREENERZEHER

Transfer from capitol reserve to
retained profits 25(e)i) - (L8 - - - - - - 1218
RETEEREREE

Shares issued on exercise of
share options B(i) 44,702 - - - - - - (667 - 38031 - 38031
ATERREMEIRG

Transfer from share-bosed

compensation reserve to

retained profits - - - - - - - (437) 437
ARAERRERAERE

REEN

Equity settled share-based
transactions = > > > = = - 154% - 1545 - 1545
WRHARRER RS

Final dividend approved in
respect of the previous year  25(b)i) - - - - - - - - (302,325 (302325) - (302,325)
HEBR L-EE2RBRE

Interim dividend declared in
respect of the current year 25(0)() - - - - - - - - (40465)  (40,465) - (40465)
EREEZHHRE

Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (31451)  (3L45))
MEERESTERS

Balance at 31st March 2021
=B —EZfZt-pis 984,030 740 133126 (48,242 2,261 1064 (15633) 52,138 2474569 3616053 340821 3956874

The notes on pages 121 to 250 form part of these financial F121E 250 EZ2MiE D ABt H k2 — 3B ©
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEREZE PR

For the year ended 31st March2022 EZ—_E_—_F=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( SAS# 5 &)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FOTRREBARE
Shares
held for Share-bosed
share award compensation Non-
Shore  scheme  Capitl ~ Surplus Other  General  Hedging  Exchange resene  Retained controlling Total
copital - BEEEHE  resene  resee  reseve reseve resene reseve  EEE profits Totol interests equity
Fr BRBG  ERGE  BBRE  REBE  -REE  HARR  ERER AR REM 8 FEREE  BEEE
(note (note (note (note (note (note (note (note
) 25@) 256 26K 256 250l 250l 25kl
(afosi) (WaEos) (Kifoste) (W25l (W2l (K25l (HE2sle) (25
Note 1) 1) (i) (i) (iv) (V) )

W& $000F% $000FR $000F% $000TZ $000FR $000F% $000FR $000F%  $000Fm $000F% $000Fn $000FR $000FR

Balance at 31st March 2021
and 1t Apri 2021

H-B-—EZH=1-AR 984,030 - 3,740 133126 (48242) 2,261 1064 (15633) 52,138 2474569 3616053 340,821 3,956,874
ZR--ERA-RER

Changes in equity for the year:

KEE/RRRE:

Loss for the year
KEERR

- (158,750) (158,750) (2631) (161,381)

QOther comprehensive income
g{@gmu&% 9 - - - = - - (427) 82,559 - 569 82,701 5214 87,915

g%"q‘&ggﬂﬁgéehe“'ve income - - - . . - ) 82559 - (158181) (6049) 2583  (73466)

Transfer from retained profits to
surplus reserve - - - 2450 - - - - - (2450) - - -
BREENEAZENGR

Transfer from copital reserve to
retained profits 25(e)() - - (1,28) - - - - - 18 - - -
BEIREERERGEN

Shares issued on exercise of
share options (i) 28,998 - - - - - - - (4413)
FEERERLIRG

Transfer from share-based

compensction reserve to

retained profits - - - - - - - - (2508) 2,508 - - -
ARAERRERAERE

REAH

Shares purchased under share
award scheme 25(d)
HROREHERERD

Equity settled share-based
transactions - - - - - - - - 13484 - 13484 - 13484
WEHARRER RS

Final dividend opproved in
respect of the previous year 25(b)ii - - - - - - - - - (310,58) (310,158) - (310,158)
HEBRL-EE<RBRE

Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 5 .
i ERERRERE

fpe 100308 (10007 3152 16 (8242) 2261 G G606 58701 2007506 3257913 3i1i86 3569099

24,585 - 24585

(10,002) - - - - - - - - (10002) - (10002)

(32,218)  (32,218)

The notes on pages 121 to 250 form part of these financial % 121%F 250 B 2 st I AR Bt i iRk < — 310 ©
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FEBeRER

For the year ended 31st March 2022 H#Z—_ZE - =HA=+—HILFEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A& # a5 )

2021
—E-—F

Note FfizE BEXeloJolsab K Yoo 053 Al $°000 T $°000 FT

Operating activities

EEEY

Cash generated from operations

REXBERT

Tax paid:
EHBIE ¢

- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
- EHEBREH

- Tax paid outside Hong Kong
- CREBUIMEEHE

Net cash generated from operating
activities

REFHFREHLBE

Investing activities

REEH

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

BEWE BERREZHE

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment

HEMZE - BERRBAEHE

Government grants received for acquisition
of plant and equipment

e BB RS B 5k AR 2 B WR BURT /B

Interest received

EHFIE

Payment for the acquisition of pollution
discharge right
BEHSE R

Net cash used in investing activities

REZHFARLEHE

18(b) 189,568 1,448,019
(54,911) (8,795)
(10,267) (179,458)
124,390 1,259,766
(409,507) (649,581)
1,550
11(a) 6,460
5,160
(286)

(400,263)

(636,697)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

REBRETRER

For the year ended 31st March 2022 H#Z—_ZE - =HA=+—HILFEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( AB#ETE)

2021
B

$°000 T3t $°000 FTiT [EXelelolssr AN Yelolok v

Note H{zE

Financing activities
R EE
Proceeds from new bank loans

. s 18 484,574 149,112
57030 1T B 2B T (©)

Repayment of bank loans

BIRITEE 18 133,742 273,577
EBRITER () (133,742) ( )

Capital element of lease rentals paid

ENEEEE 2B

Interest element of lease rentals paid

EEERS 2 RIS A0

18(c) (84,880) (80,169)

18(c) (y1:-1:)) (8,137)

Interest paid

16,773 5
SEEE =N 18(c) ( ) (3,633)
Proceeds from shares issued on exercise of

share options 25(c)(ii) 38,031

PATEBRERITRDAERA

Purchases of shares held for share award
scheme 25(d) (10,002) -
TR 1D R B ET BB B AR D

Dividends paid to equity shareholders of
the Company (310,072) (342,585)
[ B REFE NRER S

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

6] FF 2 IR A K B AR B

Net cash used in financing activities

MEZEFRARERE

(32,218) (31,451)

(84,826) (552,409)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents (360,699) 70,660
ReRRLZEER GAL) NEMEE

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April

AUA—B2ReRASZEER 970,026 K0

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

ERgHoveE 12,038 il 557

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st March

RW=A=+—B2ReRRLSEER dizlfe) 621,365 970,026

The notes on pages 121 to 250 form part of these financial £ 1212 250 B 2 st I AR Bt i szt 2 — 2B 1D ©
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B ¥ 3R & BT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2022 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest
in a joint venture.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis notwithstanding that the Group had net
current liabilities of $475,424,000 at the end of the reporting
period. In preparing these consolidated financial statements,
the Directors have given careful consideration to the current
and anticipated future liquidity of the Group. Taking into
account, inter alia, (i) cash and bank deposits of $621,863,000
at 31st March 2022, (ii) the unutilised loan facilities at the
end of the reporting period, and (iii) the expected net cash
inflows generated from the Group’s operations for the next
twelve months, the Directors are of the opinion that the Group
will be able to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis is appropriate.
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BEE_—_H=-A=1+—-HILEEZHEHE
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URAEER-—BEE AT 2R o

BEAEERBRERREEFRDHEE
475,424,0007C » HREMBERRMARBEL
BEEER - NREAGZAVBEHRERE  EEC
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (Continued)
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out in note 1(t).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements for the
current accounting period:

- Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-79-related rent concessions

beyond 30 June 2021

- Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16, /nterest rate benchmark reform - phase 2

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]

1 EEEFEER @
(b) BMBEHmERZEBEE (&)

BREGEE () TS R MB 2 ITESR T AR
DAEEN  ERUMBHREREUELRASES

of EE

EEEREHRUTS(BBYBRSEER) 28
BHRRESFHELESTHRER  UREE -
BE - WARIHZHESEZHE - A5t RRE
R o WEATTRABRREREATERMNEE
EERERERAASE 2ZRAMEARFEL -
HERBHEEEREELMRARLAREHNRSE
HEERSBREERFLAB < ER -8
BREER AR BIRMA B o

EEEESTHENSEGTNAERE - HES
st Z BT REBE B - ARBITREE
EEHMERT AR - ARSI H E M ARR
HEYAERE  AEFERERT 2 BBMARREE

N
0

FREEEERA(EBUBRELED) KT
HEMHERREEATE 2 HE - LR THE
ERZZEBERFZARAR » BRMEE2 -

(c) BFfERZEH

A EE AR IR0 2 AN RS R AT
EEEHAAREGZ (FEHBREEA) 5
5

- (EERMBREER) FeK 2B [ K=
Fo—FANA=FHEZ 2019 B HER
166518 = Bl |

- (BBMBEREER) FoR - (BBETE
BI) 553935% (BRI HEER) 795
(BBMBHREER) F45R (BBIHKR
HHER) H16 M2 IER] [ FIREEHE - £
2EE |



é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
The impact of the adoption of the amended HKFRS is
discussed below:

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent
concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (2021 amendment)

The Group previously applied the practical expedient in
HKFRS 16 such that, as lessee, it was not required to assess
whether rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic were lease modifications, if the
eligibility conditions were met (see note 1(j)). One of these
conditions requires the reduction in lease payments affect
only payments originally due on or before a specified time
limit. The 2021 amendment extends this time limit from 30th
June 2021 to 30th June 2022.

The Group has adopted the 2021 amendment in this financial
year. There is no impact on the opening balance of equity at
1st April 2021.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark reform -
phase 2

The amendments provide targeted relief from (i) accounting
for changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows
of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as
modifications, and (ii) discontinuing hedge accounting when
an interest rate benchmark is replaced by an alternative
benchmark rate as a result of the reform of interbank offered
rates (“IBOR reform”). The amendments do not have an
impact on these financial statements as the Group does not
have contracts that are indexed to benchmark interest rates
which are subject to the IBOR reform.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries (including structured entities) are entities
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by
the Group and other parties) are considered.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that
voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding
who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate
to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are
directed by means of contractual arrangements.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance
with notes 1(n) or (o) depending on the nature of the liability.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss

is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

(e) Joint venture

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Joint venture (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the joint venture that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see notes 1(f) and (k)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in
an associate or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Joint venture (Continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

(f) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

() (i)

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties using the straight-line method over the shorter of
the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years.

The useful life of investment properties is reviewed annually.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 1(u)(iii).

(h) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(k)(ii)):
- Freehold land and buildings;

- Interests in leasehold land and building where the Group
is the registered owner of the property interest (see note

1G));

- Right-of use assets arising from leases over freehold
or leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest; and

- Other items of plant and equipment including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 1(j)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(w)).
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment
(Continued)
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives, being no more than 25
years.

- Leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their

estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years.

- Other plant and equipment:

Factory machinery and equipment 4 - 25 years
Fixtures, furniture and office equipment 3 -12 years
Motor vehicles 4 -10 years

No provision for depreciation is made for construction in
progress until such time when the assets are substantially
completed and ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- Brand name 20 years
- Customer list 7 years
- Pollution discharge right 5years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.

() Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(j)) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Asalessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those leases which are
not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see notes 1(h) and 1(k)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(j)) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The only exceptions
are any rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases,
the Group took advantage of the practical expedient set out
in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in
consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as
the present value of contractual payments that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately in the statement of financial position.

(i) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee. If this is not
the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with note 1(u)(iii).
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(k) Credit loss and impairment of assets

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) on financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and loan to joint venture).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

Where the effect of discounting is material, the expected
cash shortfalls are discounted using the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation thereof
for trade and other receivables.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EFEFFEER @

(k) Credit loss and impairment of assets k) EEEFEREERE @)
(Continued)

(i)  Credit loss from financial instruments (Continued) () ZHITAZIEEEE (&)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: FEHEEEBRERTIHEP —EEESTS

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to - +ZEB2FEHEEEIE  AHRNRER
result from possible default events within the 12 months e+ -EAANAREEZENEHME
after the reporting date; and BeEE &

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to - AERAFERRZTEHEEEE  FEENEE
result from all possible default events over the expected A EEREEX 2 EE EFRHIEA
lives of the items to which the ECL model applies. EHAFAEARERECENSHEMER >

f&ig -

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables is always FEURBR TN R L FE U RN 2 5 R B8 — IRIRABE R

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. ECLs are TEAFRRAZEREERE 2 S5EE - B

estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s FEFBNERAENFAEBBECEERBRRERZ

historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are BBEMETHE  IHRAREAHEBTAZE

specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the current EEZE R E /I & BRI 288 BN 2 54 F

and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting LUAEE o

date.

Write-off policy MHBUR

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off HMEMEELBERWEA R AHKREAE

(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic (BB HEIB) AWM - ZIBERBEHIBEALR

prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the SERAEBRALBEERNARRAIELERHA

Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or HeREUNEERLTFME2SRE -

sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Credit loss and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at

the end of each reporting period to identify indications that

the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of

goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets and investment properties;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill;
- interest in joint venture; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(k) Credit loss and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report
in compliance with HKAS 34, /nterim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average method and
compirises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

(m) Receivables

Areceivableisrecognised whenthe Group has anunconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(k)

().

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(o) Payables and contract liabilities

(i)  Payables

Payables areinitially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(i) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 1(u)). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 1(m)).

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(k)(i).

(g) Employee benefits
(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
() Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
retirement plans is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine the present value and the fair value
of any plan assets is deducted. The calculation is performed
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net
defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised in profit and
loss and allocated by function as part of “cost of sales”,
“marketing, selling and distribution expenses”, “administrative
expenses” or “other operating expenses”. Current service
cost is measured as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in
the current period. When the benefits of a plan are changed,
or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit
related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on
curtailment, is recognised as an expense in profit and loss at
the earlier of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs
and when related restructuring costs or termination benefits
are recognised. Net interest expense/(income) for the period
is determined by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
reporting period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset).
The discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting
period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset)) and any change in the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset)).
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Long service payments obligation

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump sum long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their services in the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted to determine the present value
and reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s
retirement plans that are attributable to contributions made
by the Group. The discount rate is the yield at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s
obligation. The obligation is calculated by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

(iv) Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions
The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments of the
Company. These plans comprise share option schemes and a
share award scheme.

The fair value of share options or share awards granted
to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in the share-based compensation
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options or the awarded shares were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options or the awarded shares,
the total estimated fair value of the options or the awarded
shares is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options or the awarded shares will
vest.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
() Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv) Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options or the
awarded shares that are expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the
year of the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based compensation reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options or awarded
shares that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares.

For the share option schemes, the equity amount is recognised
in the share-based compensation reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

For the share award scheme, the Group may acquire its own
shares through the trustee of the share award scheme on the
Stock Exchange for the shares to be vested under the share
award scheme. The shares acquired by the Group that are
not yet vested for this share award scheme were recorded
as treasury shares and recorded as “Shares held for share
award scheme” as a deduction under equity. Upon vesting of
the awarded shares, the related costs of the acquired shares
are reduced from the “Shares held for share award scheme”,
and the related fair value of the awarded shares are debited
to share-based compensation reserve with the difference
charged/credited to equity.

The Group may also issue new shares for the vested share
awards. The amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to share capital
upon the issuance of new shares.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3R & MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment
of termination benefits.

(r)
0]

(ii)

(iii)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r) Income tax (Continued)
(iii) (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the
tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3R & MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1

(r)
(iv)

(v)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(t) Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on re-measurement of
the derivative financial instrument to fair value is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any
gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t) Cash flow hedges (Continued)

If the hedging instrument is a non-derivative monetary
item, which is permitted only for foreign currency risk, then
the effective portion of the foreign currency gains or losses
on the hedging instrument also are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any foreign
currency gains or losses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss reclassified from equity is
to be included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of
the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss (such as
when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period or
periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects
profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss immediately.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Revenue recognition
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use
the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and services promised under
the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

(i)  Service fees

Service fees are recognised when the related services are
provided. Service fees exclude value added tax or other sales
taxes.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied
to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 1(k)(i)).

(v) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss, except those non-derivative
monetary items used to hedge foreign currency risk which are
recognised in other comprehensive income (see note 1(t)).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that subsidiary
outside Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary
items that in substance form part of the net investment in an
operation outside Hong Kong, together with any related tax,
are reclassified to equity on consolidation.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(x) Repair and maintenance expenditure
Repair and maintenance expenditure, including cost of
overhaul, is expensed as incurred.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3R & MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHBIN - SUBMEH)
1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(y)
(a)

(b)

Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the key

management personnel of the entity (or a parent

of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

2 Accounting judgements and estimates
Notes 15, 22 and 23 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to interest in joint
venture impairment assessment, defined benefit retirement
liabilities and the fair value of share options and share awards
granted. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
If circumstances indicate that the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment may not be recoverable, the assets
may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36, /mpairment of
assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and the value
in use. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to level of sales
volume, selling prices and amount of operating costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount. However, actual sales volumes, selling prices and
operating costs may be different from assumptions which may
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
assets affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in note 11.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates
(Continued)

(b) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
cash flows from the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-
generating units) and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Details of the estimates used to calculate the recoverable
amount are disclosed in note 13.

(c) Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories as disclosed in note 16 with reference to aged
inventories analysis, expected future consumption and
management judgement. Based on these reviews, write
down of inventories will be made when the estimated net
realisable value of inventories decline below the carrying
amount. However, actual consumption may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by differences
in this estimation.

(d) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax benefits can be utilised, management’s
judgements is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised
if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax assets to be recovered. Details of the nature
and carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are disclosed in
note 24(b).
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting

(a) Revenue
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of
returns, rebates and discounts.

No disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
is presented as the entire revenue of the Group is derived
from the manufacture and sale of food and beverages, and is
recognised at point in time.

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which are
organised geographically. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following four reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

- The Mainland China business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soya milk, tea, juice, etc. in
Mainland China;

- The Hong Kong Operation (the Hong Kong SAR,
the Macau SAR and Exports) mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soya milk, tea, water, juice,
tofu, etc. in the Hong Kong SAR, sale of beverages in
the Macau SAR, export of beverages from the Hong
Kong SAR and the operating of tuck shops and catering
businesses in the Hong Kong SAR;

- The Australia and New Zealand business mainly
represents the manufacture and sale of soya milk
and other plant milk products in Australia and sale of
beverages in New Zealand; and

- The Singapore business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soya related products in
Singapore, sale of beverages in Singapore and the
export of soya related products.

All of the Group’s revenue is generated from the manufacture
and sale of food and beverages.
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BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and

allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most

senior executive management monitors the results, assets

and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of interest in
joint venture, deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable,
goodwill and unallocated head office and corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade creditors and bills payable
attributable to the manufacture and sales activities of
the individual segments, bank loans, lease liabilities and
other liabilities managed directly by the segments with the
exception of employee retirement benefit liabilities, deferred
tax liabilities, current tax payable and unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment (loss)/profit is
“(loss)/profit from operations”. To arrive at “(loss)/profit from
operations”, the Group’s (loss)/profit is further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual segments, such
as finance costs, share of losses of joint venture, impairment
loss on interest in joint venture, goodwill and brand name and
unallocated head office and corporate expenses. Income tax
is not allocated to reporting segments. Inter-segment sales
are priced at cost plus a profit margin.
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting 3 WARSBHESE @

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 2EBFRE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) DEFEE  BEEREBE (8)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as BB —_FER-FT-_-—-F=A=1+—HLHE
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management B FERAERRSETHEEABRMZE
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of BRERDHRET G2 ARE D EBEREHS A0
segment performance for the years ended 31st March 2022 T:

and 2021 is set out below:

Mainland China Hong Kong Operation  Australia and New Zealand Singapore Total
EIR i BB g a5t

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

ot oot —E--F IZBZC —E--F IZEIZ —E--F IZEZZ —E--% I%IC “E--f&

$000FX $000Fx $000FT $000F;m $000FT $000F7T $000FT $000Fx $000FT $000F7

Revenue from external customers

RENBBEZ IR 3,838,297 5,008,000 1,933,856 1865452 606,971 528,022 122,091 118,343 6,501,215 7,519,817

Inter-segment revenue

e 74,773 58,815 23,558 30,133 6,630 11,749 4,314 4,255 109,275 104,952
AHEBA

Reportable segment revenue

ARESBIWA 3,913,070 5,066,815 1,957,414 1895585 613,601 539,771 126,405 122,598 6,610,490 7,624,769

Reportable segment (loss)/profit
from operations (340,309) 524,401 198,989 354,792 77,731 67,999  (12,692) 3014  (76,281) 950,206
AREAD2EE (BR) /&7

Interest income from bank deposits
RAERZAEBA

3,706 3,967 1,845 1,190 = 3 2 5,553 5,160

%’g;&ms (17,438)  (3508)  (4,459)  (7,000) (741) (831) (433) (431)  (23071) (11,770)
Depreciation and amortisation for
the year (348,441) (278911) (186,475) (185381) (19,202) (18892)  (5499)  (4664) (559,617) (487,848)
KEEZHEREH

Impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment (49,280)  (23,176)  (1,674)  (12,653) -
% BERREZAEES

(1,917) (52,871)  (35829)

Reportable segment assets

ARESDIBE 4,002,273 4,430,545 3,615172 3,578,124 495760 461,614 114487 105208 8,227,692 8575491

Reportable segment liabilities

ARESBIEE 2,875,854 2,750,636 ~ 958,598 820,889 149,026 126,521 38,968 29,611 4,022,446 3,727,657

Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year 125860 576,070 135660 113,446 42,732 7,245 20,872 5285 325124 702,046
FEEREZFRDIHEE
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BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting 3 WARSBHESE @
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 2EBFRE (&)
(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, (i) ZEIHEDZUA - B  BERBEZ
profit or loss, assets and liabilities 03
2022 2021
ol St —EC—F
$°000 Tt $000 F T
Revenue
WA
Reportable segment revenue
, - 6,610,490 7,624,769
AMEDEBZWA
Elimination of inter-segment revenue
o Yoy 109,275 104,952
2 EBRA 2 ‘ ) ( )
Consolidated revenue
7,519,817
mEWA
2022 2021
—EZZHF B —F
$°000 Tt $°000 F T
Profit or loss
B|as
Reportable segment (loss)/profit from operations
BAREH B2 EE (BR) 6 PRPER, 950,206
Finance costs (note 5(a))
s s 23,071 11,770
BERA (Hf3E5()) (23,071) (11,770)
Share of losses of joint venture
m 2 22,242
FrisaE A AR 22.2¢2)
Impairment loss on interest in joint venture (note 15(a)) (42,800)
BENRESE2RERE (M 15(a)) ’
Impairment losses on goodwill (note 13)
Ry e 18,323 =
R 2 AERE (Wi 13) PR
Impairment losses on brand name (note 12) (2,303) _
mhE B RERE (FE12) ’
Unallocated head office and corporate expenses
s 115,944 106,735
AW BAAROKES { ’ { )
Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation 766.659

FERBA (B18) 8F
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(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

3 WARDERERE (&)

(b) DEPERE (@)
(i) AHEDEUA - Bk - BEREBEZ
ik (4)

Assets

BE

Reportable segment assets

AREDHZEE

Elimination of inter-segment receivables

7 BB R R oz s

Interest in joint venture
BE LR R

Deferred tax assets
ELBREE

Current tax recoverable

FEW R BA TR

Goodwill

G

Unallocated head office and corporate assets

RAAMzBLRREEEE

Consolidated total assets

REREE

2022 2021
—F_— =B —F
$°000 Tt $000 F T
8,227,692 8,575,491
(1,740,925) (1,544,815)
6,486,767 7,030,676

281,707 139,489
37,889 79,594
18,352

8,299

6,807,120 7,276,410
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting 3 WARSBHESE @
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZHHE (@)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, (i) ZEIHEDZUA - B  BERBEZ
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) #AR (#8)

2022 2021
ol S B —F
$°000 Tt $°000 Tt

Liabilities

a&

Reportable segment liabilities

FRE B AE 4,022,446 3,727,657

Elimination of inter-segment payables

2 BRI 2 M (927,210) (598.539)

3,095,236 3,129,118

Employee retirement benefit liabilities

= = 6,222 7,461
EEEAKEFNEE ’
Deferred tax liabilities
FEREE & 99,116 116,248

Current tax payable

\, 12,334 40,750
FE{S IR HAF 1E ’
Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities

N 25,11 25,
RAT AN RAELEEE 5,113 5,959

Consolidated total liabilities

meEas 3,319,536
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(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(iii) Geographic information
The following table sets out information about the
geographic location of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment, deposits for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and interest in
joint venture (“specified non-current assets”). The geographic
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of property, plant
and equipment and deposits for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, and the location of the operation to
which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets and
goodwill and the location of operations, in the case of interest
in joint venture.

3 WARDERERE (&)

(b) DEWE (@)
(iii) fﬁ@ﬁff/

T%?EEU%E’EZFEE"W% BB R A 2 it B
BEYXE - RERREZITS  BEEE -
%E&E’\\E\%’D\jzﬁﬁﬁ (IMBEFRBEE])
ZER - BNE BERRERBEVE KE
HREZFIemMs BEFRDEEZHIEBENE
DIRBEZEECERMERTE  REFEERHE
EMZAEEERBECEH TN  MNREELD

Bz RS IS ATE M -

Specified non-current assets

Mainland China
R A it

Hong Kong Operation
S

Australia and New Zealand

BN K P B

Singapore

Ik

BEFRDEE
2022 2021
—E—— B —F
$'000 Tt $°000 T
2,877,540 3,035,778
777,477 830,984
262,447 241,411
58,998
3,969,250 4,167,171

The revenue from external customers and specified non-
current assets of the Group attributed to Hong Kong, the
Group’s place of domicile, amounted to $1,703,210,000 (2021:
$1,601,851,000) and $772,211,000 (2021: $825,014,000)
respectively.

&8 CREEFTEH) GAREERBINEER 2 WA
RSB EIFRBEEDFI%1,703,210,000 7T
(=ZZ2=—% :1,601,851,0007t) &%772,211,000
T (ZE=—F : 825,014,000 ) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

4 Otherincome

4 HiglgA

2021
=B —F
$°000 Tt
Government grants (Note)
5 73,912
BB (BaE)
COVID-19-related rent concessions 20.902
2019 BikmESHAEEETER '
Interest income from bank deposits 5.160
RATEFERZF B WA ’
Interest income from loan to joint venture 2628
aEEARBHERZFEWA ’
Rental income
4,034
HERA
Scrap sales
Iy 2,893
BERISHE
Reversal of long outstanding other payables 1168
REAREEHMEMNREE ’
Maintenance recharge income 5237
W EIE B WA
Sundry income
N 5,866
FETEIAA
126,187 121,800
Note: MEE -

During the current year, government grants of $53,319,000 (2021:
$1,665,000) were received from the government of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) in relation to an investment in Mainland
China in 2020. Other government grants included COVID-19 financial
assistance in Mainland China, the Hong Kong SAR and Singapore
amounting to $13,847,000 (2021: $63,483,000) and value-added
tax refunded and other financial assistance received from the
government of the PRC.

Other government grants received in relation to the acquisition of

property, plant and equipment were netted off against the cost of
the related assets (note 11(a)).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

5 (Loss)/profit before taxation 5 BR#AT (B518) iEF
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BEAT (BER) u5Fe g (5FA)
(crediting):
2021
—EBE-—F
$°000 Tt
(a) Finance costs:
AERA
Interest on bank loans (note 18(c)) 3633
RITERZFIL (FIFE 18(c)) ’
Interest on lease liabilities (note 18(c)) 8.137
HESEZFILE (FFE18(c)) ’
11,770
2022 2021
== —E-—F
$°000 Tt $°000 Tt
(b) Staff costs:
BT :
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
NN - 122,469 76,809
REMFRKEE 2R
Net expenses recognised in respect of:
UTHEZEBIAERFE
- retirement gratuities (note 22(c)(v)) 3362
- B E (MEE22(c)(v)) ’
- long service payments
958
- RERBE
Total retirement costs
5 = 126,286 81,129
HRIRR A
Equity settled share-based payment expenses (note 23)
- s 13,484 15,455
URMBNRERER (ME23) ’
Severance payment
i 60,930 8,595
ERER
Salaries, wages and other benefits
. . = 1,619,612 1,525,549
¥E - TERHEMER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

5 (Loss)/profit before taxation (Continued)
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting): (Continued)

5 B&EiA (8E) B @
BB (B518) SRFIEMNBR (BHA) © (@)

2022
—E__—HF

$°000 Tt

(c) Other operating expenses:
HttEEE M
Staff costs
BT A
Sundry tax in Mainland China

R B Py it Y HL b B TR

Management fee charged by a related party

B S W EIEE

Royalty withholding tax
HErEEAERINN

Quality assurance and sampling expenses

EERERENER
Depreciation and amortisation
EREE

Professional fee

EXE

Repair and maintenance expenses

HERREEHN

Donation

B/

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note 18(b))

HEMX - BENREEEFHE (M 18(b))
Write down of inventories

MoRF &

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables

FEW BRR R HLAB FE WK 2 BB 18

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
% - BERREZBERE

Impairment losses on goodwill

BB ZRERR

Impairment losses on brand name

miE AR RERE

Others

Hit

191,489

39,299

34,279

13,434

21,284

15,880

12,595

6,629

6,280

2,724

20,406

11,867

52,871

18,323

2,303

42,499

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]

2021
—E-—F
(Restated)

(E3))
$000 F T

165,959

45,863

33,354

20,800

18,432

14,841

4,674

6,958

2,992

5,957

2,035

248

35,829

22,145

380,087




é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

5 (Loss)/profit before taxation (Continued) 5 BR#AT (B588) aF |
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BEAT (BER) R g (5tA) @ (8)

(crediting): (Continued)

2021
—EBE-—F
$000 F T
(d) Otheritems:
Hiwg g :
I?;%%gjg“&%t%r CliS e (83,039) (235,382)
COVID-19-related rent concessions
2019 BRAEHEHES TR (22,409) (25.438)
Amortisation of intangible assets
AR 659 68
Depreciation
e
:;gg;;ent properties 126 126
B} g%%—géuse assets 100,763 103,391
:g;{g%éssets 458,069 383,673
Impairment losses
REEE
- Trade and other receivables 248
- FRWARR R H A FER
- Property, plant and equipment
- - R 35829
- Goodwill (note 13) _
-BE (fE13)
- Brand name (note 12) _
-mhEEE (e 12)
- Interest in joint venture (note 15(a)) 42.800
-5EARZER (MEE 15()) ’
Auditors’ remuneration
BTN 2
- Audit services
- BRI e
- Other audit-related services 241
- Hit w2 AR B RS
- Tax services
- BBARR 234
- Other services
- BABBR 177
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities 13,368 11,778
et AHEEETT 22 AEHAENH
Net foreign exchange gain
pradiets f o (317) (11,454)
Cost of inventories (note 16(b)) 3,451,179 3,566,484

FERA (3F 16(b))
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3R & MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

5

(Loss)/profit before taxation (Continued)

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting): (Continued)

(d)

Other items: (Continued)

Note: During the current year, government grants of $53,319,000

(@)

(2021: $1,665,000) were received from the government of
the PRC in relation to an investment in Mainland China in
2020. Other government grants included COVID-19 financial
assistance in Mainland China, the Hong Kong SAR, and
Singapore amounted to $19,826,000 (2021: $224,953,000),
of which $13,847,000 (2021: $63,483,000) was included in
other income, $2,662,000 (2021: $151,988,000) was netted
off against staff costs and $3,317,000 (2021: $9,482,000) was
netted off against cost of sales and operating expenses.

Income tax in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss
Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:

5

BREiaT (B18) ER @)

BRELAET (B518) SRFEMER GEA) @ ()

(d)

MyEE

(a)

HuEg « (&)

RAFR —BEE-_S_ZERHPERNBNR
EMmMESPEBNT—E®ML53319,000 T (=
£ = — £ :1,6650007) ° H i EE20197E ik &
SHEEMRTERG - EBENTRERH
hn 3 % h B AT & 18 219,826,000 (ZFE = —
F1224,9530007) B EFHMBKASR
13,847,000 7T (=& = — £ : 63,483,0007T) *
2,662,000 (=& = — & :151,988,0007t) £
ETRAEESE 23,317,000 (ZB=—4F:
9,482,000 7t) EBASHER AR R S B FI1EIREH o

FeERR2ZEH
FEBERZBIENT ¢
2022 2021

—E—= B —F
$°000 Tt $°000 Tt

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax

REAHIE - EBFIEH

Provision for the year

FRERE

Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years

DEFEZBETR (SHES)

43,329

(2,818)

40,511

Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
REHIR - FRUIMIE

Provision for the year

FRERE

Under-provision in respect of prior years

iEFEZBERR

165,455

1,000

55,665 166,455

Deferred tax

IEEEHIR

(154,970) (29,815)

(74,541) 177,151

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]




é? Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3R & MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

6

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss (Continued)
Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents: (Continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2022 is calculated
at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
the year.

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax
laws, regulations and implementation guidance notes, the
statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company’s
subsidiaries in Shenzhen, Foshan, Shanghai, Wuhan, Dongguan
and Nansha is 25%.

In addition, the Group is subject to withholding tax at the
applicable rate of 5% on distribution of profits generated
after 31st December 2007 from the Group’s foreign-invested
enterprises in Mainland China. Deferred tax liabilities have
been provided for in this regard based on the expected
dividends to be distributed from the foreign-invested
enterprises in Mainland China in the foreseeable future in
respect of the profits generated after 31st December 2007.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside the Hong Kong SAR and
Mainland China is charged at the appropriate current rates of
taxation ruling in the relevant tax jurisdictions.

(ii)

(iii)

HmERIERZIAEHR (8

FEBRmRZBENT ¢ (&)

TECCFEBRESHBERRFERNZMGTER
BaFL16.5%(ZF=—F  16.5%) ZBETE -

RIBHEBEPECERETER  ERRERIESIF
B ERARAXEZRIN L B RER
EREIMB AR ZEEMEBRES 25% °

Lo - AEBEARAEETEABINEREUR=
ZRLE+ A+ -HEEE BT 22K
5% E A RMATRMNB - AEEE FULREF
H AN ERERATERRRBTUR -2 LF
TZA=+-BRELZEND KRR EFHRIEL
BEAE -

EBFHTHERTENGUME ZHEREZ
HIARRARTRREERE RITEABRAH -
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

6 Income taxin the consolidated

statement of profit or loss (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense and
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

6 FRRmRZAEN (@)

(o) BiE (ER) ZHESH (BBE) 5F
LUE RS R 2 R -

2022 2021
—E—= B
$°000 Tt $°000 Tt

(Loss)/profit before taxation

BRELA (B1R) R

(235,922) 766,659

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation, calculated at the rates
applicable to (loss)/profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned

BRARWAREZERBRERR (BB) (5 2HEAERA (BR) 855

ZEBEBIA

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

THRS 2 BERE

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

FRBRBA ZHERE

Withholding tax of Mainland China subsidiaries
Fh B P 3 B B 1 B) 2 TR AR B IR

Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised

RERZRBARBERZBBELE

Tax effect of recognition of tax loss and deductible temporary

differences not previously recognised

BRALAABIZHBEER TRNESEE 2 HBELE

Net under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years

DESFECREBETR  (ShEE) FHE

Tax credit on PRC Corporate Income Tax paid

EHTEEXERAEHR 2TIRER

Others
Hth

(73,465) 176,624

19,218

(29,320)

15,004

11,477

(1,369)

(1,818)

(13,339)

674

Actual tax (credit)/expense

BEBE (ER) X

(74,541)

177,151

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]




é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

7 Emoluments of Directors 7 EBZEE

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RBEEF B CRTERFD £ 383N ER (AT (HE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the ESFRER) R BoBEECEEME W
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T :

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2022
—E-f
Salaries,
allowances
and other Share-
benefits Retirement based
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary scheme payments
fees  Ee - BER bonuses  contributions Sub-total DyiE Total
BB  HUEWER BERRZEL  RGHEMR It U PAE )
(Note)
(Hez)
$000 F7¢ $000 F7t $000 F7 $000 Tt $000 F7¢ $000 F7¢ $000 ¥t
Executive Directors
#i7EE
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
BR@sk 400 7,020 - 387 7,807 538 8,345
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
e 200 7,461 - 386 8,047 8,315 16,362
Mr. Eugene LYE
o 200 2,273 66 2,539 2,539
Non-executive Directors
FH7EE
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
BERY+ 290 290 290
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
= 290 - - - 290 - 290
BEARE
Ms. May LO
BHEst 340 340 340
Independent Non-executive Directors
EUFHEE
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI
EERL 580 580 580
Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND
Jan PS. ERLUND %4 550 i i i 550 i 550
Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE
N 1 - - - 1 - 1
pREse 63 63 63
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH
Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4 565 565 565
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG
FETHL 421 421 421
4,487 16,754 - 839 22,080 8,853 30,933
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

7 Emoluments of Directors (Continued) 7 EEZ#E @)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RBEEF B CRTERFD £ 383N ER (AT (HE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the ESFRER) R BoBEECEEME W
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T (&)

Directors) Regulation are as follows: (Continued)

2021
—E--
Salaries,
allowances
and other Share-
benefits Retirement based
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary scheme payments
fees  H& 2HR bonuses  contributions Sub-total WRAA Total
ESHe  HMEUEA  BERNZRL  BGHEER NGt BB fI% @5t
(Note)
(ft3)
$000 F7 $000 F7 $000 1t $000 1t $000 1t $000 F7t $000 F7
Executive Directors
Hi7E%
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
- 308 6,408 3,932 380 11,028 138 11,166
BRERE
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
o 154 7,405 3,860 386 11,805 6,796 18,601
BEELE
Mr. Eugene LYE
154 2,132 1,031 51 3,368 - 3,368
il
Non-executive Directors
FiiEE
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
v 175 175 175
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
iy 175 - - - 175 - 175
BERLE
Ms. May LO
BHZGT 19 19 19
Independent Non-executive Directors
BU#iigz
Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI
SEEEL 477 477 477
Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND
Jan P.S. ERLUND 4 43 i i i 43 i 43
Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE
N 527 - - - 527 - 527
REREE
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH
Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4 490 490 490
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG
392 - - - 392 - 392
EETAL
3511 15,945 8,823 817 29,096 6,934 36,030

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]
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B %5 3R & MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

7

Emoluments of Directors (Continued)

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options and

8

share awards granted to the Directors under the Company’s
share option scheme and share award scheme. The value of
these share options and share awards is measured according
to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions as set out in note 1(q)(iv) and, in accordance with
that policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued
in previous years where grants of equity instruments are
forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options and awards granted, are
disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme” and
“Share award scheme” in the directors’ report and note 23.

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2021: two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other three (2021: three) individuals are as follows:

7 EEz#ME @

MiE - MR BRER . ARERBEA QT ZBRETER
BRORBTBRTFES 2 BRERRDEE 2 (5T
fBE - LEBRER R RE 2 EETREMEE(q)
(v) IBAEERARGBTRER RS RAZE
STREMEE - MERRZEBEK - BEYUBEFER
SMARHNRATAERBAIC RRK 2B E
B2

LEBENEFN 2FHE (EFCRE2BRER KRN
RBzEBZRARBE) RESSHRE [BRE
B % (R REE S ] —BRRMEE 23 hiE -

8 EEMEAL

EREBBHEATT W& (CF=—F W
£) BES  BEZMESRWE7HRE - 28
=5 (CB=—F =€) AT2MERENT

Salaries and other emoluments

FeRAEMME

Retirement scheme contributions
EREH B

Discretionary bonuses

By BB B2 TEAL

Share-based payments

LA 13 R ELHE 2 S 3K

2022 2021
—E-= B —F
$000 F5¢ $000 F 3t

10,984 13,463
374

4,343

4,489

22,669
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EEMHEAL @&

(Continued)
The emoluments of the three (2021: three) individuals with the ZSE(ZEZ—F =) Bat AL z#ME
highest emoluments are within the following bands: FLUTHR

2022 2021
—E_— B —F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AR AE

$4,000,001 to $4,500,000
4,000,001 Jt £ 4,500,000 J©

$4,500,001 to $5,000,000
4,500,001 Jjt £ 5,000,000 T

$5,000,001 to $5,500,000
5,000,001 jt £ 5,500,000 Jt

$5,500,001 to $6,000,000
5,500,001 jt £ 6,000,000 JT

$6,000,001 to $6,500,000
6,000,001 T £ 6,500,000 7T

$6,500,001 to $7,000,000

6,500,001 jt £ 7,000,000 JT !
$7,000,001 to $7,500,000 _
7,000,001 JtE 7,500,000 JT
$7,500,001 to $8,000,000 1
7,500,001 JtE 8,000,000 T
$8,000,001 to $8,500,000 1

8,000,001 jt £ 8,500,000 7t

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]



Notes to the Financial Statements

é? B %5 3R & MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

9 Other comprehensive income
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of
other comprehensive income:

2022
—B-CF
Tax
credit/

Before-tax (expense)

amount FiE
%/ (8R)
$000 Tt

$'000 Tt

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements
of subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong

RESEBUMENBLARAE AR ZMBRRMELN
ERER

Cash flow hedge: net movement in the hedging reserve

RERBEH  HHREFLD

Remeasurement of employee retirement benefit liabilities
EERNMENARCENTE

20

(b) Components of other comprehensive
income:

9 HithZMmEukas
() BREMREREEHE2BBE
&

Cash flow hedges:
RERSBHT

Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging instruments
recognised during the year

FERRRZ T AR A ERE 2 EREH

Amounts transferred to initial carrying amount of hedged items

BEREHWTIEE RYRAEZ S8

Net deferred tax credited/(debited) to other comprehensive income

REM2EREEA GIBR) ZIEEH IR FH

Net movement in the hedging reserve during the year recognised in
other comprehensive income

FRREMEERSED 2 H P HEFE2E

Annual Report 2021/2022 FE & @

2021
“E--
\EEURVE  Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount amount expense amount
LR EL N BRASE  HEER  ABNESE
SRS $000 X $000F7m  $000 T
246,978 = 246,978
(427) 1,131 (269) 862
569 26,436 (4,259) 22,177
87,915 274,545 (4,528) 270,017
(b) EftZmEWE G :
2022 2021
—g== —E-—F
$°000 Tt $°000 Tt
11,876
(10,745)
(269)
862




é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

10 (Loss)/earnings per share 10 8 (BR) &5

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (o) BRER (F58) BF

The calculation of basic loss per share (2021: basic earnings BEREXREE (ZE=-—F: §RELXER) 5
per share) is based on the loss attributable to equity RIBARD B R EEE AFEGES 158,750,000 7T
shareholders of the Company of $158,750,000 (2021: profit (ZZ=—F 1 j57548,346,000T) REARE
of $548,346,000) and the weighted average number of BTEBR2MEFREN 068,766,000 IRE
1,068,766,000 ordinary shares (2021: 1,064,602,000 ordinary BR(ZZEZ=Z—F :1,064,602,000 R EER)
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows: e HtEWT -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares BB ZHEF 1T E

2022 2021
—=== —E-—F
Number of Number of

shares shares
g 4= R EE
’000 Th% ’000 T/

Issued ordinary shares at 1st April
A iy 1,067,188 1,063,778
ROA—BZERTEER A

Effect of share options exercised

SITEBEREZZE 2 824

Effect of shares purchased under share award scheme

BB BRI BB E RS > (310) -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31st March (note
10(b)) 1,068,766 1,064,602
R=ZA=1t—HZ2EBR 2 MEFIRE (M5 10(b))

e Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]



é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

10 (Loss)/earnings per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share (2021: diluted
earnings per share) is based on the loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of $158,750,000 (2021: profit
of $548,346,000) and the weighted average number of
1,068,766,000 ordinary shares (2021: 1,074,231,000 ordinary
shares) after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

10 B (&]) BF @)

(b) BREE (F58) BF
ERBEER (—E-—F SREERA) D
RBEARQFREFE AELER158,750,000
T (ZE=—5F : 55 548,346,000 7T) RFEFAT
EEBEMERETNCEBR 2 EMELAREE
ZEBRINEF IR 21,068,766,000 IR E B
(ZB=—5 :1,074,231,000 REZER) 55 -
HEEWNT :

BB EFRE (HE)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31st March (note

10(a))
R=ZA=t—-HAZEBRZMEFIRE (MEE 10(a))

Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares under the Company’s share

option scheme for nil consideration

BRERBAAR ZBRESIUEESXNBITEBRRZZE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31st March

R=RA=t—-BZzEBRRZMEFIRE (HF)

2022 2021
—EBF B —F
Number of Number of

shares shares
RipE B BEE
000 Fh% 000 Fh%
1,068,766 1,064,602
9,629

1,068,766 1,074,231

As at 31st March 2022, the Group had potential dilutive shares
in connection with its share option scheme and share award
scheme (2021: share option scheme only). The potential
ordinary shares relating to the share option scheme and share
award scheme were not included in the calculation of diluted
loss per share as they did not give rise to any dilutive effect
for the period.

P4

TEIZFZRE=T—H AREZBRER
KB ERTE (ZT=—F : ABRES
) EREERANEEERR - ARBRAES
KRGO EBAE2ECERREHNREESE
EEEE  BLBRESEIRR O RE S
ZEEEBRIAEETSRBEHRZE -

=

B (o

=
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment 1N Y- BERRE
(a) (a)

Other property, plant and equipment
B - BERRE

Land and Factory Fixtures,
buildings ~ machinery  fumiture
held for and  and office
ownuse  equipment  equipment Motor ~ Construction Right-of-use  Investment
WEfERZ  IHKER %E-BAR  vehides inprogress  Sub-total assets  properties Total
HEREF ECI N g REIR Nt OEREEE  REME b
$000F7% $000Fx $000Fm $000F7T $000FE $000Fm $000Fm  $000FT  $000 %
Cost:
A

At Lst April 2020

1,061,502 3,124, 18,54 138, 2 702, 490,857 22, ,215,941
H-B-FEMA-F 061,502 3124356 518,543 38699 859,286 5,702,386 90,85 698 62159

Exchange adjustments

06937 248134 12733 3662 49508 411064 20395 - 431459
[
;dgm"s 50 42349 67260 17547 495549 622773 77150 - 69993
I
Transfer

511385 833260 19814 - (1364461) - - - -
&5
;’Zmls (1427)  (41058)  (199%)  (2755) (78) (65314  (54420) - (119735)
?:f;st_ﬁcf;ﬂ_a 1668456 4207043 598363 157153 39894 6670900 533990 22698 7,227,597

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses:

RAERAESS -

At Lst April 2020

R-2-FEMA-H

Exchange adjustments

EAAE

Charge for the year

KEERE

Impairment losses
AEEE

Written back on disposals
HERRE

At 31st March 2021
o 535851 1,971,991 278,122 97,400 - 2,383,364 182,193 19,322 3,084,879
R-ZB=-5=fA=1-H

459,669 1,601,595 233,164 85,035

2379463 105277 19,196 2,503,936

27,725 113,175 5422 2413

148,735 3,066

151,801

49,047 267,617 54,454 12,555

383673 103,391 126 487,190

25,250 3715 = 28,965 6,864 = 35,829

(590)  (35646)  (18633)  (2603)

(57472)  (36405)

(93877)

Net book value;

REFE:

At 31st March 2021

o 1,132,605 2,235,052 320,241 59,753 39,894 3,787,545 351,797 3376 4,142,718
RZB=-%=f=1-H
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7§ R & M &F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment 1N % - BENRE (&)
(Continued)
(a) (Continued) (a) (@)

Other property, plant and equipment
A% - BERR

Land and Factory  Fixtures,
buildings  machinery  furniture

held for and  and office
ownuse equipment equipment Motor Construction Right-of-use  Investment
BEfFER.  IEMSR #£B HER  vehicles inprogress  Sub-total assets  properties Total
iR RE  WOER RE  EEIR Mt EREEE  REWE a3t
$000Fx $000F7w $000FT $000FE $000Fx $000Fm  $000FT  $000FL  $000 T
Cost:
BA:
;f_l ; 5@{; )2511_ q 1,668,456 4,207,043 598,363 157,153 39,894 6,670,909 533,990 22,698 7,227,597
%X%h%;?e“diu“me”“ 48052 104869 7217 1876 1915 163729 9855 - 17358
Additions
5E 593 58,501 14,936 9,971 159,430 243,431 83,832 - 327,263
ggﬁer 953 53157 54770 5714  (114594) - - - -
Disposals
i (1,417) (55,045) (18,828) (8,670) - (83,960) (68,460) - (152,420
;}fgi“ﬁgcﬁgizj_ﬁ 1716637 4368325 656458 166044 86645 6004100 559217 22698 7,576,024

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses:

AHHERAEES -

At 1t April 2021

R-B--FRA-H

Exchange adjustments

[EjiaE

Charge for the year

KEEHE

Impairment losses
AEEE

Written back on disposals
HEREE

Qf ggt:“i“grc_héo_f_ﬁ 609591 2328203 328758 103,620 - 3370271 218087 19448 3,607,806

535851 1,971,991 278,122 97,400 2,883,364 182,193 19322 3,084,879

11,578 40,107 2,633 1,095

55,413 1,804 = 57,217

62,927 318434 63,489 13,219

458,069 100,763 126 558,958

50,063 959 475

51,497 1,374 = 52,871

(765)  (52,302)  (16,445) (8,560)

(78,072)  (68,047) - (146,119)

Net book value;

FEFE:

At 31st March 2022

H-E-—E=A=+-g 1,107,046 2,040,032 327,700 62,415 86,645 3,623,838 341,130 3,250 3,968,218
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(a) (Continued)

Government grants of $632,000 (2021: $6,460,000) were

received from the PRC government in relation to the

acquisition of plant and equipment and were netted off

against the cost of the related assets during the year.

During the year, the carrying amounts of certain items
of property, plant and equipment were written down by
$52,871,000 (2021: $35,829,000) to their recoverable
amounts as follows (the recoverable amounts were estimated
using the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use):

(i)  Animpairmentlossof$25,584,000 (2021:$7,384,000) on
abandoned property, plant and equipment associated
with the relocation of the Shenzhen operation to a
modern facility in Dongguan as part of manufacturing
innovation programme was recognised during the year,
where the recoverable amounts of these items were
minimal.

(i)  An impairment loss of $23,697,000 (2021: $17,527,000)
on various items of property, plant and equipment in
Mainland China and the Hong Kong SAR operations
reflecting the cessation of usage was recognised during
the year, where the recoverable amounts of these items
were minimal.

(iii)  Animpairment loss of $1,916,000 (2021: nil) on property,
plant and equipment in connection with Singapore
operation was recognised. The recoverable amount was
determined based on value-in-use calculations as set
out in note 13.

(iv) While schools reopened intermittently in 2021, the
Group’s Vitaland tuckshop business continued to be
impacted by COVID-19. Management has performed
assessment of future performance of each tuckshop and
some of them continued tounder-perform. Consequently,
an impairment loss in respect of right-of-use assets
($1,374,000 (2021: $6,864,000)) and other property,
plant and equipment ($300,000 (2021: $4,054,000))
was recognised. The aggregate recoverable amounts of
the affected tuckshops subject to impairment amounted
to $1,354,000 (2021: $4,281,000), which was determined
based on the value-in-use applying a discount rate of
10% (2021: 9%).

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]

11 YE . BERRE @)

(a) (&)
FRARPERFWEEBEERERRENBS
#81632,000 T (ZE=—%F : 6,460,000 7T)
EREEEE 2R °

WER . ETWE - RS2 EEER
52,871,000t (=& = — f : 35,829,000 7T)
ETFI2 BETRESHE (TRESHEALE
B A T A o 2 B
%) :

(i BRIBERBERZRRCHE EHE
BEERAIFTEN—H5) HENEEY
¥ BWE KRS KR EEE 25,584,000
7T (ZZ=—% : 7,384,000 7T) REARTE
R ZESEANTKRESEDMARE -

(i) TR FEREREBSINTHEERHN
ZEYE BERRBEERMFLEFEAM
R EE 823,697,000 (Z &= —
F :17,527,0007%) » ZZBEE W KRES
BT RE -

(i) PMEEFMPEBEBNYE BRERRE
BREEEE1,916,000T (ZE=—%F:
&) o TR E SR TIIRIBMEE 13 T E M E A
BEFEEE -

(iv), #ARAZE-_—FEREHRMEER HEX
SECHEMRBERNBEHIEBTEES
2090 BMHEERBRERETE - EEE
S EEENEM 2 ARRRKE  HbFHo
BEXE Bt CRIAEEFEAREE
(1,374,000 T (ZZF = — % : 6,864,000
W) EEBHEHMYE - BERSZHE
(300,000t (=& = — % : 4,054,000
T)) ZBEER - AT REZZEENE
22 AT Bl 4855 51,354,000 8 (ZE=—
F 1 4,281,0007T) ZEENREFERE
BER10% (ZBEZ—F :9%) 2ITBEEXE
E °



é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment 1 %% - BENRE &
(Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) ERAEEE

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by BEHBEEEs EzFEAREECRAFEI NN

class of underlying asset is as follows: T :

2022 2021
—E__—HF —EBE-—F
$°000 F it $000 Tt

Interests in leasehold land held for own use, carried at depreciated cost,
with remaining lease term of?:

FEERzBE TS (RITERASIMR) 2R THEM :

- 50 years or more
-50F 85U E 6,489 6,643

- between 10 and 50 years

-10Z50F 24 173,997 171,178

180,486 177,821

Other properties leased for own use, carried at depreciated cost

BEEE > W CRIFERASIE) 158,850 171,909

Factory machinery and equipment, carried at depreciated cost

TR B8 (R ERASIE) el 2,067

Fixtures, furniture and office equipment, carried at depreciated cost

KE  GUERAERME GRIFERARTIER)

351,797
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment 1n % - BENRE @)
(Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) FRAEEE @)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised BEMERER 2 HEMEZBXEE AT ¢

in profit or loss is as follows:

2022 2021
—E__—HF —EBE-—F
$°000 F it $000 Tt

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:

BINREES B2 ERAREEZITEER !

- Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own use

5 . A 3,966
-BEFERZHEI BB ERER
= Ot:er prop‘ertles Ieg(sed for own use 98,827
- BEFE A2 i
- Factory machinery and equipment 598
- TR KRR
- Fixtures, furniture and office equipment _
- 2B GRARBAERE
100,763 103,391
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) 8.137
HEEBZFE (MFE5(a)) ’
Expense relating to short-term leases
_ 31,214
BREEBHEE 2R
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-term
leases of low-value assets 2,792
FREEEEEHREZHX (REEEE 2 EHHEERM)
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities 11,778
T AEEEGEFEZATEEENK
COVID-19-related rent concessions (22,409) (25,438)

2019 BikimSHiaEESER
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(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group leases various warehouses, offices and factory and
office equipment for use in its operations. The leases included
in right-of-use assets typically run for an initial period of more
than one year to five years. Some leases include an option
to renew the lease for an additional period after the end of
the contract term. Where practicable, the Group seeks to
include such extension options exercisable by the Group to
provide operational flexibility. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. If the Group is not reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options, the future lease
payments during the extension periods are not included in
the measurement of lease liabilities. The potential exposure
to these future lease payments is summarised below:

11 YE . BERRE @)

(b) EAEEE @)

FEBHEAZERE PAE  IRRBLER
BREEEER - STAERAEEE Z2HE—RA
SHUBB-—FERF - MO HEETREHNEFH
THENERESEFANMER EUEATZER
T AEENREBFAEEATE2BRLERZE
H o RMHEBELEEEN - AREREERSB A M
AEREBRESETREHRE - A KEAREE
BESETEENREER  NERBE 2 RAREE
NRTEFAHEEFEZFE - ZERRBEN
R B ERBRMT

Potential future lease payments
under extension options not
included in lease liabilities

Lease liabilities recognised
(discounted)

(undiscounted)

EHRETZRFAHEREEZ

EEEzHEEAE (BITR) BERKBEEMNR (RHFR)
2022 2021 2022 2021
—g:== B —ECfF B —F
$°000 Tt $000 F it $°000 Tt $°000 Tt
Warehouse - Hong Kong Operation 63,611 96,034 120,191 120,191

RE - EERHK
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group is the registered owner of several

plots of leasehold land, in respect of which upfront lump sum

payments were made to acquire them.

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
$83,832,000 (2021: $77,159,000). This amount primarily
related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 18(d) and 21,
respectively.

As disclosed in note 1(c). the Group has adopted the
Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-79-related rent concessions
beyond 30 June 2027,and has applied the practical expedient
to all eligible rent concessions received by the Group, with
COVID-19-related rent concessions of $17,095,000 (2021:
$20,902,000) was recognised in “Other income” accordingly.

(c) Property, plant and equipment leased out
under operating leases

The Group leasesoutinvestment propertiesunderanoperating

lease. The leases runs for an initial period of two years, with an

option to be early terminated by either participating party.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s undiscounted lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease are receivable as follows:

1 Y% BERRE @

(b) EAEEE &)
o AEESHRAS T IEMSEA
BRI IR ATE S — R R R + 1 o

FRN ABEFRAEEESS83,832,000w (=
T :77159,0007t) o ZARIBFEEEHAE
ERZFBETERMBEESRER -

FEHECREREAENRESEGE 2B oM
2 BIE S RKIEE18(d) & 21

HUM ) IR E - AEECHRA(EEYE
HREER) F6%E (BIIRN) [R=ZFZ—FAA
=1+ AZEZ20198 M B EHIEEEZEH ]
YHATEES ERARAEBRRZEEE
KEEER > M2019BRFESHEFEEES TR
17,095,000 7t (=& = — £ : 20,902,000 7T)
SRR [ HAWA | g -

(c) RESEHEHEHL 2R  BER
R

AEENEEHERBRENE - ZSHEND

REWFE  EASHESARERRL - ZEHEE

WEBFERAEE -

REBRB TR EEHERV RITHRA
ENRWT :

Within one year

— &y

plopy] 2021
—g== —E-—F
$°000 Tt $000 F 7t

3,134 1,683
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(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(d) The fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties at 31st March 2022 is
$63,300,000 (2021: $63,100,000) which is estimated at their
open market value by reference to recent market transactions
in comparable properties (2021: same basis of valuation
adopted). The valuation was carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, Roma Appraisals Limited, who have among
their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category of the
properties being valued.

The fair value measurement is categorised as a Level 3
valuation under the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available; and

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by
using direct comparison approach with reference to the
market price of comparable properties and adjusted for
building quality and timing of the reference transaction. The
significant unobservable input in the fair value measurement
is the property-specific adjusting rate, which ranged from
0.96 to 1.05 (2021: 0.95 to 1.05). The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the property-specific adjusting rate.

11 YE . BERRE @)

(d) REMERZDAE
REMER-_ZBE-__F=ZA=+—-B2ZARE
/63,300,000t (=& = — % : 63,100,000
) WHESETALBYE LR TERZ R
BARMSEEETGES (222 —F  FRIE
—fHEEE) - GETIHBE M EBEMITESEE
AHERIRATET ESOBELSTBAELME
B2EE  EAGENEZHERER AEHEE
ITERAEER

AREFTERE (EBHBEREERD) F1358 (42
AEHEIFREC=Z2RAAERBEIEARE=
BEE - - BELAREFEDBE2ZERINEBEN
THRELFEMAEBZITEEEREESHRE
E .

- B-RhE: EERAFS-REARE (AR
FFEAREEERRBENERT S ZRE
ARWE) TEZDRE

- BIEMhE FRAEZRWARE (BREE
ERFE R EEGARE) BXRFER
BEARUEEHABBITECZAARBE T
EEGASBEAETSEE W ARE
&

- BZRMEE: EREXATUBRRHAHE

HEZARE -

REMEZARETISEALBYEZTEER
EERELETE  INSEXBZ2ETEERE
BMEHBARE - AREFEZEATTEERAH
BLENWERAZREZ NF096E105(=ZF
Z—H:095F1.05) - AAETEEERYE
FAREBRIEBBE -
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(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment pledged
against bank loans

At the end of the reporting period, no property, plant and

equipment of the Group are pledged to secure bank loans or

bank facilities granted to the Group.

(f) Deposits for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

As at 31st March 2022, the Group paid deposits totalling

$264,000 (2021: $2,404,000) to acquire property, plant

and equipment. The remaining amount of the consideration

for the acquisition is included in capital commitments (note
27(a)).

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]

1 Y% BERRE @

(e) MIBITEFERZYE BMERR
&

REHRH - AEBEBEEIREANE  BERER

B DERAEEER C RITERIRITREE -

(f BEYX - BERRKBZIE

RZBZZF=ZA=+—H AEEEBEY
¥ BEREEMXZAFT£61264,0007 (=
T :2404,0007T)  c BEREBZHT S
RBEET ABAESE (HEE27(a)) ©
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(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

12 Intangible assets 12 BEEE
Pollution
discharge
Brand name Customer list right Total
B EFEE BsHE st
$°000 F7t $°000 Tt $°000 ¥t $°000 Tt
Cost:
B

At 1st April 2020

7,127 10,958 1,128 19,213
R-ZE-ZZEFNA—H
Addition
- - 286 286
nNE
Exchange adjustments
E 3 i 456 107 563
At 31st March 2021
R 7,583 10,958 1,521 20,062
RZE-—F=H=+—H
Accumulated amortisation:
Eetis -
At 1st April 2020
4,276 10,958 169 15,403
R-ZE-ZFMA—H
Exchange adjustments
3 280 - 24 304
Charge for the year
- 373 - 285 658
AFE
At 3lst March 2021
4,929 10,958 478 16,365
R-E-—F=A=+—H
Net book value:
IREFRE :
At 31st March 2021 2,654 _ 1,043 3697

R-ZZB--%=A=+—H
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

12 Intangible assets (Continued)

12 EBHEE (&)

Pollution
discharge
Brand name Customer list right Total
mhE A EFEEE BEsiE st
$°000 Tt $°000 Tt $°000 Tt $°000 Tt
Cost:
5238
?At_l ;ép_”';lg }2;_ . 7,583 10,958 1,521 20,062
Exchange adjustments
IER%E%EE J (4) - 61 57
/;,f 3L t_“ﬁ‘;g‘ ;c’fi g 7,579 10,958 1,582 20,119
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses:
ReH IR EEE ¢
/7;_\:_1 o f‘f";lg ;1_ . 4,929 10,958 478 16,365
Exchange adjustments
[E XA - - 24 24
Impairment losses
= 1%% . 2,303 - - 2,303
ih;;g‘;&f;ﬁr the year 347 - 312 659
i
?: 3 _;Ft_“ﬁ"gﬁ ;0:2_12_ g 7,579 10,958 814 19,351
Net book value:
IRTEFE -
At 31st March 2022 _ _ 768 768

R=-Z2-_#=A=+—H

The amortisation charges and impairment losses of brand
name and pollution discharge right are included in “other
operating expenses” and “administrative expenses” in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss respectively.

Details of the brand name impairment charge are set out in

note 13.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #ttBEIRREEER A A

AlA -

BRI BEERARBESRED 25
stAREERRZ [ HMEE

BRIRITHE

MR E 2 REE A BRI M3 -
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(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

13 Goodwill

Cost:
RS

At 1st April
REA—H

Exchange adjustments
BE O AR

At 31st March
R=A=+—H

Accumulated impairment losses:

RETRERS :

At 1st April
RMA—H

Impairment losses

B RER

Exchange adjustments

B 5 AR

At 31st March
R=A=+—H

Carrying amount:

BRMEE :

At 31st March
R=ZB=+—H

2021
—E-—F
$000 F 7t

34,501

2,203

36,704

17,250

1,102

18,352

18,352
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(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

13 Goodwill (Continued)
Impairment testing for cash-generating unit

containing goodwill
Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the entire share capital
of Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“VIS”).

The recoverable amount of the VIS operation is determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period (2021: five-year
period). Cash flows beyond the five-year period (2021: five-
year period) are extrapolated using an annual growth rate
of 3% (2021: 3%). The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the business in which the VIS
operation operates.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation:

13 BE @
BEREZREELENZRERNR

7 2 F W B Vitasoy International Singapore
Pte. Ltd. ([VIS]) 2 Z&BRAMELE -

VISEBzAWESENREEREENEE
EeZERAREEBRECEEH (=%
Z-FhEH) WHHRESHZRERER
B AFH(ZB=—F : AFH) UEzRE
RBAIEM3% (2T Z—F | 3%) 2FRRRE
B -ZBRETBBVISEBIEEXB ZRY
FHERR -

SAEEREERRAZEZ/RAOT ¢

2021
—E-—F

- Gross margin

- EFE

- Average annual sales growth rate for the five-year period

- AFHPHFHERESR

- Pre-tax discount rate

- BRBLRTIT R =

34.3%

10.6%

8.8%

Management determined the budgeted gross margin and
sales growth rate based on past performance, expectation
for market growth and business expansion. The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant segment.

As at 31st March 2022, a full impairment of the carrying
amount of goodwill and an impairment charge of $2,303,000
on brand name and $1,916,000 on property, plant and
equipment were recognised to reduce the carrying amount of
the cash generating unit to its recoverable amount.

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]

EEEREBERRR AT SRR LR
R2EH  REREENERHELEE  HifE
FA 2 TR R B 5 KBRS B4 R AR 2 BB AT
HRE -

A—EZ__F=-A=+—H BEIXHEREES
2ERE  URBETmERTE 2,303,000tk
WE - BMERKRE1916,0007T ' UL BREE
BN ZIRABEZEETRESEE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

14 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note
1(d) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial

14 MIBQE

TREBAREENBLAR ZFHIE - REBEH
o AREBBE 2RO B REER o

LM A R RMEE ) TR E 2 ZIEHIH B
DF WEAEEHBHRRAGETE

statements.
Place of Particulars of Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ issued and WRRESLE
establishment paid-up
and operation capital held by the heldby a
Name of company i ERTRIRE Company subsidiary  Principal activities
DERE RIRERE RAHE FRARE  WELARA TERHK
% %
Vitasoy USA Inc. United States of 100 shares = 100  Sale of beverages
America 100 MeAR 47 HERR
*RBERE
Vitasoy North America Inc. Canada 1,000 shares 100 - Sale of beverages
JIEVN 1,000 BRI 13 HEHRm
Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and The PRC RMB80,000,000 85 - Manufacture and
Beverage Company Limited (note (i) i AR sale of beverages
R4t Ct8) RmBRARAR (ME()) 80,000,000 7 LERHEERR
Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited The PRC  RMB335,000,000 = 85  Manufacture and
(note (ii)) RE ARH sale of beverages
Hetogh (R5) BIRAR (MR (i) 335,000,000 EERHEERR
Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited The PRC RMB200,000,000 = 85  Manufacture and
(note (iii)) H AR¥ sale of beverages
A (FRIL) BRAR) (ME (i) 200,000,000 7T LEREERR
Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited The PRC  HK$219,461,176 = 100  Manufacture and
(note (iv)) H B sale of beverages
Aetogh (L) BRAF (W (v) 219,461,176 70 EEREERM
Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited The PRC  RMB170,000,000 = 100  Manufacture and
(note (v)) HE ARM sale of beverages
o (F08) BRAT (MEE(v) 170,000,000 ¢ LEREESRR
Vitasoy Company Limited (note (vi)) The PRC  RMB100,000,000 = 100  Sales/distribution
BMBAERD R (FEE (vi) ] AR¥ of beverages/food
100,000,000 7 and headquarter
management
service (Mainland
China)
HE/ D8R/
RmRkARNEE
% (hEIAE)
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(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued) 14 MIBATE (&)

Place of Particulars of Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ issued and WERESHLE
establishment paid-up
and operation capital held by the held by a
Name of company e ERTRER Company subsidiary  Principal activities
DERE RIRERE AR FRAKBE  WEAERE FTEEY
% %
Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. (“VAP”) Australia V class shares: = 51  Manufacture and
(TvAP]) B A$8,925,000 sale of beverages
N class shares: EEREERD
A$8,575,000
VER
8,925,000 87
NER :
8,575,000 87
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada The Macau SAR MOP100,000 100 - Distribution of
o (R BRAR BMBATHE R 100,000 beverages
2R
Produtos De Soja Hong Kong (Macau) The Macau SAR MOP10,000 = 100 Dormant
Limitada HPBRITHE P9 10,0007 gEER
BEER (AF) BRAA
Vitaland Services Limited The Hong Kong SAR 300,000 shares 100 = Operation of
EfRHREBRA T BARATHE 300,000 R 7 tuck shops and
concessions
BEERIRHR
N
Hong Kong Gourmet Limited The Hong Kong SAR 2 shares = 100 Provision of
ERERARLT ERRATHE 2Rk catering services
RUKHES
The Hong Kong Soya Bean Products The Hong Kong SAR 2 shares 100 = Property
Company, Limited ERBATHE 2[R investment
BEERERAT NERE
Vitasoy (China) Holdings Limited The Hong Kong SAR 1 share 100 - Investment holding
) (hE) ZRERDR BEBHTHE LRR A REER
Vitasoy Investment Holdings Limited The Hong Kong SAR 1 share 100 - Investment holding
EREERERAT BEBATHE 1RRSB RE®
Vita International Holdings Limited The Hong Kong SAR 2 shares 100 - Investment holding
EEREEERAR BARAITHE 2R K1 REER
Vitasoy International Investment Limited The Hong Kong SAR 1 share 100 - Investment holding
EHNERREERAT BERHTHE 1LRRB REZER

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

14 BT &)

Place of Particulars of Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ issued and WERESHLE
establishment paid-up
and operation capital held by the held by a
Name of company e ERTRER Company subsidiary  Principal activities
DERE RIRERE IRAHE FRAKBE  WEAERE FTEEY
% %
Vitasoy (China) Investments Company The Hong Kong SAR 2 shares 100 - Investment holding
Limited BEBRITHE 2RRAH REER
b (hE) REBRLAF
Vitasoy Holdings (Malta) Limited Malta Ordinary shares: - 100  Sales of beverages
SRt HK$20,257 HERm
Deferred share:
HK$7
LER E%
20,257 1T
BERG - BR7
Vitasoy Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited Singapore $$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
i1 10,0003 % REZR
Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore $$79,800,000 = 100  Manufacture and
(“VIS”) I 79,800,000 sale of soya related
(Twis]) and beverage
products
tERHETHER
Rk
Vitasoy Distributors (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore $$2,500,000 100 = Dormant
Hns 2,500,000 5% gEER

Annual Report 2021/2022 FE & @



@

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 3R & MY A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEFHAN > UBEHEHE)
14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company
Limited (“Shenzhen Vitasoy”) is a sino-foreign equity joint
venture established in Mainland China and is to be operated
up to 2049.

Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Dongguan”)
is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in Mainland
China and is to be operated up to 2067.

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Foshan”) is a sino-
foreign equity joint venture established in Mainland China and
is to be operated up to 2049.

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned
subsidiary established in Mainland China and is to be operated
up to 2045.

Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Wuhan”) is a
wholly foreign owned subsidiary established in Mainland China
and is to be operated up to 2064.

Vitasoy Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned subsidiary
established in Mainland China and is to be operated up to
2070.

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. # {3 EIFR B E R A 7]

14

BiaE -

0]

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

B AT (&)

RY M L) RREEARAR (DRI
M) BRPERBRY 2FIHEEREDNTE  KE
BE—FTPWAELE

Hefh (R35) BIRAT ([RELMS]) BRTE
MBI FAAEAEAT  CEPE-BAL
Fib o

B (L) BIRAT ([HILEMT]) BRTE
RBRTZHASEAEAT  BEHE-BMA
Fib o

A (£F) BRATDRNPEAMRL 2 2HE
MBAR  KEME_ZNAFIL -

Hpgh (FOF) ARAE ([HEEMRP]) BRHE
Wi 2 2N EMBAT  REHE_2AOF
ko

HEMMARABDBNPEAME L 2 2NEN B
A BEHE_EBLTFRI -



é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued) 14 MIBATE (&)

The following table lists out the information relating to TREINEBEEBEAFZRER ([FIERE
Shenzhen Vitasoy, Vitasoy Dongguan, Vitasoy Foshan and ) 2AREEME A TR EMYT - R4
VAP, the subsidiaries of the Group which have material 5~ BHILEMTIR VAP ZER - TX 25 287
non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The summarised financial BRI EISE B A T BEERT < £ 58 o

information presented below represents the amounts before
any inter-company elimination.

Shenzhen Vitasoy Vitasoy Dongguan Vitasoy Foshan VAP
RIS Rt AN ch
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—BCCF —E--E% ot St —E--f% —EzC —E--f% k- St “E--f&

$000 T 7t $000 7 $000 1t $000 7 $000 T7 $000 T7 $000 T7T $000 T7

NCl percentage

0 0 0 0/ 0 0/ 0/ 0/
RRRNEALL 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 49% 49%
%ggg“e“ 111,581 197,029 166,214 268,993 225,802 279,521 232,830 224,872
U =
Non-current ossets 76,885 96054 1242772 1284367 438245 491215 262447 241413
3F/}\L§ﬁ§§
ig;”g'“b"'t'es (53274)  (45339)  (608179)  (736563)  (156011)  (169,161)  (149624)  (124,862)
MERE
Non-current liabilties - (3780)  (451,311) (442,267 (24,483) (27,021) (8,776) (10,772)
E ki U
%"%gm 135,192 243,964 349,496 374,530 483,553 574,554 336,877 330,651
S oeoelie 21,084 36,445 51,676 56,178 73476 87,006 164,950 161,192
FERES  EHE ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
Rq;f““e 171,485 550,503 540,161 197,746 847484  1,175202 613,604 539,771

(Loss)/profit for the year

K58 R S50 (64,033) 52,439 (39,635) (7,113) 9496 146065 21,348 23,738
g’g&g;%%ehemive income (64,033) 52,439 (39,635) (7,113) 9,496 146,065 22,083 19,263
;E%%%’;F’Eﬁtggtfgjg) N/c,lmu (8,653) 7,954 (6,691) (1,067) 1,545 23319 11,168 10956
g;g;;jgg;ﬁggg 7,876 8532 - ; 18,166 22,019 6,176 -

Cash flows generated from/(used in)
operating activities 39,761 24,694 (390,842) 457,123 135,066 194,459 38,848 67,531
BEEBHE/ (M) RERE

Cash flows generated from/(used in)
investing activities 2,669 40,460 (9,412) (490,601) (11,151) (27,818) (43,516) (7,640)
REZBHE/ (MR RERE

Cash flows (used in)/generated from
financing activities (53,684) (60,783) 353,692 (17.871)  (116406)  (166,310) 9,883 (65,162)

REEH (FR) /FERene
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é? Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 7% 3R & MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

15 Interest in joint venture 15 RNEBEATZHELR
Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is REBREERNTAZER (EHEBESZENGS
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated BIEHmRERAAR) SEBOT ¢

financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

WHERERSLE
Particular of
Place of issued and Group’s
Form of incorporation paid-up effective

Name of joint business and business capital interest  Held by the Held by a Principal

venture structure MR BRTRERE A&EZ  Company  subsidiary activity

RENTEE RBREHA ERIE AR ERER A0EREE WEARER IRRH

% % %

Vitasoy -URC, Incorporated The Republic of Registered 50 = 50 Sale of
Inc. (“VUR”) B the Philippines capital of beverages
(TVUR]) FEBLNE  PHP 842,000,000 (note)

(T3F2E]) AR HERR
842,000,000t & (Fif3E)
Note: VUR was established by the Company in partnership with MizE : VURBAQARE-RFFETEZREEERRER
a major branded consumer food and beverage company in AR (BZEERAAZE —BREE) EBRL
the Philippines, the other investor to this joint venture, for the LAERELEERBERAKTEUEYH I AEZR
manufacture and sale of the Group’s plant-based beverages me VUREERERREE -
in the Philippines. VUR is mainly engaged in the sale of
beverages.
VUR, the only joint venture in which the Group participates, VUR(FEEH—SHEHZE&EAF) B—RBFLH
is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is T¥EEE BYEMSHRE -
not available.
Summarised financial information of VUR is disclosed below: VURZEI B ERBERZNT

2022 2021
—g-= —E-—fF

—_=

$°000 Tt $°000 Tt

Gross amounts of VUR’s

VUR 2 4A%8

Loss from continuing operations
g T e (55,003) (44,484)
Total comprehensive income

EAEl o (55,003) (44,484)

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

15 Interest in joint venture (Continued)

(a) Impairment

During the year ended 31st March 2021, the carrying amount
of interest in joint venture was fully impaired by recognising
an impairment charge of $42,800,000 after considering the
adverse impact of COVID-19 on future sales projections.

The COVID-19 pandemic had resulted in extended periods of
lockdown, reduced mobility, negatively impacting product
demand in the Philippines. COVID-19 continues to impact the
Philippines and adversely affect the joint venture’s prospects.
Management is of the view that the impact of COVID-19
will be felt for some time, which is reflected in revised sales
projections. The recoverable amount of the investment was
determined based on its value-in-use. The calculation used
discounted cash flow projections that are based on business
plans prepared by management, reflecting the performance
to date and the pandemic recovery assumptions for future
revenue growth. Cash flows beyond the forecast period are
extrapolated using an annual growth rate of 2%.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation:

15 HREEQRT 2R (&)

(a) BWE
BE-ZS-Z-—F=ZA=Z=+—HLEE Rk
2019 BARR S RERREETRR 2 FRIFEE -
FEBERREERH 42,800,000 8% AT
ERZRMESBEC 2 ERME -

2019 Bk S Hm AR B ERIHBER AR
2o HEFENERFREXNEHTE - 20198
RBESHEFEFEFRELHSEQNANIRE
BAFEE - EEERR » 2019 BRBESHNY
ERFE-RERB  MECRMEEEITNHE
AT - REFENTRESHERERLEREE
BE AETEEANRERERAURREEE
[EFrim B 5T BIF L - ZE XK RIS
SRIENREEURESRBERRI AR S
BROBR - FEAMURNRSRERERN 2%
ZFRRERER

SAEEAEENRAZEEZR/RUT ¢

2021
—_E_—F

- Gross margin &
-ERE 17%
- Average annual sales growth rate 159
- I ER R R °
- Pre-tax discount rate 149

-BRBATIT R R

Management determined the budgeted gross margin
and sales growth rate based on past performance and its
expectation for market development taking into account
the impact of COVID-19. The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the business of the joint
venture.

EEERIEAENRARZEE 2010 TRES
FUDSRRNES EETHAETHERHE
BEE o FIERIITREBRAR RN A &
AREHHEERR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

15 Interest in joint venture (Continued)

(a) Impairment (Continued)

During the year ended 31st March 2022, the performance
of the joint venture remained impacted by pandemic with
different levels of quarantine restrictions imposed by the
Philippines government and therefore the business has not yet
returned to its previous level before the spread of COVID-19.
The extent of the impact on business recovery will depend
on future developments and related regulatory actions
in Philippines. Considering the uncertain market factors
and the COVID-19 measures as imposed by the Philippines
government may delay the ability of the joint venture to
resume normal operations, management concluded that no
reversal of impairment was necessary.

(b) Unrecognised share of losses

The Group has discontinued recognising its share of losses of
joint venture because its cumulative share of losses in the joint
venture has exceeded the investment cost and shareholders’
loan less subsequent accumulated impairment losses. The
Group will not resume recognition of its share of any future
profits in the joint venture until its share of such profits equals
the cumulative share of losses not recognised in past years.

The amounts of unrecognised share of losses of joint venture
for the year and cumulatively are $26,676,000 (2021: nil).

16 Inventories
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

15 REEQT 2R (&)

(a) RIE (&)
BE-ZE--F=A=1+—HILEFE  FEEW
RERTREEZREZRE A8 TAZE£ERE
ESRRBEYE  HtHEEKERREER 2019
BRFSHREB A 2 KF - £ EH LR
EBECRNARBERURNIEEZE ZAABEEST
B o ENTHISTRERZUREERERNERZ
2019 BN R S MBI AR HEES & A AMEIE &
BE SEERAVEMSERERE -

(b) REERFTIEEE
FEBECKRLBRHAESEQAEE  BAR
R EEERABECEBRENAERRE
RHBEHERZRERSE - EAKEEEER
BMEAARRBEFN ENBEFERER 2R A
BB - ARESTEMERDZEZER -

FARRFZABRMECELTABRLER
26,676,000 7T (ZZF=—% : ) °

16 FE
(o) GZEMBRARTZEERE

Raw materials

R

Finished goods
B

2022 2021
—E-= B —F
$000 T3¢ $000 F 3t
458,749 416,951
314,635 308,575
773,384 725,526

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. 4 3 EIFR £ BB BR A 7]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEFHBN - LUBHEEE)

16 Inventories (Continued)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in
profit or loss is as follows:

Carrying amounts of inventories sold

SEFEZREE

Write down of inventories

MR FE

17 Trade and other receivables

Trade debtors and bills receivable, net of loss allowance

AR K BRI - HREEEREG

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments
HAbBW ~ e RFAMNFKE

16 #8 @)
(b) ERNEBEREARIAAFXIZFESH
pa i (|l

2022 2021
—g== —E-—-F
$°000 Tt $000 F 7t
3,423,729 3,559,688
27,450 6,796
3,451,179 3,566,484

17 FBUWCERFRR Bt IR SR
2022 2021
—g== —E-—F
$°000 Tt $°000 Tt
804,496 819,987
318,531 374,121
1,123,027 1,194,108

The amount of the Group’s other debtors, deposits and
prepayments expected to be recovered or charged as
expense after more than one year is $41,006,000 (2021:
$45,680,000). All of the other trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within

one yedar.

AEEEARBE—FRKRERNBAERZZ
HiEWR - & RFBIFIEA 41,006,000 7T
(ZE=—% : 45,680,0007T) - FiE HMFEW
IR R EAMERRTERR —FAKRESRER AR
i °
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